NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

www.ncfireprotectiondistrict.org
330 S. Main Avenue L Fallbrook, California 92028-293¢ @ Phone; (760) 723-2005 L Fax: (760) 723-2072

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

gmm STEPHEN ]J. ABBOTT- Fire Chicl/CEQO - sabbot@ic{ire.one
FRED LUEVANO ROBERT H. JAMES - District Counsel Robert James - roberthjameslawi@gmail.com
KENNETH E. MUNSON LOREN A. STEPHEN-PORTER - Executive Assistant/Board Secretary - Istephen@nclire org
JOHN VAN DOORN

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FROM: STEPHEN ABBOTT, FIRE CHIEF/CEQ
SUBJECT: BOARD MEETING PACKAGE
DATE: JANUARY 22, 2019

Enclosed is your Board package for the Regular January Board Meeting. We have tried to
include the information you will need to effectively consider and act on agenda items. The
Board meeting will be held at the normal meeting venue at FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY
DISTRICT, 990 EAST MISSION ROAD, FALLBROOK, CALIFORNIA.

Please note this month’s meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, January 22, 2019,
beginning at 4:00 p.m.

It is our goal to be prepared to respond accurately to Board questions and concerns. You can
help us achieve this goal by contacting me prior to the Board meeting with your questions and
concerns. This will allow time for the Staff and me to provide the appropriate information for
review at the Board meeting.

To ensure a quorum is present, please call Loren in advance of the meeting if you will be
unable to attend. She may be reached at (760) 723-2012.

Respectfully,

Stephen Abbott
Fire Chief/CEQ

m PROUDLY SERVING THE COMMUNITIES OF FALLBROOKI BONSALL AND RAINBOW =



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

AGENDA FOR REGULAR BOARD MEETING
JANUARY 22, 2019 - 4:00 p.M.

FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
LOCATION: 990 EAST MISSION ROAD
FALLBROOK CALIFORNIA

PUBLIC ACTIVITIES AGENDA

We invilfe you lo stay for the remamdoer of the Dusiness mee j however,
please feel free to depart at the close of the Public Aclivitics Agenda,

1. PuBLIC COMMENT — PRESIDENT LUEVANO {pgs. 1-2)

>  STANDING ITEM: Members of the Public may directly address the Board of Directors on items of interest to the Public provided no action will
be taken on non-agenda items. The Board President may limit comments to three minutes per speaker (Board of Directors Operations Policy
§47212)

2. EMPLOYEE BADGE PINNING - CHIEF ABBOTT (pgs. 34)

%  RECURRING ITem: Badge Pinning and Oath of Office for promoting employee.

3. AWARDS FOR EXPLORERS FROM VETERANS OF FOREIGN WARS — CHIEF ABBOTT (pgs. 56)

»  NEWITEM: Present awards fo Explorers who participated in the 2018 Veterans Day Parade.

4. THIRD AND FOURTH QUARTER 2018 AWARDS FOR BOARD RECOGNITION PROGRAM —  (Pgs7-16)
CHIEF ABBOTT AND B/S STEPHEN-PORTER

>  QUARTERLY ITEM: Select empioyees to be acknowledged for their efforts in the Third and Fourth Quarter 2018.

ACTION AGENDA

CONSENT ITEMS:

Alf iteins listed under the Consont llems are considored routine and vall De onacted in one motion. Fhere vall be 1o
separate discussion of these items © oAt aclion on the motion. unless members of the Board,
Staff or public request spocihic f(Pms be removed from the Consent Agenda.

APPROVE REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES, DECEMBER 11, 2018 (pgs. 17-24)
STANDING ITEM: Review and approve minutes from December meeting as presented.

APPROVE REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES, JANUARY 14, 2019 {pgs. 25-26)
STANDING ITEM: Review and approve minutes from January meeting as presented.

REVIEW AND ACCEPT FINANCIAL REPORT FOR DECEMBER 2018 {(pgs. 27-36)
STANDING ITEM: Review and Accept Financial Report for December as presented.

REVIEW AND ACCEPT POLICIES & PROCEDURES (pgs. 37-92)

RECURRING ITEM: Review and approve housekesping and modification to format of Board Operations policy, with additions to meet changes
in the law. Original policy included for review.

Board Policy
Board Education
Board Expenses
Board Organization
Board Elections
Board Committees
Board Meetings

Ve v vO vO

Note: The Americans with Disabilities Act provides that no qualified individual with a disability shall be excluded from participation in, or denied the

benefits of, District business. If you need assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the District Office 72 hours prior to the mesting at
(760) 723-2012.




9.
>

10.

>

1.

AGENDA FOR REGULAR BOARD MEETING
JANUARY 22, 2019
PAGE20Fr3

REVIEW AND ACCEPT 2" QUARTER OVERTIME TRACKING REPORT (pgs. 93-96)

QUARTERLY REPORT: Review and accept report that indicates a slight decrease in annual and sick feave, with a higher rate of industrial injury.
Current overtime expenditures are 40.56% expended with reimbursement of mutual aid at $ 94,906, which reduces the overtime expenses to
29.64% of the budget.

REeview AND ACCEPT FOURTH QUARTER 2018 CUSTOMER SATISFACTION SURVEY (pgs. 57-106)
QUARTERLY REPORT: Review and accept report for the Fourth Quarter 2018 as presented. This quarterly report continues to reflect customer

satisfaction is in the excellent range (95%) with 76 of 300 surveys refurmed and 331 Service and Sympathy Card sent in the Fourth Quarter
of 2018.

REVIEW AND ACCEPT ANNUAL FIRE PREVENTION REPORT (pgs. 107-112)
ANNUAL REPORT: Report shows 543 Plan Reviews with revenue increase of 65% and 617 Weed Abatement inspections conducled.

ACTION ITEMS:

12.

13.

14.

15.

Al loms hsted under ihe Action ltems Agenda will De
action on any matler. Members of the public in¢ 3
Time Cerlain loms will comimnence procisely atl the tine announced in tho Agenda.

REVIEW AND APPROVE 2019-03 AUTHORIZING PARTICIPATION IN A JOINT FACILITIES
AGREEMENT WITH THE COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO FOR MEADOWOOD DEVELOPMENT — CHIEF  (pgs. 113-160)
ABBOTT

New ITe: Review and Approve Resolution 2019-03 and authorize Fire Chief/CEOQ to execute necessary documents for JFA.

REVIEW AND TAKE ACTION ON RESULTS OF SRI SURVEY — CHIEF ABBOTT (pgs. 161-162)
Newlrem: Consider action based on evaluation of Community Qutreach Survey.

TRANSITION TO DISTRICT BASED ELECTION SYSTEM —CHIEF ABBOTT {pgs. 163-168)
NEew ITem: Review and approve Resolution 2019-01, initiating the fransition to a “By-District” election system.

REVIEW AND APPROVE CONTRACT FOR MEDICAL STANDBYS WITHIN DISTRICT EOA AND
APPROVE RESOLUTION 2019-02 — D/C MAHR AND CHIEF ABBOTT
RECURRING ITEM: Review and contract and Resolution 2019-02, authorizing Chief Abbott to sign agreement, which permits Mercy Medical

Transport to continue fo provide limited medical standby for San Luis Rey Down Training Center, located within the District’s Exclusive
Operating Area. Agreement has been reviewed by District Counsel.

{pgs. 169-186}

REVIEW AND APPROVE EMERGENCY RESPONSE TIME STANDARDS — D/C MAHR AND CHIEF
ABBOTT
RECURRING ITEM: Approve emergency response time standard based upon updated Urban, Suburban and Qutlying population densities.

(pgs. 187-180)

REVIEW AND APPROVE PROPOSAL TO ENACT FRESH START UNFUNDED LIABILITY QVER  (Pgs. 191-184)
TEN YEARS — DEPUTY CHIEF MAROVICH AND CHIEF ABBOTT
New ITem: Review and approve proposal fo enact a 10-year Fresh Start of Unfunded Liability for the Miscellaneous Plan.

DISCUSSION AGENDA

No action shail bo undertaken on any Discussion item. The Board may: acknowledge receipt of the information or report
and make comments: refer the maltter to Siaff for further study or report: or refer ihe matter o a fulue agenda.
There are no Discussion Agenda Items for the January 22, 2019 meeting. {pgs. 195-196)

18.

STANDING DISCUSSION ITEMS: Al items listed under the Standing Discussion ltems are presented every Regular mesting.



AGENDA FOR REGULAR BOARD MEETING

JANUARY 22, 2019
PAGE3OF3
™ LEGAL COUNSEL REPORT: (pgs. 197-198)
s “Strategies to Manage Increasing Pension Costs”
o WRITTEN COMMUNICATION: (pgs. 199-200)
» BOARD RECOGNITION PROGRAM — NONE
e NEWS ARTICLES: As attached. (pgs. 201-218)
e COMMENTS/QUESTIONS: {pos. 218-220)
s STAFF:

+ Chief Abbott
» Other Staff

BOARD
BARGAINING GROUPS
PuBLIC COMMENT

CLOSED SESSION

cied in the Gavernmeni Code.  the pubiic
5 on. the Board shail |
(anc! the vote or absle on that action of every
with Govermment Code § 54950 £T. seq.

5

CS-1. ANNOUNCEMENT — PRESIDENT LUEVANO: (pgs. 221-222)
> An announcement regarding the items to be discussed in Closed Session will be made prior to the
commencement of Closed Session.
e CONFERENCE _ WIiTH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR — GOVERNMENT __ CODE
" §54956.8 — CHIEF ABBOTT:
PROPERTY LOCATION: 4157 Olive Hill Road - Station 3, Fallbrook, CA 92028;
> PARTIES: North County Fire Protection District (Seller);
UNDER NEGOTIATION: Terms of Sale;
DISTRICT NEGOTIATORS: Chief Abbott, District Counsel James

CS-3. REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION — PRESIDENT LUEVANO:
ADJOURNMENT

The next regularly scheduled Board meeting is: Tuesday, February 26, 2019, 4:00 p.m. at FPUD.

CERTIFICATION OF AGENDA POSTING
| certify that this Agenda was posted in accordance with the provisions of the Government Code § 54950 et. seq. The posting locations were: [1]
the entrance of North County Fire Protection District Administrative Offices, [2] Fallbrook Public Utility District Administrative Offices and [3] the Roy
Noon Meeting Hall. The Agenda was also available for review at the Office of the Board Secretary, located at located at 330 S. Main Avenue,
Fallbrook (760) 723-2012. Materials related io an item on this Agenda submitted to the District after distribution of the agenda packet, are available
for public inspection in the Office of the Board Secretary, located at 330 S. Main Avenue, Fallbrook (760) 723-2012, during normal business hours

or may be found on the District website at http:/fwww.ncfireprotectiondisrict.org, subject to the Staffs ability to post the documents before the
meeling. The date of posting was January 18, 2019."

Board Secretary Loren Stephen-Porter: 5:-“—- [ M __ Date: January 18, 2019




TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FROM: STEPHEN ABBOTT, FIRE CHIEF/CEQ
DATE: JANUARY 22, 2019

SUBJECT: PusBLIiICc COMMENT

uBLIC COMMENT:

1. Members of the Public may directly address the Board of Directors on
items of interest to the Public provided no action will be taken on non-
agenda items. The Board President may limit comments to three
minutes per speaker (Board of Directors Operations Policy § 4.7.2.1.2).

Page 1 of 1
January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meeting Page -1



Januar y 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting




NORTH COUNTY FIRE

PROTECTION DISTRICT

ADMINISTRATION
TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FROM: CHIEF ABBOTT & DEPUTY CHIEF MAROVICH
DATE: JANUARY 22, 2019
SUBJECT: BADGE PINNING CEREMONY
PuUBLIC ACTIVITIES AGENDA
BACKGROUND:

The Board of Directors has approved a process of promoting District employees during
regularly scheduled Board meetings. This practice provides a professional environment
for congratulating the employees and their families for all the hard work and sacrifice.

DiSCUSSION:

The following individual will be present during the January 22, 2019, Regular Board

Meeting. Fire Chief Stephen Abbott will take this opportunity to officiate over the Badge
Pinning Ceremony.

It is the distinct pleasure of the organization to present the following individua! for
promotion;

Tyler Ruiz Engineer/Paramedic

Tyler Ruiz

Tyler Ruiz was born and raised in Escondido to Tony and Gina Ruiz. He is the oldest of
two brothers and one sister. Tyler resides in Vista with his wife, Brook, and two-year-old
son, Dean. When Tyler is not at work he enjoys surfing, fishing, mountain biking, and
camping with family and friends. Tyler started his fire career shortly after high-school and
became an EMT working for AMR San Diego. Tyler began volunteering as a firefighter
for Rainbow Volunteer Fire Department in 2005 while continuing his education and
training through Palomar College’s Fire/Paramedic program. He was hired with North
County Fire Protection District in 2008 as a Reserve Firefighter and ultimately as a full
time Firefighter Paramedic in 2012. Tyler is proud to be a member of North County Fire
and serve this community. He is grateful for all the support from family and friends over
the years and is honored to be receiving this promotion today.

January 22, 2019 Eagelgplilar Board Meeting

Page -3



Januar y 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting




TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FROM: STEPHEN ABBOTT, FIRE CHIEF/CEQ
DATE: JANUARY 22, 2019

SUBJECT: AWARDS FOR EXPLORERS FROM VETERANS OF FOREIGNWARS

PUBLIC ACTIVITIES AGENDA

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends the Board present awards to the following individual(s) selected to
be recognized for their efforts by the Veterans of Foreign Wars (VFW).

BACKGROUND:

The District recently received numerous certificates of appreciation for Explorers who
assisted and participated in a recent Veteran's Day event for the VFW. In
appreciation, the VFW has sent certificates to acknowledge their community service
during the event. Please join us in presentation of the awards for their service, to:

Connor McReynolds
Shea Bendykowski
Morgan Donnelly
Brady Reynolds
Adam Webb

Mitch Vincent

Izaac Garcia
Andrei Smith

Adam Rodarte
Jordan Chavez
Lucy Goode
Andrew Mitchell
Trevor Ziets

Nolan Havens
Zach Jones

SUMMARY:

The Staff joins the Board in acknowledging the extraordinary efforts of these members.

Page 1 of 1

H:\Wdy Documents\BOARDMCTION ITEMSWORMS\ADMINISTRATION - ABBOTT\Gonsen! Hem Board Repan Tempiste - Abbott. docx

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -5



Januar y 22,2019 - Regular Board Meeting




TO: BOARD OfF DIRECTORS

FROM: STEPHEN ABBOTT, FIRE CHIEF/CEQ AND B/S STEPHEN-PORTER

DATE: JANUARY 22, 2019

SUBJECT: EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION PROGRAM REPORT — SELECTION OF INDIVIDUALS
ACTION AGENDA
RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends the Board select individual(s) to be recognized for their efforts during
the Third and Fourth Quarter of 2018.

BACKGROUND:

in 2007, the Board instituted a Program designed to recognize excellent performance by
members of the organization. On a quarterly basis, the Board selects employees to be
recognized, based on feedback received during the quarter. The District has been
fortunate to receive positive feedback on a number of employees’ activities this past
quarter, upon which they may make their selection from the individuals and groups below.

SECOND QUARTER RECOGNITION — INFORMATION RECEIVED ON INDIVIDUALS:

For the Third and Fourth Quarter of 2018, the Board received information on the foliowing
individuals/crews for their outstanding efforts:

e BOARD RECOGNITION PROGRAM:

* NoveMBER 10, 2018 LETTER FROM TRUCKEE MEADOWS COMMUNITY COLLEGE RE:
Captain Mattarollo

« NOVEMBER 2 AND OCTOBER 14, 2018 EMAIL AND LETTER RE: MEDICAL RESCUE EFFORTS:
Captain John Choi

» UNDATED CARD RE: EFFORTS BEYOND MEDICAL RESCUE

Captain Rees FF/PM Moore
Engineer FF/PM Spencer
Mclnerny EMT Castellanc

+ JuLy 9, 2018 — EmAIL RE: RESCUE OFF-DUTY: Engineer Pete August
*  JUNE 6, 2018 THANK You NOTE:
MA 111:

P Eugenia Hoch
EMT Nick Tusa

January 22, 2019Ragketpillar Board Meeting Page -7



BOARD OF DIRECTORS — EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION
JANUARY 22, 2019
PAGE 2 OF 2

» UNDATED THANK YOU CARD:

Engine 111: MA 111;
Captain Garing FF/PM Lian
Engineer Craven EMT Pena

FF/PM DeBrauwere

FISCAL ANALYSIS:

The previous quarter awards are within budgetary standards.
SUMMARY:

The Staff joins the Board in acknowledging the extraordinary efforts of these members
and requests the Board select three individuals/groups/crews for recognition at the
Regular February Board Meeting to stay within budgetary standards.

January 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting Page -8



November 10, 2018

North County Fire Protection District
Fire Chief Stephen Abbott

330 South Main Avenue

Fallbrook CA 92028-2938

Chief Abbott, it has been quite a long time since we last spoke or saw one another. This afternoon, Fire
Captain Mattarollo and his crew responded to a call from my wife while she was experiencing chest
pain. This incident was particularly difficult as she is down there taking care of family after the
unexpected loss of a family member, and | am here at our home in Virginia City, Nevada.

Captain Mattarollo spoke with me on the phone via facetime while the crew took care of attending to
my wife. [ had asked the Captain if you stilt worked for the district and he informed me that you are now
the Fire Chief. | told Captain Mattarollo that you and | worked together many years ago and he said,
“Oh, then you are family.” | cannot teli you how incredibly reassuring that statement was in such a time.
Captain Mattarollo and his crew went above and beyond for my wife and kept me informed throughout
the incident and transport of my bride to the hospital.

Steve, would you please convey my heartfelt appreciation and gratitude to Captain Mattarolio and his
crew for their incredible professionalism, compassion and care for my wife. She has only moments ago
arrived at the hospital, but | could not wait to write this to you in thanks for your personnel and agency
toward a brother firefighter. Be well my friend and thank you for leading such a fine group of
professionals.

Sincerely,

4
it Lt

Darryl Cleveland, MA, LP, CFO
Director of Public Safety

The TMCC Paramedic program S i
is accredited by the Division of Sciences

Commission on Accreditation of Public Safety Department Office

Allied Health Education 18600 Wedge Pkwy, Bldg B #124, Reno, NV 89511
Programs (www.caahep.org}

upon the recommendation of

the Committee on

Accreditation of Educational

Programs for the Emergency

Medical Services Professions

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting

oy

Page -9



Loren Steehen-Porter

From: Kevin Mahr

Sent: Friday, November 2, 2018 10:21 AM

To: Stephen Abbott; Steve Marovich; Loren Stephen-Porter
Cc: John Choi; Greg Wilson; Greg Mann

Subject: FW: Off duty assistance from Cpt John Choi

Hi John,

Please see the recognition email below and thank you for your ongoing and outstanding representation of NCFPD and
the Fire Service.

Great Work John

Kevin Mahr

Division Chief — Operations

North County Fire Protection District
330 S. Main Ave

Fallbrook, CA 92028

760-723-2015 {Office)

760-802-4181 {Cell)

Kevin,

Please see the email below regarding one of your Captains actions while off duty. Captain Hardy was very impressed
with his command of the scene and ability to coach the victims friends in how to perform CPR. Please pass along a huge
thank you to Captain Choi from Carlsbad Fire.

Nick

Sent from my iPhone

E101 responded to a motorcycle collision today on Carlsbad Bivd in front of the power plant. | wanted
to express the sincere gratitude and pride from our crew and our agency for the service Captain John
Choi provided on scene prior to our arrival.

Captain Choi was absolutely handling the scene when we arrived. The scene was dramatic with many
bystanders, several of which were the patients friends who just witnessed the tragic accident right in
front of them. Traffic was busy on the blvd, and the patient was in CPR status with serious traumatic
injuries. John took charge of the scene and had bystanders working for him with people rotating
through “quality” compressions that he coached them on, maintaining spinal stabilization and really just
handling business with a professional demeanor, and clear decisive direction to do the best they could
to give this young man a chance to survive. The friends of the patient will absolutely have better peace
of mind looking back that their friend was given immediate quality care as opposed to how much more
tragic and heipless they might have felt had Choi and the other bystanders not did what they did.

1

January 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting Page —-10



(" Gity of
C&rlsltt)ya(():l

Fire Department

Oct. 14, 2018

North County Fire Protection

This is a letter of recognition for exceptional service provided by Captain John Choi while off
duty in Carlsbad

E101 responded to a motorcycle collision today on Carisbad Blvd in front of the power plant. | wanted
to express the sincere gratitude and pride from our crew and our agency for the service Captain John
Choi provided on scene prior to our arrival.

Captain Choi was absolutely handling the scene when we arrived. The scene was dramatic with many
bystanders, several of which were the patient’s friends who just witnessed the tragic accident right in
front of them. Traffic was busy on the blvd, and the patient was in CPR status with serious traumatic
injuries. John took charge of the scene and had bystanders working for him with people rotating
through “quality” compressions that he coached them on, maintaining spinal stabilization and really just
handling business with a professional demeanor, and clear decisive direction to do the best they could
to give this young man a chance to survive. The friends of the patient will absolutely have better peace
of mind looking back that their friend was given immediate quality care as opposed to how much more
tragic and helpless they might have felt had Choi and the other bystanders not did what they did.

Again, we were ail very impressed with the quality leadership and direction Captain Choi provided at this
incident, he truly gave this young man his best chance of survival and clearly demonstrated to the crowd
of onlookers that he was receiving immediate quality care. The young man did not survive, but he truly

did receiye exceptional care, Thank you John!
~Z %/;_Z'f -
Lalb -

Station 1/B

Carlsbad Fire Department
Steve Hardy

Fire Captain

City of Carlsbad

2560 Orion Way

Carlsbad, CA 92010
www.carlsbadca.gov

Fire Department
2560 Orion Way | Carlsbad, CA 92010 T 760-931-2141 | F 760-929-0256 | www.carlsbadfire.org

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -11



Again, we were all very impressed with the quality leadership and direction Captain Choi provided at this
incident, he truly gave this young man his best chance of survival and clearly demonstrated to the crowd
of onlookers that he was receiving immediate quality care. The young man did not survive, but he truly
did receive exceptional care, Thank you John!

Station 1/8

_City of
Cé(rlsbad

Fire Department
Steve Hardy

Fire Captain

City of Carlsbad
2560 Orion Way
Carlsbad, CA 92010

www .carlsbadca.gov

2

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -12



We  wee e oo woidy

Kron gob s T 2o i
o~ Cmeyo Re Treaks Sor

C&Y‘C (J(‘l Moy dDO‘Q )df[(—[k%
Whoj' L”IOM,Q,L '

ds Welp  wlhie D hed o

hinde + o Al and losche
rwv}__ backe. g \ T3 pr_~ m&l
U o KA ok
7. Rees
s mdwﬂr'm}'
f,f %v;o:;*i _ oep sTenceR

T (astallare ~ RoBeer casTellanie

January 22, 2019 - Reqular Board Meeting Page -13



Loren SteEhen-Porter

From: Greg Wilson

Sent: Monday, July 9, 2018 9:46 AM

To: Stephen Abbott; Loren Stephen-Porter
Cc: Fred Schoenheit

Subject: Pete August

Chief Abbott,

Thursday afternoon (7/5) | received a phone call from Captain Nate Pearson with the Carlsbad FD. Nate is serving as the
manager for Carlsbad’s Beach Lifeguard program.

That afternoon while on vacation with his family at Carlsbad by the Sea, Pete August was on the beach and witnessed a
middle age man in the ocean collapse in waist to chest deep water. Pete reacted immediately by entering the surf and

pulling the man from the water. Carlsbad lifeguards arrived on scene and Pete continued to assist with patient care and
stabilization. It's presumed that the man experienced a seizure.

While a seizure on terra firma is typically not a life threatening event, a seizure in the ocean is another matter entirely. In
any case, Pete’s actions were vital to a positive outcome for this individual. Captain Pearson wanted to recognize Pete
for his efforts but in typical firefighter fashion Pete dismissed its significance.

Pete August exemplifies the character of the members of NCF and | believe he should be recognized for his actions even
though he may feel its not necessary.

Greg Wilson

Battalion Chief

North County Fire Protection District
330 South Main Ave

Fallbrook, CA 92028

760-845-2886

1

January 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting Page ~14



Do the s of Q—%M b, L0/8
Near (/uz(b dbpeth,

o with et kel o tan
wﬁuﬁ%% ﬁﬁa% (Frld)
/‘CZM’/L/M;-—/&W«-L& M}M””f_f

MZW Lo pack, Ao, GO
. /3_, {Jngf /ZCC @’ﬁ%{ﬁ/ 7‘(;;./1..;.
U nyﬁ-éd&c caie. Wl ,ffm{né{
the hand-oyf %Zm A
/@fz.ﬁgﬁé( AAalto 4 /ﬂdﬁzwé
/ﬁd’/)‘wf&% .//24 L % éz{c ‘ﬁ?{ éz-frz./gxg
£.10 urn Eoptrdio, o
ﬁ-ﬁg J/&m/d{, nL- /) 1id b
Nisk /ﬁszi% aﬁﬁ%@/ g lied,
A0 G.latin. b5 Yy /@'zrcid,ééﬂ/‘_
ﬂmi y Uiu*atg A %%ﬂw care! ¥
Lach K Bire,

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -15



Page —16

January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meeting



W W ~N O G kW N =

N N N N =2 A - A a8 = = - e

December 11, 2018

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF

THE NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

President Luevano called the meeting to order at 5:00.

THE INVOCATION GIVEN BY DEPUTY CHIEF MAROVICH.

ALL RECITED THE PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.

ROLL CALL:

Present: Directors Harris, Hoffman, Luevano, Munson and Van Doorn.

Absent: None.

Staff Present: Fire Chief/CEO Abbott, Attorney James and Board Secretary Stephen-
Porter. In the audience were: DFC Marovich, D/C Mahr, B/Cs Krumwiede, McReynolds,

Schoenheit and Wilson, FM Koch and members of the public and Association.

PUBLIC ACTIVITIES AGENDA
1. PusLic COMMENT: President Luevano addressed the audience and inquired whether
there were any public comments regarding items not on the Agenda. Mr. George Maverick
addressed the Board about being placed on a future agenda to discuss the possibility that |
the District would support him in approaching the State of California regarding the
implementation of fire bunkers, either individual or community bunkers. A discussion ensued
regarding whether Mr. Maverick had been in discussion with the Chief regarding the matter.
Mr. Maverick indicated he had only spoken with the Fire Safe Council. Mr. Maverick
requested the Board decide regarding whether the Board would support his position with the
State that fire bunkers are necessary. The Board indicated further study would be required
before any support could be given and suggested Chief Abbott investigate whether this is a
topic for consideration by the Board. Chief Abbott will respond back to Mr. Maverick.
Chief Abbott brought forward a late agenda item that had some urgency to it regarding a
request for a leave of absence for an employee recently suffering a medical emergency.
Because he is heavily sedated, he cannot request the leave himself, so the District, along

with the Association, is proactively requesting it on his behalf. On a motion by Director

North County Fire Protection District
Board of Directors - Regular Meeting Minutes
December 11, 2018 — Page 1 of 7

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page ~17




30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58

Harris, seconded by Vice President Luevano, the Board unanimously determined the matter
arose after the publishing of the Agenda. On a motion by Director Harris, seconded by Vice
President Luevano, the Board unanimously determined the matter is time sensitive and
should be added to the Agenda as ltem number 10.1. There being no further comments,
the Public Comment Section was closed.

2. RECOGNITION OF RETIRING EMPLOYEES — CHIEF ABBOTT: Chief Abbott presented |
Captain Delgado to the Board for recognition of his many years of service to the District,
noting his accomplishments while serving in his capacities, including his different roles and
ranks. Captain Delgado thanked everyone for his time here and spoke of his experiences |
and giving recognition to his family for his successes. He was congratulated and wished |

well in his future endeavors, as well as presented with a retirement bell.

ACTION AGENDA

PRIORITY ACTION ITEMS:

3. OFFICIAL SEATING AND SWEARING-IN OF NEw BOARD MEMBERS — CHIEF ABBOTT AND

DisTRICT COUNSEL JAMES: Chief Abbott noted the District had received confirmation that
Directors Munson and Van Doorn have been certified as elected. District Counsel James
swore the Directors into office. Both Directors were congratulated by Staff and seated

Directors in aftendance.

4, BOARD ELECTIONS OF OFFICERS FOR 2019 — CHIEF ABBOTT AND COUNSEL JAMES: Chief

Abbott informed those present that this is the time of the year the Board is to select officers
for the coming year. The new officers are to assume office at the end of the meeting.
President Munson turned the meeting over to District Counsel for the election of the officers.
District Counsel James called for nominations for President, with Director Harris nominating
Director Luevano, which was seconded by Director Hoffman. Director Luevano accepted
the nomination. There being no further nominations, Director Luevano was elected to
President for the year 2019. District Counsel! qsked for nominations for the election for Vice
President. Director Luevano nominated Director Hoffman, which nomination was declined.
Thereafter, Director Hoffman nominated Director Harris, which was seconded by Director

North County Fire Protection District
Board of Direcfors - Regular Mesting Minutes
December 11, 2018 — Page 2 of 7

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page —18




59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66

67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85

Luevano. As there were no other nominations for Vice President, Director Harris was !
elected to Vice President for the year 2019.
CONSENT ITEMS:

REVIEW AND ACCEPT REGULAR BOARD MEETING FOR OCTOBER 23, 2018

REVIEW AND ACCEPT SPECIAL BOARD MEETING FOR OCTOBER 24, 2018

REVIEW AND ACCEPT FINANCIAL REPORT FOR DECEMBER 2018

4
5
6. REVIEW AND ACCEPT REGULAR BOARD MEETING FOR DECEMBER 4, 2018
7
8

REVIEW AND ACCEPT POLICIES & PROCEDURES — NONE
On a motion by Vice President Harris, seconded by Director Hoffman, the motion to approve |
the Consent Agenda ltems 4-8 passed by the following vote: Ayes: Directors Harris,

Hoffman, Luevano and Munson; Abstain: Van Doorn.

ACTION ITEMS:

9. APPROVE REVISED MEETING SCHEDULE FOR NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

BOARD MEETINGS FOR THE YEAR 2019 — CHIEF ABBOTT AND BI/S STEPHEN-PORTER: B/S

Stephen-Porter informed the Board that after approval of the meeting schedule for 2019, :
several meeting dates were identified as being inadvertently mis-identified. |n addition, the
Board had discussed as a trial, beginning the meetings at a new start time of 4:00 p.m.
Accordingly, the new schedule was presented for approval. On a motion by Vice President

Harris, seconded by Director Hoffman, the motion to approve the revised meeting schedule

for 2019 passed unanimously.

10. REVIEW AND ACCEPT FINANCIAL AUDIT FOR FY 2017/2018 — DEPUTY CHIEF MAROVICH AND |
CHIEF_ABBOTT: Chief Marovich informed the Board the Nigro & Nigro Accountants
conducted the Annual Audit for the District for Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2017. A |
representative was present to review the audit with the Board and provide insight into the
financial status of the District. He noted the Finance Department has undergone some major
changes to improve procedures, which have resulted in an on-time, clean audit. Discussion

ensued regarding [1] the District's net position increased $2,299,699 as a result of this year's

Nosth County Fire Protection District
Board of Directors - Regular Meeting Minutes
December 11, 2018 — Page 3 of 7

January 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting Page -19




86 operations; [2] total revenues from all sources increased by 11.5%, or $2,043,379 from |

87 $17,855,597 to $19,898,976, from the prior year, primarily due to increases in charges for
88 services of $484,379, mitigation fees of $624,614, and property taxes of $733,498; [3] total
89 expenses for the District's operations increased by 0.10% or $173,914 from $17,425,363 to
90 $17,599,277, from the prior year, primarily due to increases in operations, mainly increases
91 in salaries and benefits; and [4] the District purchased new capital assets during the year in
92 the amount of $1,971,163. Depreciation expense was $827,385. Chief Abbott
93 acknowledged the hard work of the Finance Department to prepare for the audit and for
94 update in systems throughout the year. On a motion by Director Van Doorn, seconded by |
95 Director Hoffman, the motion to accept the Annual Audit for the FY ending June 20, 2017, |
96 passed unanimously. |
97 10.1. REQUEST FOR GRANTING OF LEAVE OF ABSENCE AND PERMISSION TO ALLOW DONATION
98 OF LEAVE — CHIEF ABBOTT: Chief Abbott briefly explained the reasons for granting a leave
99 of absence and allowing donation of leave to a probationary employee who was suddenly
100 taken very ill. It is anticipated that he will be unable to return to work in the near future and
101 as he is probationary, has little leave time accumulated. Chief Abbott and the Association
102 have been in conversations regarding how to assist the employee, with this request being |
103 posed as a solution. Due to the sudden and severe onset of his iliness, Chief Abbott posited
104 that under the extenuating circumstance, the Board may use its discretion to allow the
105 request. On a motion by Director Harris, seconded by Director Hoffman, the motion to grant
106 a temporary eight week leave of absence through the end of January, with an extension up
107 to one year, to be granted at the discretion of the Fire Chief/CEO passed unanimously.
108
109 DISCUSSION AGENDA |
110 11.  LONG-RANGE FINANCIAL PLAN — DEPUTY CHIEF MAROVICH AND CHIEF ABBOTT: Several |
111 months ago, the District engaged Raftelis in order to develop a long-range financial plan with

North County Fire Protection District g
Board of Directors ~ Regular Meeting Minutes I
December 11, 2018 — Paga 4 of 7 i

January 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting Page —20



112 the goals of. ensuring sufficient cash flows for daily and yearly operations and capital
113 repiacement, serving as a basis for establishing minimum fund levels, serving as a long-
114 range planning tool, maintaining or achieving suitable credit ratings and integrating
115 information into a future strategic plan. The tool developed by Raftelis incorporates current
116 District finances to illustrate three different potential financial scenarios. Chief Abbott
117 inquired whether a Board workshop was desirable in order to broaden the Board's overview '
118 so that it may have time to contemplate the findings in preparation for more detailed future l
119 discussions. It was the consensus of the Board to have the Board Secretary identify a time
120 in early January for the presentation and further discussions.
121
122 STANDING DISCUSSION ITEMS: .
123 L LEGAL COUNSEL REPORT: Counsel James presented his report “Writings
124 Concerning Public Business Are Public Records — Even If They Are Sent, Received or Store
125 on An Employee’s Personal Email, Phone or Computer.” Brief discussion ensued regarding
126 the ramifications of using individual, rather than District resources for email, etc. This is
127 informational only, no action required.
128 d WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS: Brief discussion ensued regarding the items,
129 Informational only, no action required.
130 ® NEWS ARTICLES: Brief discussion ensued regarding articles. This is informational
131 only, no action required.
132 e COMMENTS:
133 J STAFF REPORTS/UPDATES: !
134 L STEPHEN ABBOTT, FiRE CHIEF/CEQ: Chief Abbott noted the results from the GEMT
135 audit, opining the District's accounting was accurate and that the District found the right
136 advisers and advocates. He congratulated Deputy Chief Marovich and FS/HR Specialist
137 Juul for traveling to Sacramento to see the hearing completed. Chief Abbott brought the .'
138 Board up-to-date on the Community Outreach efforts, including Facebook Live, |
139 presentations, community feedback and concerns expressed in presentations that the
North County Fire Protection District

Board of Directors — Regular Meeting Minutes
December 11, 2018 —Page 5of 7

January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meeting Page -21



140 Healthcare District should be assisting with funding for District efforts. Chief Abbott informed |

141 the Board that revision of the Board of Directors Operations Policy is underway and will be
142 presented for approval at an upcoming meeting. Chief Abbott informed the Board that North
143 Comm approved participating in a new joint dispatch facility study with the City and County
144 of San Diego. Discussion are underway at the County to bring all dispatch under one facility.
145 Chief Abbott discussed the positive and negative realities of one facility. Finally, Chief
146 Abbott thanked the Board for his recent bonus, but respectfully declined to accept it.
147 Informational only, no further action required.

148 & CHIEF OFFICERS AND OTHER STAFF: DEPUTY CHIEF MAROVICH: Deputy Chief Marovich
149 congratulated his staff for their efforts, noting the fantastic work they had performed
150 throughout the year. DI/C MaHR: D/C Mahr informed the Board Operations is workingona |
151 new staffing program they will be evaluating. Labor, Operations have been working together |
152 to fine-tune the necessary policies and expect to implement them in January. He also
153 provided an update on the new Type 3 engine status. FM Koch: FM Koch updated the
154 Board on the Fire Safe Council and CERT activities.

155 ® BoARD: DIRECTOR HOFEMAN: Director Hoffman suggested using volunteers to assist
156 with weed mitigation efforts. Brief discussion ensued.

157 ® BARGAINING GROUPS: A/P PRESIDENT MANN: A/P President Mann welcome new
158 Board Director Van Doorn. He noted the Volunteer Program has sixteen new volunteers, |
159 none of which have fire training. Captain Choi will be leading their first training this weekend.
160 A/P President Mann thanked the Board for being flexible for the ailing Association member
161 in permitting the LOA and donation of leave.

162 ¢ PusLic COMMENT: No comments.

163

164 CLOSED SESSION

165 Chief Abbott reported there was no needed for a Closed Session this meeting, therefore
166 Closed Session was not held.

167

168

North County Fire Protection District
Board of Directors — Regular Meeting Minutes
December 11, 2018 — Page 6 of 7

January 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting Page -22



169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197

ADJOURNMENT
A motion was made at 6:55 p.m. by Director Hoffman and seconded by Director Harris to

adjourn the meeting and reconvene on January 22, 2019, at 4:00 p.m. The motion carried
unanimously.

Respectfully submitted,

Loren Stephen-Porter

Board Secretary i

Minutes approved at the Board of Director's Meeting on: January 22, 2019

North County Fire Protection District i
Board of Directors — Regular Meeling Minutes |
December 11, 2018 — Page 7 of 7 I

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -23



Januar y 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting

Page —24



O o ~N OO o AW N -

N N N =2 a a2 a3 el =S A -

January 14, 2019

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
THE NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
President Luevano called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m.
THE INVOCATION GIVEN BY DEPUTY CHIEF MAROVICH.
ALL RECITED THE PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.

ROLL CALL:
Present: Directors Harris, Hoffman, Luevano, Munson and Van Doorn.
Absent: None.

Staff Present: Fire Chief/CEO Abbott, Attorney James and Board Secretary Stephen-
Porter. In the audience were: DFC Marovich, D/C Mahr, B/C Wilson, FM Koch and members

of the Association.

PUBLIC ACTIVITIES AGENDA
1. PuBtic COMMENT: President Luevano addressed the audience and inquired whether
there were any public comments regarding items not on the Agenda. There being no

comments, the Public Comment Section was closed.

ACTION AGENDA
2. LONG-RANGE FINANCIAL PLANNING WORKSHOP WITH RAFTELIS — DEPUTY CHIEF MAROVICHAND
CHIEF ABBOTT: Chief Abbott introduced the topic and reminded the Board and Staff of the
nature of the work being performed by the Raftelis. Chief Abbott introduced Habib Issac
from Raftelis, who made the presentation to the Board. Mr. Issac reviewed the financial
status of the District using known financial data and using predictive information through the
year 2030, noting that the District is able to adequately meet ongoing operational expenses,
however, when taking into account facility improvement and replacement needs, it would
require an additional operating funding of about 2 million per year. Mr. Issac presented three
scenarios to the Board to meet the goals of the District of ensuring a positive net income, |

meeting debt coverage, developing a model reserve policy and a stabie financial plan model. _

North County Fire Protection District
Board of Directors — Special Meeting Minutes
January 14, 2019 — Page 1 of 2

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page —25




30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58

The three models included the recommended course of action, a course of action in a
booming economy and a course of action in an economic downturn. In depth discussion
ensued. Chief Abbot noted that the models do not take into consideration savings from
ambulance staffing conversion nor adjusting facility expectations, which reduces this
shortfall by half. The Board requested the Staff start incorporating community feedback into
the financial plan, begin adjusting the financial reserve policy and start developing short term
objectives. Chief Abbott noted the Board would have a better idea regarding direction on a

bond by Friday, when results from the survey would be available for review.

DISCUSSION AGENDA

There were no Discussion ltems for the January 14, 2019 Board meeting.

STANDING DISCUSSION ITEMS:
o COMMENTS:

CHIEF OFFICERS AND OTHER STAFF: No comments.

BOARD: No comments.
BARGAINING GROUPS: No comments.

PuBLIC COMMENT: No comments.

ADJOURNMENT
A motion was made at 3:12 p.m. Director Hoffman and seconded by Vice President Harris |

to adjourn the meeting and reconvene on January 22, 2019, at 4:00 p.m. The motion carried

unanimously.

Respectfully submitted,

Loren Stephen-Porter

Board Secretary

Minutes approved at the Board of Director's Meeting on: January 22, 2019

North County Fire Protection District
Board of Directors - Special Mesling Minutes
January 14, 2019 — Page 2 of 2

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -26




NORTH COUNTY FIRE

PROTECTION DISTRICT
ADMINISTRATION - BUDGET & FINANCE

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FROM: DFC CHIEF STEVEN MAROVICH, HR/FS CHERIE JUUL AND CHIEF ABBOTT
DATE: DeceMBER 31, 2018

[+)
SUBJECT: REVENUE & EXPENDITURES AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2018 (50%)

Revenue Sources Budgeted Collected OverfUnder | % of Budget
Property Taxes - FBK 14,732,530.00 5,805,842.92 (8,926,687.08) 39%
Property Taxes - RNBW 275,000.00 106,471.05 (236,911.29) 39%
Ambulance and Collections 1.902,500.00 953,488.00 (949,012.00) 50%
GEMT-State Supplement 100,000.00 - (100,000.00) 0%
Prevention Fees 200,000.00 142.098.76 (57,901.24) 1%
Tower Lease Agreements 90,000.00 4391362 (46,086.38) 49%
Other Revenue Sources 35,000.00 78,252.12 43,252.12 224%
Interest 30,000.00 5,5651.14 (24.448 86) 19%
Cost Recovery 70,000.00 38,257.69 (31,742.31) 55%
Community Facilities District (CFD) 68,966.00
Strike Team Reimbursements 121,780.00 94 905 .65 (26,874.35) -
Other Reimbursements 374,162.00 25,090.87 (348,071.13) 7%
Mitigation Fees & Interest - FBK 250,000.00 189,633.73 (60,366.27) 76%
Mitigation Fees & Interest- RNBW - 3.91 391 -
Donations & Grants 628,090.00 97.451.00 (530,639.00) 16%
Annexation fees - - - -
Transfers & Loans - - - 0%
Total Revenue: 18,878,028.00 7,580,960.46 | (11,297,067.54) 40%j
Budgeted Spent Over/Under | % of Budget
TTL Expenditures YTD thru12-31-2018 17,825,074.00 7,664,811.62 | (10,160,262.38)] 43%
Revenue over Expenditures (83,851.16)
January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page —27




JuUBWIsINQUNAL apiaoad s 3uelS y34vs

%OEE 879709101 00'bLO'STS'LL  TOLISPIYL _ ST6S0°090' IVLOLIGNVH.)

Page -28

yuawdmby epnde) jejo], 002

00°000°007 - - JA1953Y puny |e43udp) [e10] OZT
00°058°701 0S°LYO'p1 0S'L6L Buurea ] [e1o] 601
00°09T'+P€ LS EISOET £9°981°€7 asueunuiep/doys [e)o ], 80T
00'6££°SS9 1L96L°T8T ISEEE'S suonEdNUNWWO)) [E)0], LOT
00°000'1€ 09°6PLVT 00°S0L‘81 SIAI3SAY [€)0L 90T
 %I0F  IEYEr'86 00°8ST'¥91 69°€18'S9 £5°780'81 SIAS PO Aduddioury [&r0], SOT
- STIEE6LI 00°816°9Z€ SL'98S'LPT £9°S8T'Y sa21A13g Louadiowy [eJ0L HOT
- II'PLT'IL 00°ZEF°08 PeLST‘S 68'908 uonuAALg 311 [9)IOL €0T
 PP6SS09L 00°0Z1°¢S1°1 95°095°76¢ £E6E1°9L uoneAISINIPY [€)0], 20T
 6SPEI'LIT 00°006'87€ I7°S9LTII 1S°610' uonpeNsIUIWpPY paeog [e10], TOT

- 10°SSI°1S6°L 00°L66°LEV'FT 66°118°98%°9 0r"000°'906 TANNOSYAd TVLOL

pPIs] % Zuiusnoy 198png fenuuy  {ejo] surmuny] {EN)IV J3QUIIAON uonduiasaqg

Junowy

1o3png Jo 9,08
8107 "1 € Joquiada( JuIpug YIUON ISI1] 3y} JOf
JOUIS1( U0I193J01d a1 AUN0)) YUoN

January 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting



%60'¢ 9SBaIOU| ADY JON
Cvpl8285°C | £V PL8T9S'S @z /0L'SSL'S | 82/91'SSL'S | ¥9'S/90S 26'2v3'509'S QLA VL1OL
£V LPTTE6'EL | 6 LEV'SS 82 /91'S5L' -

PO'OLE'OEE'EL | 89282142 gzloL'sss's | - 2L | siozeLL
oL Li0's2L'eL | ovieLsiz gzioL'ssL's | - i | siozsue
9r'6ve'906'cL | 2Z'190'89¢'L 87 291'SSL'S - oL | eioz8es
S BRZ'EELTL | LG LLE'ObL gzloL'ssL's | - 6 6102/08/¥
£0'LLE'1L86' L | 20°9E1'820'E gzio1'ssL's | - 8 6L0Z/LIP
- - - - BLOZILIE
96 ¥EZ'C06'8 | £0°'866'SVE 8T LOL'GEL'S - 2 6LOZILIZ
6gocTrles | ovzecien's szoL'ssL's | - 9 6L0ZILIL
chvi928s's | sre0e'sos'y gzioL'ssL's | oeese'zosy | LzTisol L9TLQELL'Y s | a0z
86'795'v20'L | 06°989'2¢9 8EL08°760's | ZETHE'C09 | LL'SEL'LL £ L1029 v | s1ozoe01
80'8:0'9zy | 62°060'L¥1 o0'ses'sby | LzoEL'siL | 9686l £Z'816'¥61 ¢ 8L0Z/L/0L

6182682 | 8500222 BLYETELZ | EL9vL'TY S5 0PY'E 87285'%9 z 8102/1/6
\Z'425'802 12'L25'802 90'880'LLZ | 90'880°1lZ | 5Z'660'L 1S 281L'2LT L 81L0Z/L/8

wuﬁzh_m L3N 8U/Lb A wﬂuﬁ_ﬁ 13N 64/81 A4 m.wzwh‘hmu__,.uwm‘q SSONO #ddv | 31va

61-81 Ad sjuswuonuoddy xe]
LORLSIA NOILDILO¥d FxId ALNNOD HLYON

Page -29

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting



%Sz L aseaIdU| ASY J8N
GSLeTv0L | SS L2z vOL 2825501 | ¥2'825'S0L | L8'ev6 S0'1.2+'901 QLA VLOL
6208097 | 6£420'L yzezs'soL | -

05'182'652 | 6v'968' vzges'soL | - z | siozeiL
10°S8€'352 LEELL'S vzges'sor | - i | eozsue
or1iz0sT | srzvise yz8ze's0L | - oL | eL0z/82ss
\0628'veZ | 65262°T vz8zs'soL | - 5 6L0Z/08 /Y
eriss'ce | ozesl'es prges'sor | - 8 BLOZ/MIY
9L'EvE'90L . yzazs'sol | - 6LOZILIE
oLeve'asl | 69°08¢'9 yz8es'soL | - L BLOZ/LIZ
12296'651 2L VEL'SS yzges'soL | - 9 61021/
sgeZvoL | 682088 pz'gzs's0L | SLzel'es | csel 85°06€'08 s | soznr

91'526'61 v1200'2) 60'96E'6L | 951801l | ovoze 20°'80¥'1 1 v | srozioeion
Zv'2e6'L Sv'819'Z ecvszs | esoszs | seese v1E8s'E g 8L02/L/0L
L6°C08' 8LEEV' vo'c20's  |oozEi'L | leb gc /L'l z 8102/1/6
61°048' 610,8' 86'08g'c | seose's | ozoz 81'L06° 1 81L02/L/8

wuﬁzhx 13N 8L/LL Ad wﬂuwﬁw_ 13N 6L/8L A4 mwzmm%hwh“.m,q ssouo | #adv | 3iva

61-81 Ad sjusuwuonsoddy xe)
L1O1¥1S1Ad NOILD3L0¥d Fdid MOGNIVY

Page -30

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting



AT YA abueyd anuarey MeN %ESL abuzy2 /v 10N

ZTrsveLe $9°099°268 01°806'65 51°894'€56 L9PIE L6 £0ZL9'L ZLUEL0'PLZ 66'968°TrL’L | Zv066'82Z'L | pLOEB'ZOS') 91’128 I1eLT AVLOL
I BrEsil z - 6L 008°LL1 E 8LOZ/0E/9
94 8VZ 261 - - P BIE ¥EL BLOZ/LESS
08°9Z9'LEL - B SE'EEL'Z8L B 8LOZ/0E/Y
99°EL6 /11 - - 6V ¥56 802 8LOZ/LE/E
6 EBE'ETH 2 9596 PS5l 210z/8212
81 518'/91 = 90985581 - 8LO0Z/LE/L
68 06K EEL 8b PES 9EL 695858 2L 025svL | 82 80P TEL SEOEY'ER Or [B8'Z0Z | €OPP8'LZZ | £F 0BB'GET 90'SZ8 Cot ILOZILER)
TT 061 PrL ¥1 /6S 851 ZE EVE'6 90 LPSUOL | ¢t 626481 E 6Z2°9C9'F 15 pBL Ol 18G19'ZE2 | ¢€ 90F'292 £6 LZ0'S6Y 210Z/02/11
6% ZE6 051 YO PIS ELL 96 298 0L 00 LSP'PBL | QL egoerl |prLiGE 8V 0612 6Z P12 281 ZOSPRZIL | 94 61295 8. P90 PEY 21L0Z/LEML
00 88F'621 £OPOE vPl 651506 SLOLPESL | Z0'BOC'PYL - 8106098 96 99.°24L GZa6e 08l | J696EELE 7Z 56.'€6E JATEAT
60 L6991 6156471 050682 SZ'999'SEE SPO8L Lt 62 960 L WO LvTLL 81 689'681 cF5ZG96L | L60ELL9Z 28952 95% 21021518
5L IpL 19 65954 2P eSS 6 60°8v1 991 SPS08'eal 0ZZP5S AT £9 ¥S6 922 90t9.€lZ | 62960 €42 o€ /68987 ZIVOZIVEIL
INNIAIY LIN INNIATH L3N §334 a3A3103d dvrdv  SONNd3Y SJ40-31MM 8l-LL A 6181 Ad  SNMOJ ILIRM  ad3ns HLNOW

8i1-21L Ad 6181 Ad ONITTIE S1IS0d3d 1930 ava ov oy AVNLOVHLNOD
IviolL ‘vi0oi

610Z2-810Z Ad ANNIA3H JONVINAWY

1904151d NOILD3LOYd Jdid ALNNOD HLYON

Page -31

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
MONTHLY INVESTMENT REPORT

December 31, 2018

BALANCE INTEREST

FALLBROOK RATE
County of San Diego/General Fund - FBK 2,225,064.16 0.01%  Operating
County of San Diego/General Fund - RNBW 67187947 0.01%  Operating
County of San Diego/Capital Reserve 385,127.18 0.01%  Capital Reserves
County of San Diego/Fire Mitigation Fund - FBK 286,056.14 0.01% Mitigation Fees
County of San Diego/Fire Mitigation Fund - RNBW 3,901.61 0.01% Mitigation Fees
Local Agency Investment Fund 19,40143 0.78% LAIF
Workers' Comp JPA 464,728.73 0.26%  PASIS Funds
Bank of America/PASIS 58,477.80 0.01%
First National/Benefit Fund 154,382.66 0.70%
First National/Payroll 567,582.52 0.70%
First National/Accounts Payable 135581.97 0.70%
First National/Accounts Receivable 53,177.98 0.70%
Pacific Western Bank/Accounts Receivable 2,745844.17  0.00%

- TOTAL 7,771,205.82

January 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting

Page —32



wo qnyAIan0331ay}

249092 ISEIIU| A3Y 19N

vL8VEOE 69°252'8¢ Irres‘s %ST 56 Lzeg'ly 00°202°0S Aviol
002:8°¢ w y iO/AIQ# 610¢/0E/9
09°65T°S e - i0INIQ# 6LOC/LE/S
00'8tE9 - - i0/AIQ# 61L02/0El?
8°sLe’L = s iO/INIO# 6L0zg/0L/e
ot'zee’L - - iO/NICH# 610¢/8¢/C
6699 - - iOINIO# 6L0cC/LE!L

0T LDS'E 08021y 0Z'0£0'L %0406 0o'LSL'S 00'629'6 8L0Z/LERL
¥9°99'S T'186'9 0E'srL'L %8096 76'92.'8 00'€80'6 8L0c/0L/LL
00 9g‘L 6E'€929 58’6951 %1586 tZ'628'L 00'8¥6°L 8L0c/LENL
SY'156'9 or'0£9'9 09°/59°4 %ccC L6 00'882'8 006258 8102/0E/6
0098Z'S 88'621°S I¥Z8T'L %.£°26 GEZLP'9 00Z¥6'9 810¢/0c/8
99°780°S 00'ZET'6 00'€8C'T %68 6 00'SL¥'LL 00°0£0'C1 gLog/Lel L
aNU3AdY ISN NUIAIY s994 [EIRET ) p9)o9jj0D panig yjuopy

8LiLL Ad }oN bung % QLA

6102/8102 Ad AMIAO0D3Y 1SOD
L1O141S10 NOILO3LO¥d Fid ALNNOD HLMON

Page -33

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting



DocDu;:;ent Document Number Vendor Name Transaction Description Document Amount
12/1/2018|MAHR/MAROVICH 19/21  |CALIFORNIA EMS AUTHORITY Mahr/Marovich Medic renew 400.00
12/1/2018|5TMT 12/2018 Employee Benefit Specialists, Inc. Dental/Vision/Life 8,97419
12/1/2018{STMT 12/2018 Harry J. Wilson Insurance Center LTD 12/2018 1,077.00
12/1/2018(0417565120118 TIME WARNER CABLE 12/11/18-1/10/19 §9.98
12/1/2018|PERMIT 12/18-12/19 County of San Diego DEH Facility permit 12/18-12/19 1,015.00
12/1/2018[INC, COMMANDER ROBERT DeCAMP Incident commander 128.00
12/1/2018|FSC4710 ROBERT DeCAMP It FSC4710 796.00
12/1/2018]35523658919 DIRECTV 12/1/18-12/31/18 14923
12/1/2018|1301152 MYERS-STEVENS & CO. INC. LTD 12/2018 632.50
12/1/2018/9452 Nigro & Nigro Audit services for FY17/18 11,700.00
12/1/2018)9657 Nigro & Nigro Audit services FY17/18 1,300.00
12/1/2018|STMT OF FACTS 12/18 Secretary of State Stmt of Facts 12/2018 1.00
12/1/2018{1884NCF121801 Strategy Research Institute Consulting fee 12/2018 4,600.00
12/1/2018|87485 UNIFORM SPECIALIST/ACE UNIFORMS S. Devine uniform 389.53
12/1/2018(9819369920 VERIZON WIRELESS 11/2/18-12/01/18 77.28
12/1/2018}000012271202 AT&T 11/01/18-11/30/18 397376
12/1/2018|095334956 XEROX - PASADENA 10/21/18-11/21/18 152.18
12/1/2018{095334957 XEROX - PASADENA 10/21/18-11/21/18 407.06
12/3/2018|11/7/18-12/3/18-003 FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTR 11/7/18-12/3/18 281.14
12/3/2018|11/7/18-12/3/18-002 FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTR 11/7/18-12/3/18 348.80
12/3/2018187529 UNIFORM SPECIALIST/ACE UNIFORMS Clarke uniform 400.35
12/4/2018|87566 UNIFORM SPECIALIST/ACE UNIFORMS Avila uniform 389.53
12/4/2018|87555 UNIFORM SPECIALIST/ACE UNIFORMS Bertotti uniform 389.53
12/5/2018[MEDIC CERT Enrique Jacobo Jacobo Medic reimb 1,000.00
12/5/2018|ORG 5100 MATHIEU LINDSEY ORG 5100 1,012.50
12/5/2018|STMT 12/5/2018 Fowler Pest Control Bi-monthly pest 270.00
12/5/2018|17294 BP Battery Lead acid battery 45.55
12/5/2018|87577 UNIFORM SPECIALIST/ACE UNIFORMS Carritlo uniform 39495
12/5/2018|XA290027313:01 VELOCITY TRUCK CENTERS Sensor OfF 69.94
12/6/2018753272 FALLBROOK PROPANE GAS CO. Propane Sta. 3 316.01
12/6/2018|87638 UNIFORM SPECIALIST/ACE UNIFORMS Castillo uniform 321.07
12/7/2018|PR AP 12/07/18 LINCOLN NATIONAL PR AP 12/07/18 2,186.78
12/7/2018|PR AP 12/07/18 FALLBROOK FIREFIGHTERS' ASSN PR AP 12/07/18 2,525.45
12/7/2018|PR 12/7/18 - SR DUES FALLBROOK FIREFIGHTERS' ASSN PR AP 12/7/18 36.27
12/7/2018|PR 12/7/18 FIREFIGHTERS LEG. ACTION GRP PR AP 12/7/18 92.00
12/7/2018|11677227 NIGEL FRANK INT'L USA GP consulting 130,00

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting

Page -34



12/7/2018

87650

UNIFORM SPECIALIST/ACE UNIFORMS Von Yokes uniform 400.35

12/8/2018112/9/18-1/8/18 AT&T U-VERSE 12/9/18-1/8/18 162.06
12/10/2018]0000240121018 TIME WARNER CABLE 12/20/18-1/19/19 149.95
12/10/2018]11/11/18-12/10/18 RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER DIST 11/11/18-12/10/18 14.81
12/10/2018|11/11/18-12/10/18-00 RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER DIST 11/11/18-12/10/18 140,00
12/10/2G18[11/11/18-12/10/18-02 RAINBOW MUNICIPAL WATER DIST 11/11/18-12/10/18 198.93
12/11/2018|26868 Signarama of San Marcos Helmet decals 12871
12/11/2018]ACLS RENEW 18-20 EUGENIA SOULIER ACLS renewal 150.00
12/12/2018|08L0036333755 READY FRESH 11/11/18-12/10/18 45.23
12/14/2018(1042672 Door Service Repair Door repair Sta. 6 261.00
12/14/2018| 1042673 Door Service Repair Door repair Sta. 5 23600
12/15/2018|STMT 12/15/18 FALLBROOK OIL COMPANY Fuel 12/1/18-12/15/18 2,900.86
12/15/2018}132321 Global CTI Global - Support 134.48
12/15/2018{STMT 12/15/18 LEGAL SHIELD Legal shield 12/15-1/15 597.15
12/17/2018(515 TSUNAMI PLUMBING Sta. 1 bathroom remodel 542728
12/18/2018|1887NCF121802 Strategy Research Institute 1st half of tracking poll 7,000.00
12/21/2018|PR AP 12/21/18 FALLBROOK FIREFIGHTERS' ASSN PR AP 12/21/18 2,527.50
12/21/2018§PR AP 12/21/18-SR FALLBROOX FIREFIGHTERS® ASSN PR AP 12/21/18 3393
12/21/2018|PR AP 12/21/18 FIREFIGHTERS LEG. ACTION GRP PR AP 12/21/18 92.00
12/21/2018|PR AP 12/21/18 LINCOLN NATIONAL PR AP 12/21/18 2,186.78
12/21/2018|PR 12/21/18 Tony Marchese PR 11/25/18-12/8/18 110.79
12/21/2018[11/19/18-12/19-18-15 SDG&E 11/19/18-12/19/18 3535
12/24/2018[11/26/18-12/20/18-37 SDG&E 11/20/18-12/20/18 88.18
12/26/2018| MEDIC RECERT 18-20 CHRIS CRAVEN Medic Recert 18-20 200.00
12/26/2018|5-231 ENG BOSS CHRIS CRAVEN $-231 Eng Boss 250.00

January 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting

Page —-35



January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meeting

Page

-36



TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FROM: STEPHEN ABBOTT, FIRE CHIEF/CEQ
DATE: JANUARY 22, 2019

SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

The following Policies and Procedures are being presented for review and approval:

1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS: OPERATIONS PoOLICY
Policy updated to new policies format. Housekeeping changes — updated sections
»  to reorganize for consistency, modified to reflect changes in the law, defined roles
for individuals.

Page 1 of 1
January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -37



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

PoLicy AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.01
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PAGE 1 OF 1
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OPERATIONS POLICY

1.0. PURPOSE:

1.1.  The purpose of this Policy is to clarify and supplement State law and to provide
specific rules for the actions of the Board of Directors of the North County Fire
Protection District of San Diego County, by a means that is fair, fiscally

conservative and protective of the interest of the people served by the North
County Fire Protection District.

2.0. POLICY:

2.1. ltis the Policy of the North County Fire Protection District to form, organize and
maintain a Board of Directors for the purposes of governing the provision of
services to the citizens served by the North County Fire Protection District.

2.2. This governing body shall function as prescribed in the Fire Protection District Law
of 1987 and other applicable state laws. The Board will maintain an official policy

from which the North County Fire Protection District shall be organized and
operated.

3.0. INTENT:

3.1. The provisions of these policies and proposals are to assist the Board of Directors
of the North County Fire Protection District as they administer and represent the
business and affairs of the North County Fire Protection District. It is the intent
and purpose of this directive to help clarify and define the responsibilities of the
elected officials (Directors) of the North County Fire Protection District.

3.2. Subsidiary Standard Operating Procedures:

3.2.1. Education and Expenses

3.2.2. Expenses of the District

3.2.3. Organization, Duties and Responsibilities
3.2.4. Elections and Terms

3.2.5. Committees and Other Organizations
3.2.6. Board Meetings

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page —38



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.011
BOARD Of DIRECTORS
STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES

BOARD EDUCATION AND EXPENSES

PAGE 10F 3

1.0. EDUCATION:

1.1.1.  The District may authorize its Directors and employees to attend professional
or vocational meetings and pay their actual and necessary traveling and
incidental expenses while on official business. Reimbursement for these
expenses is subject to the Government Code.

1.1.2. Board Members shall provide brief reports on meetings attended at the
expense of the local agency at the next regular meeting of the legislative body.

1.2. ETHICS TRAINING:

1.2.1.  Any Member Board who receives any type of compensation, salary, stipend
or reimbursement for actual and necessary expenses incurred in the
performance of actual duties shall have approved biennial ethics training.

1.2.2. DESIGNATED INDIVIDUALS:

12.2.1. Any employee designated by the local agency legisiative body who is
required to report on a Form 700 or as specified under the Government
Code, is required to receive training.

1.22.2. Each Member of the Board and specified employees shall attend
approved Biennial Ethics Training.

1.2.2.3. The District shall provide the Members of the Board with information
educational opportunities to satisfy this requirement at least annually.

1.2.24. Members of the District Board may be allowed actual and necessary
travel, meals and lodging to attend biennial ethics training as approved by
the Board.

1.3. SEXUAL HARASSMENT PREVENTION TRAINING AND EDUCATION:

1.3.1. As provided by Government Code § 53237.1, the District Board members
shall receive at least two (2) hours of sexual harassment prevention training
and education. The training shall be: initial on taking office shall within the
first six (6) months of taking office and every two (2) years thereafter.

1.3.2. The training and education required by Government Code § 53237.1 shall
include information and practical guidance regarding the federal and state

January 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting Page -39



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.011
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES PAGE20F 3

BOARD EDUCATION AND EXPENSES

statutory provisions concerning the prohibition against, and the prevention
and correction of, sexual harassment and the remedies available to victims of
sexual harassment in employment. The training and education shall also
include practical examples aimed at instructing the local agency official in the
prevention of sexual harassment, discrimination and retaliation, and shall be
presented by trainers or educators with knowledge and expertise in the
prevention of sexual harassment, discrimination and retaliation.

1.3.3. The District may offer one or more training courses or sets of self-study
materials with tests. These courses may be taken at home, in person or
online.

1.3.4. A District must provide a recommendation on training available to meet the
requirements of this article to its local agency officials and its employees at

least once in written form before assuming a new position and every two years
thereafter.

1.3.5. A local agency official who serves more than one local agency shall satisfy
the training requirements once every two years without regard to the number
of local agencies s/he serves.

2.0. DISTRICT RESPONSIBILITIES:

2.1.  The District shall maintain records demonstrating satisfaction of the ethics and/or
harassment training mandate that demonstrates the foilowing:

2.11. The dates the Members satisfied the requirements for ethics and/or
harassment training;

2.1.2. The entity that provided the training;

2.1.3. The records shall be maintained for at least five (5) years after the Members
obtain the training;

2.1.4. The records shall be public records subject to disclosure under the California
Public Records Act.

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -40



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.011
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES

BOARD EDUCATION AND EXPENSES

PAGE30OF 3

2.2. EXPENSES:

2.3. The District shall provide expense report forms to be filed by the Members of the
Board for reimbursement of expenses incurred on behalf of the District in
performance of official duties. Members of the District Board may be allowed
actual and necessary travel, meals lodging and other actual and necessary

incidental expenses incurred in the performance of official business of the District
as approved by the District Board.

2.4. Members are required to submit an expense report with a reasonable time, with
supporting documentation in order to be reimbursed for expenses.

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page —41



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.012
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES PAGE 1 0F 1

EXPENSES OF THE DISTRICT

1.0. EXPENSES OF THE DISTRICT:

1.1, EXPENDITURES: A claims statement of expenditures for the proceeding period
shall be submitted for the approval of the Board.

1.2. CAPITAL OUTLAY: Major items shall be approved by the Board prior to purchase
in accordance with the Purchase and Contracting Policy, even though the item is
included in the Annual Budget. Items costing in excess of the limits set forth in
Public Contract Code and Health and Safety Code, will be bid by no less than three
(3) sealed bids or as outlined in the Purchase and Contracting Policy.

1.3. EMERGENCY EXPENSES: In the event of sudden extreme emergency, the
President and the Fire Chief/CEO or their designated representatives concurrently
may authorize expenditures of funds not budgeted when a Board meeting cannot

be convened in time. Board approval must be obtained at the next regular Board
meeting.

1.4. COMPENSATION: In concurrence with Health and Safety Code § 13857 and AB
1234, each Member of the District Board shall receive such sum as may be fixed
by the Board, not to exceed $100, for attending each meeting of the District Board,
not to exceed four (4) such meetings in any calendar month, including:

1.4.1. MEETINGS:

A1, Each Regular or Special meeting attended,;

1.2 Each Regular or Special advisory meeting attended:

1.3 Any conference or organized educational activity conducted in
compliance with the Government Code, including but not limited to,
ethics training;

1414, Compensation for attendance at any meeting of the Board shall be the

same rate;

1.4.1.5. Members of the District Board may receive such other benefits as

allowed by law only if the Board has adopted in a public meeting, a

written policy specifying other types of occasions that constitute the

performance of official duties for which a Member of the Board may
receive payment.

[ N N
b

.

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -42



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.013
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES PAGE10F7

ORGANIZATION, DUTIES AND ESPONSIBILITIES

1.0. BOARD ORGANIZATION:

1.1.  The Board shall be comprised of a five (5)-Member electorate, consisting of a
President, a Vice President and three Board Members.

1.2. The Board shall appoint a Secretary, who shall be a permanent employee of the
District.

1.3.  The Board may designate Counsel, who serves at the pleasure of the Board.

2.0. GENERAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS:

2.1. Duties shall be legislative and the Board shall formulate and adopt policy for the
administrative operation of the Fire District.

2.2. Members shall conduct District business for the public benefit, acting only in the
community’'s best interest, faithfully perform all duties of their elected office
including:

2.21. Understanding the roles and responsibilities of the Board position;

222, Being thoroughly familiar with and knowiedgeable on items of business
before voting or developing a conclusion or recommendation before the
Board;

2.2.3. Regularly attending Board meetings.

2.3. The Members shall abide by the "Open Meeting Law,” court decisions and Attorney
General Opinions concerning the requirements for open meetings of governmental
agencies in California. Members shall not disclose confidential information, which
includes, but is not limited to the following:

2.3.1. Documents which are exempted from disclosure under the Public Record Act
(Govt. Code section 6250, et seq.);

2.3.2. Information received in Closed Session; and

January 22, 2019 - Reqular Board Meeting Page -43



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.013
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES PAGE 2 OF 7

ORGANIZATION, DUTIES AND RESPONSIBIITIES

2.3.3. Communications from legal counsel which are protected by attorney-client
and attorney work-product privileges.

2.34. Members will act as Community Leaders representing the District, including:

2.3.4.1. Promoting the District, its programs and ideals;

2.3.4.2. Foster future community leaders;

2.3.4.3. Develop intergovernmental opportunities with cities, counties and other
public service providers serving District constituents;

2.3.4.4. Join or coalitions through forums, Town Hall meetings and debates.

2.3.4.5. Identify opportunities for collaboration and cooperation;

2.3.46. Cultivate relationships with state legislators and agencies;

2.3.4.7. Seek educational opportunities to develop and improve the Board's
governance and public service delivery understanding through such
opportunities as:

2.3.4.71. Continuing education;
2.3.4.7.2. Special District Leadership Academy;,
2.34.7.3. Special District Leadership Foundation.

2.3.5. Exercise sound judgment in business efforts of the District by protecting and
adequately maintaining District assets, maintaining adequate insurance and
protecting District funding, seeking to impose the lightest public burden
possible.

2.386. Members will deal always in an ethical, honest, straightforward, open,
transparent and above-board manner with the community, the Fire
Chief/CEQ and the District Staff and other Board Members; treating everyone
equitably and respectfully. Members will abide by the District Code of Ethics
Policy. Board Members will refrain from abusive conduct, personal charges
or verbal attacks upon the character, motives, ethics or morals of other
Members of the District Board, employees or Members of the public.

2.3.7. Members will honor the spirit and letter of the law when ensuring compliance
with legal, regulatory and legislative requirements. They will take legal action
when required by law.

2.38. The Board shall review and approve a budget annually [Health & Safety §

January 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting Page -44



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.013
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES PAGE3 OF 7

ORGANIZATION, DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

13895]. They shall provide within budget limitations, adequate personnel,
approve new positions as required and ratify or reject the appointment of all
personnel on recommendation of the Fire Chief/CEQ.

2.3.9. The Board shall employ a competent, professional person as Fire Chief/lCEQ
who will administer, direct and supervise District Operations.

2.3.10. Members shall act collectively and not individually involve themseives in the
day-to-day operation of the District. Members shall function as a Board rather
than as individuals to adopt policies for guidance of the Board and Staff.

2.3.11. The members will keep the Fire Chief/CEO informed of community reaction
to the fire department's services and assist in building positive community
relations.

2.3.12. The Board will represent the District at public hearings that pertain to the
District as necessary. Members will encourage public participation at

hearings, meetings and events; as well as accept and encourage feedback to
the Board.

2.3.13. Members will study ways of improving the District and the services the
Department provides.

2.3.14. The Board will establish Mission, Vision, Values Statements and Strategic
Plans, both short and long term.

2.3.15. The Members will observe and be bound the Policies, Rules and Regulations
of the District as they apply universally throughout the District, including such
policies as: Code of Ethics, Conflict of Interest, Computer Use, Electronic
Email, Social Media, Harassment, Discrimination and other relevant matters.

3.0. PERSONAL RECORDS AND PUBLIC BUSINESS:

3.1. Members shali refrain from using their personal email, phone or computer to store
writings concerning the public business as such records are considered public
records under the California Public Records Act (PRA) and may be discoverable.

3.2. Writings relating to the Public’s business prepared by Members, regardless of

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -45



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

PoLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.013
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES PAGE4OF 7

ORGANIZATION, DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

whether they are prepared on personal or agency account remain public records.

3.3. Members shall use their assigned District accounts for public business and if a
personal account is inadvertently used, Members shall forward a copy of any public
communications to the District account.

3.4. When a request for public records arises, Members may be able to satisfy a
request without submitting personal records if the Member has segregated the
records into the District account and acting in good faith, will submit an affidavit
demonstrating sufficient facts to show that any personal records are not public
records under the PRA.

4.0. DISCIPLINARY ACTION:

4.1. The Board of may exercise any and all available legal remedies if it determines
that a Member has violated any provision of state law governing conflicts of interest
or self-interested contracts including, if applicable, referring the matter to
appropriate prosecutorial authorities.

4.2. The Board may further exercise all avaitable legal remedies including, but not
limited to, seeking injunctive relief, to prevent any violation of this Code respecting
confidentiality and privilege.

4.3. The Board may publicly censure or reprimand any Member who violates any
provision of this Code.

4.4. Ultimate responsibility for complying with the Code rests with the individua!
Members.

5.0. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF OTHERS:

5.1. FIRE CHIEF/CEQ:

5.1.1.  The Fire Chief/CEO assists the Board by providing guidance to the Board
and District Staff in areas of:

512 BOARD _ ADMINISTRATION AND SUPPORT: Supports operations and

January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meeting Page ~46



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.013
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES PAGE 5 OF 7

ORGANIZATION, DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES |

administration of Board by advising and informing Board members,
interfacing between Board, Board Secretary and Staff. Supports Board's
evaluation of Fire Chief/CEO.

513. PROGRAMS AND SERVICE DELIVERY: Oversees design, delivery and quality of
programs, products and services; provides required Board reports,
information and feedback. Identifies business challenges and suggests
appropriate action plans.

5.14. FINANCIAL, TAX, RISK AND FACILITIES MANAGEMENT: Recommends yearly
preliminary and final budget for Board approval and prudently manages
organization's resources within those budget guidelines according to current
laws and regulations. Plan and coordinate business operations in district
offices to achieve financial goals, including controt expenses and identifying
revenue opportunities. Develop new business strategies for to meet
community growth and revenue generation.

5.1.5. HuMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT: Effectively manages the human resources
of the organization according to authorized personnel policies and
procedures that fully conform to current laws and regulations and are done in
accordance with District standards. Perform resource allocation, workload
assignment and schedule management for assigned projects. Ensure that
employees follow District policies and procedures at all times. Manage a
team of professionals on daily basis to meet or exceed company objectives.
Build strong working relationships and maintain effective communications
with employees and management team.

5.1.6. COMMUNITY AND PUBLIC RELATIONS: Assures the organization and its mission,
programs and services are consistently presented in strong, positive image to
the community and relevant stakeholders. Resolve all customer issues and
ensure to provide outstanding customer services.

52, DISTRICT COUNSEL:

5.2.1. District Legal Counsel assists the Board by providing guidance to the
Board and District Staff in areas of:

5.2.1.1. Public Agency Governance, including the Ralph M. Brown Act (open

January 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting Page —47



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.013
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES PAGE6 OF 7

ORGANIZATION, DUES AND RESPONSIBILIIS

meeting law) and advising elected officials on their obligations under the

Brown Act. Reviewing agendas for Brown Act conformity, confirming

items are permissible;

2. Political Reform Act;

52.1.3. Public Records Act requirements;

4. Conflicts of Interest;

5. The introduction and adoption of minute orders, resolutions and

ordinances and other procedural matters;

5.2.1.6. Attend all public meetings to advise on such matters as the timing
and structure of public hearings and presentation to the public;

5.2.1.7. Advise on elections and voting matters;

5.2.1.8. Advise on incorporations, annexations and changes of organization;

5.2.1.9. Advise District on cost recovery, code enforcement and litigation;

5.2.1.10. Advise Board on fee issues;

5.2.1.11. Attend alt Closed Session, review topics, agendas and minutes
presented or discussed Closed Session for compliance with the Brown
Act;

5.2.1.12. Negotiate, draft and counsel on a broad range of agreements, including
acting as District negotiator for labor and Fire Chief/CEO contracts;

5.2.1.13. Assist with preparation of joint powers agreements and agencies;

9.2.1.14. Assist with LAFCO & other organization reorganizations, incorporations,
annexations, revenue sharing and related matters;

5.2.1.15. Assist District personnel as directed by Fire Chief/CEO;

5.2.1.16. Other matters as requested or directed by the Fire Chief/CEO or Board.

5.3. BOARD SECRETARY:

5.3.1. The Board shall appoint a Board Secretary, who shall be a permanent
employee of the District (Health & Safety Code § 13853b). The Board
Secretary shall attend each meeting of the Board and maintain a record of all
proceedings thereof as required by law.

5.3.2. If the Board Secretary cannot attend a meeting, the President or the Fire
Chief/CEQ shall arrange to have someone in attendance to properly record
the Board's proceedings.

5.3.3. The Board Secretary is responsible for signing all legal documents and
affixing the District Seal as required.

January 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting Page —-48



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.013
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES PAGE7 OF 7

ORGANIZATION, DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

9.3.4. The Board Secretary is responsibie for the publication of legal notices,
appropriate action and certification and filing of documents (e.g., budgets,
election reports, audits, resolutions and other legal documents.)

5.3.5. The Board Secretary is responsible for receiving and answering all Board
correspondence as directed by the President or his/her designee.

January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meeting Page ~-49



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.014
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES PAGE 1 OF 4

ELECTIONS AND TERMS

1.0. ELECTIONS AND TERMS:
1.1. SEATING OF NEW DIRECTORS:

1.1.1. The term of office of newly elected Directors shall begin at 12:00 A.M. of the
first Friday of December following their election.

1.1.2. Newly elected Directors are subject to the Brown Act upon certification of
election, which may occur prior to being sworn-in.

1.1.3. Newly elected Directors shall be sworn-in as the first order of regular business
during the regular December meeting of the Board.

1.2. REQUIRED FILINGS:

1.2.1. Within ten (10) days after any change in the facts set forth in the Statement
of Facts for the District, as outlined in Government Code § 53051 and §946.4,
the Board Secretary will update the District’'s Statement and forward the
updated Statement to the California Secretary of State and to the County
Clerk of San Diego. At a minimum, the following information will be included:

1.2.2. The full, legal name of the District;

1.2.3. The official mailing address of the Board of Directors of the District;

1.2.4. The name, title and residence or business address of each Member of the
Board of Directors of the District; and

1.2.5. The name and residence or business address of the President, other
presiding officer and Secretary of the Board of Directors.

2.0. SELECTION OF OFFICERS:

2.1.1. Should a Director desire to serve as an Officer, he/she has the responsibility
to express such desire to the rest of the Board.

2.1.2. It is desirable that Directors take turns as an Officer.

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -50



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SecTioN 110.014
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES PAGE 2 OF 4

ELECTIONS AND TERMS

2.1.3.  The Board shail not have a “lock step” rotation system for selecting Officers.

22. OFFICERELECTIONS:

2.21. At the first meeting following the election or appointment of new Director(s)
and at the last scheduled meeting of the calendar year (during a non-election

year), the Board shall elect a President and Vice President to serve until the
election of his/her successor.

2.2.2. Assumption of the Board Officer positions is effective at the conclusion of the
meeting of the Board of Directors at which the election occurred.

2.2.3. Upon the occurrence of a vacancy, the Board shall fill such vacancy in
accordance with the law (Health and Safety §13852). An interim election may

be held upon the written request of the majority of the Directors in office at
the time.

2.3. TERM OF OFFICE:

23.1.  Once elected, Board Officers shall serve in their nominated position for a one-
(1) year term.

2.3.2. Board Officers may be removed from a Board Officer position by a 4/5 vote
of the Board (4 out of 5 Members).

3.0. OFFICIATION:

3.1. OFFICIATING AND LINES OF SUCCESSION:

3.1.1.  The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board, shall take the chair
at the hour appointed for every Board meeting and immediately call the
Members to order, and except in the absence of a quorum, shall proceed with
the business of the Board in the manner prescribed in these rules.

3.1.2.  In the absence or unavailability of the President, the Vice-President shall act
as President.

3.1.3. In the absence of the Vice President, the most senior Board Member shall

January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meeting Page -51



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

PoLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.014
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES PAGE 3 OF 4

ELECTIONS AND TERMS

preside.

3.2. POWERS AND DUTIES — PRESIDENT: The President shall possess the powers
and perform the duties prescribed as follows:

3.2.1. The President shall be the chief officer of the Board and shall, subject to the
approval of the Board of Directors, give supervision and direction to the
business and affairs of the Board.

3.2.2. The President shall be the presiding officer at all Board of Director meetings.
The President shall be an ex-officio Member of all Standing Commiitees. The
Board President shall appoint Standing and Ad Hoc Committees Members as
deemed necessary.

3.2.3. The President shall have the general powers, duties and management usually
vested in the office of the president of a corporation. The President shall have
such other powers and duties as may be prescribed or by the vote of the
Board of Directors.

3.24. ltis the duty of the President or his/her designee to call a workshop meeting
prior to the first General Meeting after elections. This is to benefit the newly
elected Directors and acquaint them with the California State Health and
Safety Code, District Policies, the Brown Act (Open Meeting Laws) and the
current Annual Budget.

3.2.5. The President shall be the official spokesperson for the Board, unless the
Board selects another person.

3.2.6. The President or his/her designee shall have general direction over the
Boardroom and assign seats for the use of the Board Members and Members
of the Staff, and if required:

3.2.6.1. Preserve order and decorum; prevent demonstration; order removal from
the Boardroom any person whose conduct is deemed objectionable; and
order the Boardroom cleared whenever the President deems it necessary.

3.26.2. Limit the amount time to twenty (20) minutes for any agendized topic that
may be discussed in order to facilitate the business of the Board.

3.26.3. Limit the amount of time that a person may address the Board during a

January 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting Page -52



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

PoLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.014
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES PAGE 4 OF 4

ELECTIONS AND TERMS |

public comment period to accommodate those persons desiring to speak
to facilitate the business of the Board. Public comments should be limited
to three (3) minutes per speaker.

3.26.4. Testimony of experts during an agendized topic may be limited to ten (10)
minutes at the discretion of the Board President.

3.2.6.5. Allocate equal time to opposing sides insofar as possible, taking into
account the number of persons requesting to be heard on any side.

3.3. POWERS AND DUTIES — VICE PRESIDENT.:

3.3.1. In the absence of, or disability of the President, the Vice President shall
perform all of the duties of the President.

3.3.2. When so acting, the Vice President shall have all the powers of the President
and be subject to all the restrictions upon the President.

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -53



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

Policy AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SEcTION 110.015
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES PAGE 1 0F 2

COMMITTEES AND OTHER ORGANIZATIONS

1.0. COMMITTEES:

1.1. It shall be the responsibility of each Member of a Committee, appointed by the
Board, to be fully informed concerning the business assigned to it by the Board.
Each Committee shatl promptly perform tasks assigned to it and report to the
Board such information and recommendations as shall be necessary or proper.

1.2. MEMBERSHIP: The Board President will appoint those Members necessary to
carry out the goals and objectives of the specific Committee. This may consist of
any combination of parties in accordance with the Brown Act.

1.3.  DURATION:

1.3.1. STANDING COMMITTEES: Terms of Membership on Standing Committees
(i.e. Finance) shall be for at least a one (1) -year term. There is no maximum
term. Standing Committees are subject to the requirements of the Brown Act
and shall publish their Agenda and provide notice in the same manner as the
Regular Board Meetings.

1.3.2. AD HOC COMMITTES: Membership on Ad Hoc Committees shall be for the
duration of the Committee. Ad Hoc Committees function for a limited duration
and specified purpose.

1.4. FUNCTION: Committees shall act on behalf of the Board as a whole and shall
make recommendations and regular reports to inform the Board as well as receive
direction from the Board.

1.5. APPOINTMENT ON OTHER AGENCY, BOARD OR COMMISSION:

1.5.1.  No public official at any level of state or local government shall make,
participate in making or in any way attempt to use his/her official position to
influence a governmental decision in which he knows or has reason to know
s/he has a financial interest. Government Code § 87100.1.

1.5.2. Whenever the Board votes on an appointment for a Board Member to serve
on another governmental agency and pay is provided, the Board must comply
with FPPC Reg. §18702.5, which requires the following:

January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meeting Page -54



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

PoLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SecTION 110.015
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES PAGE 2 OF 2

COMMITTEES AND OTHER ORGANIZATIONS

1.5.2.1. Prior to a vote (or consent item) to appoint a governing board Member to
a paid position on another agency, the Board Secretary for the agency
voting to appoint the official, must complete and place on the agency's
website, California Form 806 “Agency Report of: Public Officials
Appointments.” This form contains the following information:

2.1.1.  Agency ldentification;

2.1.2.  Appointment to another agency (name of agency), including length
of term, stipend/salary per meeting and estimated annual payment;

3.  Verification by agency head.

4. Form 806 is to be promptly amended upon any of the following

circumstances:

1.5.2.1.4.1.  The number of scheduled meetings is changed;

1.5.2.1.42.  There is a change in the compensation paid to the Members: or

1.5.2.14.3. There is a change in the Membership on the Board or

Commission.

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -55



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.016
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES PAGE 1 OF 12

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETINGS

1.0. MEETINGS:

1.1. TIME AND PLACE: The Regular Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held
on the fourth Tuesday of each month.

1.1.1. Except as otherwise provided in herein, the Regular Meetings shall
commence at the hour of 4:00 P.M., at the location designated by the Board
at the Board meeting at the beginning of each calendar year.

1.1.2.  The Board shall provide by resolution, ordinance, bylaws or by whatever other
rule is required for the conduct of business, a time and place for holding
regular meetings.

1.2.  ADMITTANCE: All meetings are open to the public. Closed Sessions may be held
as permitted by the Ralph M. Brown Act. Such Closed Session matters are not
conducted in public. Government Code §§ 54950-54963.

1.3. SPECIAL MEETINGS: Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called

in the manner provided by state law with twenty-four (24) hour notice {Government
Code § 54956 (a).

1.3.1. A Special Meeting may be calied at any time by the presiding officer of Board,
or by a majority of the Members of the Board, by delivering written notice to
each Member of the Board and to each local newspaper of general circuiation
and radio or television station requesting notice in writing and posting a notice
on the local agency's Internet Web site. The notice shall be delivered
personally or by any other means and shall be received at least twenty-four
(24) hours before the time of the meeting as specified in the notice. The cali
and notice shall specify the time and place of the special meeting and the
business to be transacted or discussed. No other business shall be
considered at these meetings by the Board.

1.3.2. Special Meetings in the form of workshops and study sessions may be called
to implement policy, study budget, study salaries or other areas that pertain
to the District that are open to the public.

123168 Notwithstanding any other law, the Board shall not call a Special Meeting
regarding the salaries, salary schedules or compensation paid in the form of

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -56



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.016
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES PAGE 2 OF 12

fringe benefits, of the Fire Chief/CEO, as defined Government Code § 3511.1
(d) (Government Code § 54956 (b)).

1.4. EMERGENCY MEETINGS: Emergency meetings of the Board of Directors may
be called in the manner provided by state law without complying with the twenty-
four (24) hour notice or posting requirements (Government Code § 54956.6).

1.4.1. EMERGENCY SITUATION REFERS TO BOTH:

1.4.1.1.  An emergency, which shall be defined as a work stoppage, crippling
activity or other activity that severely impairs public health, safety or both,
as determined by a majority of the Members of the Board; and/or

1.4.1.2. A dire emergency, which shall be defined as a crippling disaster, mass
destruction, terrorist act or threatened terrorist activity that poses peril so
immediate and significant that it requires the Board to provide one-hour
notice before holding an emergency meeting that may endanger the public

health, safety or both, as determined by a majority of the Members of the
Board.

1.4.2. Each local newspaper of general circulation, radio or television station that
has requested notice of Special Meetings pursuant to Government § 54956,
shall be notified by the presiding officer or designee thereof, one (1) hour prior
to the emergency meeting, or in the case of a dire emergency, at or near the
time that the presiding officer notifies the Members of the Board of the
emergency meeting. The notice shall be given by telephone and all telephone
numbers provided in the most recent request of a newspaper or station for
notification of Special Meetings shall be exhausted. In the event that
telephone services are not functioning, the notice requirements shall be
deemed waived and presiding officer shall notify entities of the fact of the
holding of the emergency meeting, the purpose of the meeting and any action
taken at the meeting as soon after the meeting as possible.

1.4.3.  During an Emergency Meeting, the Board may meet in Closed Session pursuant
to Government Code § 54957 if agreed to by a two-thirds vote of the Members
of the Board present, or if less than two-thirds of the Members are present, by a
unanimous vote of the Members present.

January 22, 2019 - Reqular Board Meeting Page —57



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.016
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES PAGE 3 OF 12

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

1.4.4. All Special Meeting requirements, as prescribed in Government Code § 54956
shall be applicable to an Emergency Meeting, with the exception of the
twenty-four (24) hour notice requirement.

1.4.5. The minutes of an Emergency Meeting, a list of persons who the presiding
officer notified or attempted to notify, a copy of the rollcall vote and any actions
taken at the meeting shall be posted for a minimum of ten (10) days in a public
place as soon after the meeting as possible.

2.0. ATTENDANCE:

2.1. Each Member shall be his/her respective seat at the hour set for each Regular
Meeting and at the time set for any Regular, Adjourned or special Meeting.

2.2.  Any Member not present when the Board is called to order shall be designated in
the minutes as absent.

2.3. If a Member arrives after a meeting convenes, the Board Secretary shall note
his/her arrival in the minutes.

24. The Fire Chief/CEO or his/her designee shall attend all regular and special
Meetings of the Board unless otherwise specified by the Board.

24.1.  ABSENCES: If any Member of the Board is unable to attend a meeting, the
Board Member shall, if possible, notify the Board President and/or the Board
Secretary prior to the meeting and advise the reasons therefore.

3.0. AGENDAS:

3.1.  POSTING: The Agenda for regularly scheduled and Committee meetings shall be
posted seventy-two (72) hours prior or as required by the Board. Copies of the
Agenda shall be made available to the public at the Board Meeting.

3.2. The Agenda shall be posted at the following locates: [1] At the Administrative
Headquarters front public display case at the main entrance, [2] at the Roy Noon
Meeting Hall front public display case at the main entrance, [3] at the meeting
location in a conspicuous location; and [4] on the District website.

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page —58



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

PoLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.016
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES PAGE 4 OF 12

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETINGS

3.3. DISTRIBUTION: Any writings given to a majority of the Board must be made
available to the general public so long as those writings are public records. If these
writings are distributed to Members of the Board before the meeting, such writings
must be made available to the public before the meeting. By the same token, any
writings distributed to the Board during the course of the meeting must also be

made available to the public at that time and will comply with the Government
Code.

3.3.1. The major exception to the obligation to provide the public with access to any
writings distributed to Members of the Board, are those that deal with matters
properly discussed in closed sessions or protected under the Government
Code, those are to remain confidential. Nothing in this law prevents the Board

from charging a fee or deposit for a copy of public records pursuant to the
Government Code.

3.4. CONTENT: The Agenda shall include those matters, complete with pertinent

department papers, reports and supporting documentation relating to each matter,
addressed to the Board for action.

341, A Special Meeting notice shall specify the time and place of the special
Meeting and the business to be transacted or discussed. No other business

shall be considered at these meetings by the Board Government Code §
54956(a).

342 A brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or

discussed at the meeting, including items to be discussed in Closed Session,
shall be included.

343 NoTicE TO AMERICANS WITH DiSABILITIES: All Agendas will contain the notice
to disabled individuals regarding how to obtain assistance in compliance with
the Americans with Disabilities Act, using the following language:

3.4.3.1.  “Note: The Americans with Disabilities Act provides that no qualified individual with a disability shall be
excluded from participation in, or denied the benefits of, District business. If you need assistance to participate
in this meeting, please contact the District Office 72 hours prior t¢ the mesting at (760) 723-2012."

3.4.4. AB 343 CoMPLIANCE: Copies of Agendas, Staff reports and other Agenda-
packet materials shall be made available to the general public at the same
time those materials are provided to Members of the Board of Directors.

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page —59



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

PoLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.016
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES PAGE 5 OF 12

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETINGS

3.4.4.1. Documents submitted to the majority of the Board less than seventy-two
(72) hours prior to a public meeting, shall be made available for public
inspection in the office of the Board Secretary as soon as the documents
are distributed to the Board. Documents may be posted on District bulietin
boards or on the District website.

3.45. Any document related to an Agenda-item, which is provided to the Board at
the meeting by Staff, shall be available to the public at the Board meeting.

Documents provided by other than Staff, will be made available for public
review after the meeting.

3.4.6. All Agendas will contain the notice to individuals regarding how to obtain

Board materials released after the Agenda has been published, using the
following language:

3.4.6.1.1.1. The Agenda was also available for review at the Office of the Board Secretary, located at located at
330 S. Main Avenue, Fallbrook (760) 723-2012. Materials refated to an item on this Agenda
submitted to the District after distribution of the agenda packet, are available for public inspection in
the Office of the Board Secretary, during normal business hours or may be found on the District

website (www.ncfire.org), subject to the Slaﬁ’s ability to post the documents before the meeting. The
date of posting was

3.47. ORGANIZATION: The Agenda shall list the items for the Board's consideration
by number with a brief statement of the subject matter for each of the items.
The Agenda may include suggested actions or recommendations. The
business of each Regular Meeting of the Board shall be in the order as printed
on the Agenda or as directed by the President of the Board.

3471, Meeting called to order;
3.4.7.2. Review of Agenda. Amendment of agenda, if necessary;
3473 Public Activities Agenda with Comment Period for Non-Agenized ltems;
3474 Consent Items, including:
34741, Approval of Minutes and
3.4742. Financial Report;
3.4743. Approval Policies and Procedures
34744, Routine/Recurring Staff Reports;
3.4.7.5. Action ltems;
3.4786. Discussion ltems;

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page —60



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

PoLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.016
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES PAGE 6 OF 12

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETINGS

3477, Legal Report;

3.4.7.8. Written Communications;

3.4709. News Articles;

3.4.7.10. Staff Comments;

3.4711. Board Comments;

3.4.712. Bargaining Groups Comments;

3.4.7.13. Public Comments;

3.4.7.14. Closed Session, if required;

3.4.7.15. Report to Public from Closed Session;

3.4.7.16.  Such other business as is necessary so that the Fire District can perform
its functions as required by law; and

3.47.17. Adjournment.

3.48. DeADLINE: The deadline for receiving Agenda items shall be 4:00 P.M.,

twelve days before the Board Meeting (generally, the second Thursday of the
month).

3.4.9. ORDINANCES/CONTRACTS: No ordinance or contract shall be presented to the

Board for action which has not been approved as to form and legality by
District Counsel.

4.0. MEETING CONDUCT:

4.1. INTRODUCTION OF NON-AGENDA ITEMS: Any Board Member intending to
introduce a special item not contained in the Agenda shall deliver a copy of such
items to each Board Member. items may not normally be added to the Agenda
unless the item(s) in question are of an exigent nature and in such cases the
addition of the specified item(s) must occur with unanimous approval of the
presiding quorum.

42. ORDER OF SPEAKING: When any Board Member wishes to speak, the Board
Member shall address the President. The President shall name the Member who
is first to speak and speakers shall confine their remarks to the questions under
debate and avoid personalities. The President may elect not to recognize a Board

Member to speak again until all other Members have had an epportunity to be
heard.

4.3. RULES OF PROCEDURE AND CONDUCT: Meetings and Committee meetings

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page —61



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

PoLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.016
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES PAGE 7 OF 12

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEEINGS

shall be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, the Fire Protection District
Law of 1987 and this Policy. Should the point of order in question not be addressed
in these documents, the President shall take the following actions (in order):

4.3.1. Refer to Roberts Rules of Order, Revised edition;
4.3.2. Ask for a motion and vote to rule on the point of order;
4.3.3. Rule on the point of order.

44 MOTIONS:

4.4.1. Any action taken by the Board shall be initiated by a motion or introduction of
a resolution or ordinance.

442 A second on the motion is required.
4.4.3. The President shall be atlowed to make motions.

444, The Secretary shall record the names of those making and seconding
motions.

4.4.5. Once the President calls for remarks on a motion, the Member making the

motion is entitled to speak first. The President shall recognize speakers
before the make their remarks.

4.4.6. Secondary motions pertaining to the main motion may be introduced before
the main motion is voted. The last motion stated, shall be the first pending
motion and the main motion shall be voted upon last.

4.4.7. A motion to amend must have the approval of the person making the original

motion or a majority vote of the Board. An amendment to a motion may only
be amended once.

4.48. MoTions To RECONSIDER: Except in the case of specific Agenda items
requiring a noticed public hearing, the Board may reconsider any vote taken
at the same session to correct an inadvertent error or consider new
information not available at the time of the vote. A motion to reconsider

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -62



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

PoLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SEcTION 110.016
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES PAGE 8 OF 12

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETINGS

requires a majority vote (3/5) prior to being reconsidered.

4.49. |tems PREViOUSLY VOTED UPON: Unless an emergency situation exists, an
item which has been voted on by the Board will not be brought back to the

Board for consideration for a minimum of one (1) year, without approval of the
majority of the Board.

4.4.10. MoTioNs To RESCIND, REPEAL, OR ANNUL ACTIONS TAKEN AT PREVIOUS
MEETINGS: Such actions may be carried out by:

4.4.10.1. Passing a motion to place the item on a future Agenda; or
4.4.10.2. Passing the motion to rescind, repeal or annul with the appropriate
number of votes (see below).

45 VOTING:

451. ApprovaL OF A MOTION: To be deemed an official action of the Board, all
actions must receive a majority vote (3/5), with the following exceptions, which
require a 2/3 vote (super majority or 4/5 vote):

1. Motion to adopt or amend any policy or rule;
2. Motion to reconsider a previously considered maotion;
4.5.1.3. Motion to close a debate;
4. Motion on any non-agenized item;
5. Motion to remove a Board Member from a Board Office position.

4.5.2. A unanimous motion is required to discontinue or transfer funds designated
as Capital Outlay reserves.

4.5.3. RoLLCALL: The roll need not be called in voting upon a motion except where
specifically required by law or requested by any Board Member. When the
roll is called on any motion, any Member present who does not vote in an
audible voice shall be recorded as “AYE."

454. RIGHT 70 VOTE: Questions pertaining to a Director's right to vote on items
because of the potential conflict of interest shall be decided as foliows:

4541, Director disqualifies himself/herself; or

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -63



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES PAGE 9 OF 12

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETINGS

SECTION 110.016

4542, President disqualifies the Director from voting.

4.5.5. APPEAL OF RIGHT To VOTE: Should any Director be disqualified from voting
or be overruled on a point of order by the President, he/she may move to
appeal the ruling to the full Board. The President shall have the right to vote
on the appeal and the majority vote of the Board overrules the President.

46. VOTING PARAMETERS:
4.6.1. There must be a quorum of three Members present to conduct business;
4.6.2. A majority vote (simple majority) means three affirmative votes (3/5);
4.6.3. A 2/3 or super majority vote means four affirmative votes (4/5);
4.6.4. A unanimous vote means five affirmative votes (5/5).

5.0. PUBLIC HEARING PROCEDURES (APPEALS): Procedures at hearings shall
be as follows:

5.1. Staff presentation/recommendations;
5.2. Questions of the Staff in support;

5.3. Individuals speaking in support;

5.4. individuals speaking in opposition;

5.5. Individuals speaking in concern;

5.6. Rebuttal (if any),

5.7.  Public input (if any);

5.8. Board discussion and dispasition (vote).

6.0. MEETING PROTOCOL:

January 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting Page -64



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.016
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
| STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES PAGE 10 OF 12

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETINGS

6.1. SAFETY: Unless addressing the Board, or entering or leaving the Boardroom, all
persons in the audience shall remain sitting in the seats provided (to the extent
that seating is available). Itis the Board's intent to accommodate all persons who
wish to attend open public meetings.

6.2. PUBLIC ADDRESSING OF BOARD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS: Persons desiring
to address the Board on any matter not listed on the Agenda shall make
arrangements to be on the calendar in advance with the President of the Board
through the office of the Board Secretary.

7.0. SMOKING: Smoking is prohibited on all District Locations, including the Board
meeting room.

8.0. DEMONSTRATIONS AND DISTURBANCES:

8.1. The Presiding Officer shall order removed from the Boardroom any person who

disrupts any Regular or Special meeting of the Board. Examples of disruptive
behavior may be:

8.1.1. Impertinent, slanderous or profane remarks to any Member of the Board,
Staff, the public or others;
8.1.2. Disparaging an individual, group or their associates on the basis of their

ethnicity, race, gender, sexuality, age, disability, immigration status or
religion;

8.1.3. Loud, threatening or abusive language, especially directed at individuals,
causing fear, havoc or similar reactions;

8.1.4. Argumentative interruption of a speaker, the presiding officer, a Member
of the Body, staff or meeting facilitator;

8.1.5. Engaging in disorderly or boisterous conduct, including using loud,

threatening or abusive language, whistling, clapping, stamping of feet, waving
signs or similar acts;

8.1.6. Continuing to speak after exceeding a time limit and being asked to step
down.

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page —-65



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.016
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES PAGE 11 OF 12

8.1.7. Everyone, even persons disrupting a meeting, will be treated with
equitability and respect. The presiding officer will issue a warning to stop
the disruptive behavior. If the disruptive behavior continues, the presiding
officer or a majority of the Body will act to regain order and to continue the
work of the Board.

8.1.8. Any person so removed shall be excluded from further attendance at the
meeting from which the person has been removed, unless permission to
attend is granted upon motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board.

8.1.9. The exception to the right of the public to attend ali meetings of the Board
applies to those who attempt to disrupt the conduct of the meeting. In the
event that any meeting is willfully disrupted, by a group or groups of persons,
that renders the orderly conduct of such meeting unfeasible and order cannot
be restored by the removal of the individuals who are willingly interrupting the
meeting, the Board may order the meeting room cleared and continue in
session. However, only matters appearing on the Agenda may be considered
in such a session. Duly accredited representatives of the press and other
news media, except those participating in the disturbance shall be allowed to
attend any session held pursuant to this exception.

8.2. SUSPENSION OF RULES: Except as otherwise provided by law, any procedural
rule contained in this Policy may be suspended or changed by order.

9.0. RECORDING OF INFORMATION:

9.1.  All open sessions of the Board meetings shall be recorded in their entirety. The
recordings will be destroyed after the minutes have been approved, but no sooner
than thirty (30) days after the Board meeting (Government Code Section 54593).

9.2. Prior to taking final action, the Board shall orally report a summary of a
recommendation for a final action on the salaries, salary schedules or
compensation paid in the form of fringe benefits of the Fire Chief/lCEO as defined

in Government Code § 3511.1(d), during the open meeting in which the final action
is to be taken.

9.3. DOCUMENTATION OF MINUTES: Minutes shall be taken by the Board Secretary
which summarize:

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page —66



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

PoLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SecTioN 110.016
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURES PAGE 12 OF 12

9.3.1. Synopsis of the Board discussion on items presented:;

9.3.2. Action taken, with a recordation of motion noting name of each person making
and seconding motion;

8.3.3. Any action taken and the vote or abstention on that action of each Member
present for the action. (Government Code Section 54593 (c) (3)).

9.3.4. Action taken, with a recordation of voting by name on each motion where a
roll call vote is required;

9.3.5. Specific information requested by the Board to be entered into the minutes.

January 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting Page ~67



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

PoLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.01
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PAGE 1 OF 25
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OPERATIONS 7

1.0. PURPOSE:

1.1, The purpose of this Policy is to supplement State law and to provide specific rules
for the actions of the Board of Directors of the North County Fire Protection District
of San Diego County, by a means that is fair, fiscally conservative and protective
of the interest of the people served by the North County Fire Protection District.

2.0. POLICY:

21. ltis the Policy of the North County Fire Protection District to form, organize and
maintain a Board of Directors for the purposes of governing the provision of
services to the citizens served by the North County Fire Protection District. This
governing body shall function as prescribed in the Fire Protection District Law of
1987 and other applicable state laws. The Board will maintain an official policy

from which the North County Fire Protection District shall be organized and
operated.

3.0. INTENT:

3.1.  The provisions of these policies and proposals are to assist the Board of Directors
of the North County Fire Protection District as they administer and represent the
business and affairs of the North County Fire Protection District. It is the intent
and purpose of this directive to help clarify and define the responsibilities of the
elected officials (Directors) of the North County Fire Protection District.

4.0. PROCEDURE:

4.1. BOARD ORGANIZATION:

4.1.1. The Board shall be comprised of a five (5)-Member electorate, consisting of a
President, a Vice President and three Board Members.

4.1.2. The Board shall appoint a Secretary, who shall be a permanent employee of
the District.

4.1.3. The Board may designate Counsel, who serves at the pleasure of the Board.

42. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF OTHERS:

4.2.1. GENERAL MANAGER:

January 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting Page -68



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

PoLicy AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.01
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PAGE 2 OF 25

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OPERATIONS

4211 Board Administration and Support: Supports operations and
administration of Board by advising and informing Board members,
interfacing between Board, Board Secretary and Staff. Supports Board's
evaluation of Fire Chief/CEOQ.

4.21.2. Programs and Service Delivery: Oversees design, delivery and quality
of programs, products and services; provides required Board reports,
information and feedback. Identify business challenges and suggest
appropriate action plans.

4.2.1.3. Financial, Tax, Risk and Facilities Management: Recommends yearly
preliminary and final budget for Board approval and prudently manages
organization's resources within those budget guidelines according to
current laws and regulations. Plan and coordinate business operations in
district offices to achieve financial goals, including control expenses and
identifying revenue opportunities. Develop new business strategies for to
meet community growth and revenue generation.

4214, Human Resource Management: Effectively manages the human
resources of the organization according to authorized personnel policies
and procedures that fully conform to current laws and regulations and are
done in accordance with District standards. Perform resource allocation,
workload assignment and schedule management for assigned projects.
Ensure that employees follow District policies and procedures at all times.
Manage a team of professionals on daily basis to meet or exceed
company objectives. Build strong working relationships and maintain
effective communications with employees and management team.

4215 Community and Public Relations: Assures the organization and its
mission, programs and services are consistently presented in strong,
positive image to the community and relevant stakeholders. Resolve all
customer issues and ensure to provide outstanding customer services.

422 DisTRICT COUNSEL:

42.21. District Legal Counsel assists the Board by providing guidance to the
Board and District Staff in areas of:

42.21.1. Public Agency Governance, including the Ralph M. Brown Act (open
meeting law) and advising elected officials on their obligations under
the Brown Act. Reviewing agendas for Brown Act conformity,
confirming items are permissible;

42212 Political Reform Act;
4.2.2.1.3. Public Records Act requirements;
42214 Conflicts of Interest;

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page —-69



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.01
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PAGE 30F 25
BOARD OF DIRECTORS QPERATIONS

4.22.15. Theintroduction and adoption of minute orders, resolutions and
ordinances and other procedural matters;

4.22.16. Attend all public meetings to advise on such matters as the
timing and structure of public hearings and presentation to the
public;

4.2.2.1.7. Advise on elections and voting matters;

4.2.2.1.8. Advise on incorporations, annexations and changes of
organization;

4.2218. Advise District on cost recovery, code enforcement and litigation;

4.22.1.10. Advise Board on fee issues;

4.221.11. Atftend all Closed Session, review topics, agendas and minutes
presented or discussed Closed Session for compliance with the
Brown Act;

4.2.2.1.12. Negotiate, draft and counsel on a broad range of agreements,
including acting as District negotiator for labor and Fire Chief/CEQ
contracts,

4.2.2.1.13. Assist with preparation of joint powers agreements and agencies;

4.2.2.1.14. Assist with LAFCO & other organization reorganizations,
incorporations, annexations, revenue sharing and related matters:

4.2.2.1.15. Assist District personnel as directed by Fire Chief/CEO;

4.2.2.1.16. Other matters as requested or directed by the Fire Chief/CEQ or
Board.

4222, BOARD SECRETARY:

42221 The Board shall appoint a Board Secretary, who shall be a
permanent employee of the District (Health & Safety Code §
13853b). The Board Secretary shall attend each meeting of the
Board and maintain a record of all proceedings thereof as required
by law.

42222 If the Board Secretary cannot attend a meeting, the President or the
Fire Chief/CEO shall arrange to have someone in attendance to
properly record the Board's proceedings.

42223  The Board Secretary is responsible for signing all legal documents
and affixing the District Seal as required.

42224 The Board Secretary is responsible for the publication of legal
notices, appropriate action and certification and filing of documents,
e.g., budgets, election reports, audits, resolutions and other legal
documents.

42242225 The Board Secretary is responsible for receiving and
answering all Board correspondence as directed by the President or

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -70



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECTION 110.01

PAGE 4 OF 25
BOARD OF DIECTORS OPERATIONS

his/her designee.

4.3. GENERAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS:

43.1. Duties shall be legislative and the Board shall formulate and adopt policy for
the administrativeion operation of the Fire District.

43.2. Members shall Gconduct District business for the public benefit, acting only
in the community’s best interest, faithfully perfoming all duties of their elected
office including:

4.3.2.1.  Understanding the roles and responsibilities of the Board position;

4.3.2.2. Being thoroughly familiar with and knowledgeable on items of business
before voting or developing a conclusion or recommendation before the
Board;

4-3-1-44.3.2.3. Regularly attending Board meetings.

4.3.3. The Members shall abide by the “Open Meeting Law,” court decisions and
Attorney General Opinions concerning the requirements for open meetings of
governmental agencies in California. Members shall not disclose confidential
information, which includes, but is not limited to the following:

4.3.3.1. Documents which are exempted from disclosure under the Public Record
Act (Govt. Code section 6250, et seq.);

4.3.3.2. Information received in Closed Session; and

4.3.3.3. Communications from legal counsel which are protected by attorney-
client and attorney work-product privileges.

434. Members will act as Community Leaders representing the District, including:

4341 Promoting the District, its programs and ideals;

434.2. Foster future community leaders;

4343. Develop intergovernmental opportunities with cities, counties and
other public service providers serving District constituents;

4344 Join or coalitions through forums, Town Hall meetings and debates.

4345, Identify opportunities for collaboration and cooperation;

43486. Cultivate relationships with state legislators and agencies;

4347, Seek educational opportunities to develop and improve the Board's

governance and public service delivery understanding through such
opportunities as:

4.3.4.7.1. Continuing education;

4.3.4.7.2. Special District Leadership Academy;

4.3.4.7 3. Special District Leadership Foundation.

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -71



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SecTion 110.01
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PAGE 5 OF 25
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OERATIONS

4.3.5. Exercise sound judgment in business efforts of the District by protecting and
adequately maintaining District assets, maintaining adequate insurance and
protecting District funding, seeking to impose the lightest public burden
possible.

4:3:2:4.3.6 Members will deal always in an ethical, honest, straightforward, open,
transparent and above-board manner with the community, the Fire
Chief/CEO and the Department Staff and other Board Members; treating
everyone equitably and respectfully. Members will abide by the District Code
of Ethics Policy. Board Members will refrain from abusive conduct, personal
charges or verbal attacks upon the character, motives, ethics or morals of
other Members of the District Board, employees or Members of the public.

4-3-3-4.3.7. Members will honor the spirit and letter of the law when ensuring
compliance with legal, regulatory and legisiative requirements. They will
+Ftake legal action when required by law.

4-3-4.4.3.8. The Board shall Rreview and approve a budget annually [Health & Safety §
13895]. They shall provide within budget limitations, adequate personnei,
approve new positions as required and ratify or reject the appointment of all
personnel on recommendation of the Fire Chief/CEO.

435439 The Board shall Eemploy a competent, professional person as Fire
Chief/CEO who will administer, direct and supervise District Operations.

436-43.10. Members shall Aact collectively and not individually involve
themselves in the day-to-day operation of the—DistrictFire—Department.
Members They shall function as a Board rather than as individuals to adopt
policies for guidance of the Board and Staff.

43743 11. Keep the Fire Chief/CEO informed of community reaction to the fire
department’s services and assist in building positive community relations.

4.3.12. Represent the District at public hearings that pertain to the District as
necessary. Members will encourage public participation at hearings, meetings
and events; as well as accept and encourage feedback to the Board.

4384313, Members will sStudy ways of improving the District and the services
the Department provides.

January 22, 2019 - Reqular Board Meeting Page -72



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.01
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PAGE 6 OF 25
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OPERATIONS

4.3.14. Establish Mission, Vision, Values Statements and Strategic Plans, both short
and long term.

4.3.15. Observe and be bound the Policies, Rules and Regulations of the District as
they apply universally throughout the District, including such policies as:
Ethics, Conflict of Interest, Computer Use, Electronic Email, Social Media,
Harassment, Discrimination and other relevant matters.

4.3.16. PERSONAL RECORDS AND PUBLIC BUSINESS:

4.3.16.1. Members shall refrain from using their personal email, phone or
computer to store writings concerning the public business as such
records are considered public records under the California Public
Records Act (PRA) and may be discoverable.

4.3.16.2. Wiritings relating to the Public’'s business prepared by Members,
regardless of whether they are prepared on personal or agency account
remain public records.

4.3.16.3. Members shall use their assigned District accounts for public business
and if a personal account is inadvertently used, Members shall forward
a copy of any public communications to the District account.

4.3.16.4. When a request for public records arises, Members may be able to
satisfy a request without submitting personal records if the Member has
segregated the records into the District account and acting in good faith,
will submit an affidavit demonstrating sufficient facts to show that any
personal records are not public records under the PRA.
4361

DISCIPLINARY ACTION:

4.3.17. The Board of may exercise any and all available legal remedies if it
determines that a Member has violated any provision of state law governing
conflicts of interest or self-interested contracts including, if applicable,
referring the matter to appropriate prosecutorial authorities.

4.3.18. The Board may further exercise all available legal remedies including, but not
limited to, seeking injunctive relief, to prevent any violation of this Code
respecting confidentiality and privilege.

4.3.19. The Board may publicly censure or reprimand any Member who violates any
provision of this Code.

January 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting Page -73



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

PoLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.01
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PAGE 7 OF 25
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OPERATIONS

4.3.20. Ultimate responsibility for complying with the Code rests with the individual
Members.

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -74



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.01
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PAGE 8 OF 25

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OPETIONS

44, ELECTIONS AND TERMS:

44.1. SELECTION OF OFFICERS:

4411, Should a Director desire to serve as an Officer, he/she has the
responsibility to express such desire to the rest of the Board.

4412 it is desirable that Directors take turns as an Officer.

44.1.3. The Board shall not have a “lock step” rotation system for selecting
Officers.

4.4.1.4. An Officer may be removed from office by a 4/5 vote of the Board (4 out
of 5 Members).

44.2. ELECTIONS: At the first meeting following the election or appointment of new
Director(s) and at the last scheduled meeting of the calendar year (during a
non-election year), the Board shall elect a President and Vice President-and
appoint-a-Sesretary-to serve until the election of his/her successor.

4.4.2.1. Assumption of the Board Officer positions is effective at the conclusion of
the meeting of the Board of Directors at which the election occurred.

4422  Upon the occurrence of a vacancy, the Board shall fill such vacancy in
accordance with the law (Health and Safety §13852). An interim election

may be held upon the written request of the majority of the Directors in
office at the time.

443 SEATING OF NEW DIRECTORS:
4431, The term of office of newly elected Directors shall begin at 12:00 A.M.
of the first Friday of December foliowing their election.
4432 Newly elected Directors are subject to the Brown Act upon
certification of election, which may occur prior to being sworn-in.
44234433 Newly elected Directors shall be sworn-in as the first order of
regular business during the regular December meeting of the Board.

4.4.4. TErRMOF OFFICE: Once elected, Board Officers shail serve in their nominated
position for a one-year term. Board Officers may be removed from a Board
Officer position by a 4/5 vote of the Board (4 out of 5 Members).

4.45. Within ten (10) days after any change in the facts set forth in the Statement
of Facts for the District, as outlined in Government Code § 53051 and §946 .4,
the Board Secretary will update the District's Statement and forward the
updated Statement to the California Secretary of State and to the County
Clerk of San Diego. At a minimum, the following information will be included:

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -75




NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SEcTION 110.01
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PAGE 9 OF 25
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OPERATIONS

4451. The full, legal name of the District;

4452 The official mailing address of the Board of Directors of the District;

4.4.5.3. The name, title and residence or business address of each Member
of the Board of Directors of the District; and

44244454, The name and residence or business address of the
President, other presiding officer and Secretary of the Board of
Directors.

4.5. MEETINGS:

451. TiME AND PLACE: The regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held
on the fourth Tuesday of each month. Except as otherwise provided in this
Section, the regular meetings shall commence at the hour of 54:00 P.M., at
the location designated by the Board at the board meeting at the beginning
of each Administrative year. The Board shall provide by resolution,
ordinance, bylaws or by whatever other rule is required for the conduct of
business, a time and place for holding regular meetings.

452 ADMITTANCE: All meetings are open to the public. Closed Sessions may be
held as permitted by the Ralph M. Brown Act. Such Closed Session matters

are not conducted in public. Government Code §§ 54950-54963.

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page —76



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.01
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PAGE 10 OF 25
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OPERATONS

453 SPECIAL MEETINGS: Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called
in the manner provided by state law with twenty-four (24) hour notice
(Government Code § 54956 (a). A Special Meeting may be called at any time
by the presiding officer of Board, or by a majority of the Members of the Board,
by delivering written notice to each Member of the Board and to each local
newspaper of general circulation and radio or television station requesting
notice in writing and posting a notice on the local agency’s Internet Web site.
The notice shall be delivered personally or by any other means and shall be
received at least twenty-four (24) hours before the time of the meeting as
specified in the notice. The call and notice shall specify the time and place of
the special meeting and the business to be transacted or discussed. No other
business shall be considered at these meetings by the Board.

4-5:3:4.5.4. Special meetings in the form of workshops and study sessions may be
called to implement policy, study budget, study salaries or other areas that
pertain to the District that are open to the public. Notwithstanding any other
law, the Board shall not cali a Special Meeting regarding the salaries, salary
schedules or compensation paid in the form of fringe benefits, of the Fire
Chief/CEOQ, as defined Government Code § 3511.1 (d) (Government Code §
54956 (b).

455, EMERGENCY MEETINGS: Emergency meetings of the Board of Directors may
be called in the manner provided by state law without complying with the
twenty-four (24) hour notice or posting requirements (Government Code §
54956.6).

4.55.1. EMERGENCY SITUATION REFERS TO BOTH:

4.5.5.1.1.  An emergency, which shall be defined as a work stoppage, crippling
activity or other activity that severely impairs public health, safety or
both, as determined by a majority of the Members of the Board: and/or

4.55.12. Adire emergency, which shall be defined as a crippling disaster, mass
destruction, terrorist act or threatened terrorist activity that poses peril
so immediate and significant that it requires the Board to provide one-
hour notice before holding an emergency meeting that may endanger
the public health, safety or both, as determined by a majority of the
Members of the Board.

4.5.5.2. Each local newspaper of general circulation, radio or television station that
has requested notice of special meetings pursuant to Government 54956,
shall be notified by the presiding officer or designee thereof, one (1) hour
prior to the emergency meeting, or in the case of a dire emergency, at or
near the time that the presiding officer notifies the Members of the Board of
the emergency meeting. The notice shall be given by telephone and all

January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meeting Page -77



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

PoLICcY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.01
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PAGE 11 OF 25
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OPERATIONS

telephone numbers provided in the most recent request of a newspaper or
station for notification of Specia! Meetings shall be exhausted. In the event
that telephone services are not functioning, the notice requirements shall
be deemed waived and presiding officer shall notify entities of the fact of the
holding of the emergency meeting, the purpose of the meeting and any
action taken at the meeting as soon after the meeting as possible.

4553. During an emergency meeting, the Board may meet in Closed Session
pursuant to Government Code § 54957 if agreed to by a two-thirds vote of the
Members of the Board present, or if less than two-thirds of the Members are
present, by a unanimous vote of the Members present,

4.5.5.4. All Special Meeting requirements, as prescribed in Government Code §
54956 shall be applicable to an emergency meeting, with the exception of
the twenty-four (24) hour notice requirement

4.5.5.53. The minutes of an emergency meeting, a list of persons who the presiding
officer notified or attempted to notify, a copy of the rolicall vote and any
actions taken at the meeting shall be posted for a minimum of ten (10) days
in a public place as soon after the meeting as possible.

4.5:4-4.5.6. ATTENDANCE: Each Member shall be his/her respective seat at the hour set
for each regular meeting and at the time set for any adjourned or special
meeting. Any Member not present when the Board is called to order shall be
designated in the minutes as absent. If a Member arrives after a meeting
convenes, the Recerding-Board Secretary shall note his/her arrival in the
minutes. The Fire Chief/CEQ or his/her designee shall attend all regular and
special meetings of the Board unless otherwise specified by the Board.

4.5:5:4.5.7. ABSENCES: If any Member of the Board is unable to attend a meeting, the
Board Member shall, if possible, notify the Board President or the Board
Secretary prior to the meeting and advise the reasons therefore.

4.6. AGENDA:

46.1. PosTiNG: The Agenda shall be posted in-thefront-public-display-case-at-the
main-entrance-to-the-AdministrativeHeadguarers-seventy-two (72) hours

prior to regularly scheduled meetings;-special-meetings and Finance-othet
Committee meetings or as required by the Board. Copies of the Agenda shall
be made available to the public at the Board Meeting. The Agenda shall be
posted at the following locates: [1] At the Administrative Headquarters front
public display case at the main entrance, [2] at the Roy Noon Meeting Hall
front public display case at the main entrance, [3] at the meeting location in a
conspicuous location; and [4] on the District website.

Januarv 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meetina Page -78



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

PoLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.01
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PAGE 12 OF 25
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OPERATIONS

46.2. DISTRIBUTION: Any writings given to a majority of the Board must be made
available to the generat public so long as those writings are public records. If
these writings are distributed to Members of the Board before the meeting,
such writings must be made available to the public before the meeting. By
the same token, any writings distributed to the Board during the course of the
meeting must also be made available to the public at that time and will comply
with the Government Code. The major exception to the obligation to provide
the public with access to any writings distributed to Members of the Board,
are those that deal with matters properly discussed in closed sessions or
protected under the Government Code; those are to remain confidential.
Nothing in this law prevents the Board from charging a fee or deposit for a
copy of public records pursuant to the Government Code.

46.3. CONTENT: The Agenda shall include those matters, complete with pertinent

department papers, reports and supporting documentation relating to each
matter, addressed to the Board for action.

46214631, A Special meeting notice shall specify the time and place of
the special meeting and the business to be transacted or discussed. No
other business shall be considered at these meetings by the Board
Government Code § 54956 (a).

46224632 A brief general description of each item of business to be transacted
or discussed at the meeting, including items to be discussed in Closed
Session, shall be included.

46234633 NOTICE TO AMERICANS WITH DiSABILTIES: Al Agendas will contain the
notice to disabled individuals regarding how to obtain assistance in
compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, using the following
language:

4623146331 “Note: This-Agenda-was-posted-al-the-entrance—of-borh County Fire Pratection District
Admipistiative-Ofbcas. Eallorook-Pubdic-Litidty [ustrict ano Roy Noon-Meating Hall anJuna 22 2006
{spesific-date) The Americans with Disabllmes Act provides that no qualified individual with a disability
shall be excluded from participation in, or denied the benefits of, District business. If you need

assistance to participate In this meeting, please contact the District Office 7224 hours prior to the
meeting at (760) 723-2012."

46244634 AB 343 CoMPLIANCE: Copies of Agendas, Staff reports and other
Agenda-packet materials shall be made available to the general public at

the same time those materials are provided to Members of the Board of
Directors.

482564635 Documents submitted to the majority of the Board less than
seventy-two (72) hours prior to a public meeting, shall be made available

January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meeting Page -79



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.01
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PAGE 13 OF 25

BOARD OF DIECTORS OPERATION

for public inspection in the office of the Board Secretary as soon as the
documents are distributed to the Board. Documents may be posted on
District bulletin boards or on the District website.

46264636 Any document related to an Agenda-item, which is provided
to the Board at the meeting by Staff, shall be available to the public at the
Board meeting. Documents provided by other than Staff, will be made
available for public review after the meeting.

46274637. All Agendas will contain the notice to individuals regarding
how to obtain Board materials released after the Agenda has been
published, using the following language:

4~§Q—M—1~463711 *—Malerials selatod to-an-item_on ihis Agenda submitted to-the- District-afier

bk neeling.” The Agenda was also avaulable for review at the Office of
lhe Board Secretary Iocaled at located at 330 S. Main Avenue, Fallbrook (760} 723-2012. Materials
related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the District after distribution of the agenda packet, are
available for public inspection in the Cffice of the Board Secretary, during normal business hours or
may be found on the District website, subject to the Staffs ability to post the documents before the
meeting, The date of posting was

463464 ORGANIZATION: The Agenda shali list the items for the Board's
consideration by number with a brief statement of the subject matter for each
of the items. The Agenda may include suggested actions or
recommendations. The business of each Regular meeting of the Board shall

be in the order as printed on the Agenda or as directed by the President of
the Board.

4.8.3.14.6.4.1. Meeting called to order;
4.6.32-4.6.4 2. Public Activities Agenda with Comment Period for Non-Agendized
ltems;
4-6-3-3.4.6.4.3. Review of Agenda. Amendment of agenda, if necessary;
4-6-3-4-4 6.4 4 Consent Items, including:
4834146441 Approval of Minutes and
4.6342:46.4.42. Financial Report;
4634346443 Approval Policies and Procedures
4-6344-46.4.4.4. Routine/Recurring Quarterly-Staff Reports;
46354 6.4.5 Action ltems;
4.6-3:6-4 6 4 6 Discussion ltems;
48374647 Legal Report;
4.6.3-8.4 6 4 8. Written Communications;
4.6.3.9-4 6.4.9 News Atticles;
4631046410 Staff Comments;
46314464 11. Board Comments;

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -80



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.01
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PAGE 14 OF 25

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OPERATIONS

4834246412 Bargaining Groups Comments;

4631346413, Public Comments;

46-3-14-4 6.4 .14. Such other business as is necessary so that the Fire District
can perform its functions as required by law;

4831646415 Closed Session, if required; and

4831646.4.16. Adjournment.

464465, DEADLINE: The deadline for receiving Agenda items shall be 4:00
P.M., twelve days before the Board Meeting (generally, the second Friday
Thursday of the month). The only exception is matters of an exigent nature
which require immediate Board action. Under such circumstances, items may
be added to the Action Agenda upon unanimous consent of the presiding
guorum.

4.6.6. GENERAL RULES OF CONDUCT:

46414651 COMMITTEES: It shall be the responsibility of each Member of a
Committee, appointed by the Board, to be fully informed concerning the
business assigned to it by the Board. Each Committee shall promptly
perform tasks assigned to it and report to the Board such information and
recommendations as shall be necessary or proper. The-Board President
shall-appeint-Standing-and-Ad-Hoc Commitieas-as-deemed-necessany

46424652 MEMBERSHIP: The Board President will appoint those Members
necessary to carry out the goals and objectives of the specific Committee.
This may consist of any combination of parties in accordance with the
Brown Act.

46434653 DURATION: Terms of Membership on Standing Committees (i.e.
Finance) shall be for at least a one-year term. There is no maximum term.
Membership on Ad Hoc Committees shall be for the duration of the
Committee. Ad Hoc Committees function for a limited duration and
specified purpose. Standing Committees are subject to the requirements
of the Brown Act and shall publish their Agenda and provide notice in the
same manner as the Regular Board Meetings.

4:6:4-4.4 6.54. FUNCTION: Committees shall act on behalf of the Board as a whole
and shall make recommendations and regular reports to inform the Board
as well as receive direction from the Board.

4644146541 Appointment on other Agency, Board or Commission:

464424 6.5.4.2. No public official at any level of state or local government
shall make, participate in making or in any way attempt to use
histherofficial position to influence a governmental decision in which
he knows or has reason to know he has a financial interest.

January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meetina Page —-81



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.01
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PAGE 15 OF 25
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OPERATIONS

Government Code § 87100.1.

4644346543 Whenever the Board votes on an appointment for a Board
Member to serve on another governmental agency and pay is
provided, the Board must comply with FPPC Reg. §18705.5, which
requires the following:

4:6-4-4.3-446.54.3.1. Priorto a vote (or consent item) to appoint a governing
board Member to a paid position on another agency, the Board
Secretary for the agency voting to appoint the official, must
complete and place on the agency’s website, California Form 806
“Agency Report of: Public Officials Appointments.” This form
contains the following information:
4.6-4431144654311. Agency ldentification;
4.6443424654312 Appointment to another agency (name of
agency), including length of term, stipend/salary per meeting
and estimated annual payment;
46443134.6.54.3.1.3. Verification by agency head.

4.6:4-4:4-46.54.4. Form 806 is to be promptly amended upon any of the following
circumstances:
464441465441 The number of scheduled meetings is changed;
464442465442 There is a change in the compensation paid to the

Members; or
464443465443 Thereis a change in the Membership on the Board or
Commission.
465466 ORDINANCES/CONTRACTS: No ordinance or contract shall be

presented to the Board for action which has not been approved as to form and
legality by District Counsel.

46886467, SAFETY: Unless addressing the Board, or entering or leaving the
Boardroom, all persons in the audience shall remain sitting in the seats
provided (to the extent that seating is available). It is the Board's intent to
accommodate all persons who wish to attend open public meetings.

467468 DEMONSTRATIONS: All demonstrations, including cheering, yelling,
whistling, hand clapping and foot stomping are prohibited.

468469 SMOKING: Smoking is prohibited in the Board meeting room.

4.6.8.46.10. PuBLIC ADDRESSING OF BOARD ON_NON-AGENDA ITEMS: Persons
desiring to address the Board on any matter not listed on the Agenda shall
make arrangements to be on the calendar in advance with the President of

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page —82




NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.01
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PAGE 16 OF 25

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OPERATIONS

the Board through the office of the Board Secretary.

46404611  PuBLIc HEARING PROCEDURES (APPEALS): Procedures at hearings
shall be as follows:

46-10-1+46.11.1.  Staff presentation/recommendations;
46460246112 Questions of the Staff in support;
4.8:40-3.46.11.3.  Individuals speaking in support;
48140446114  Individuals speaking in opposition;
4.6-10:5-46.11.5.  Individuals speaking in concern;
4.6-1064.6.11.6. Rebuttal (if any);

4.6-10746.11.7.  Public input (if any);

461084 6.11.8. Board discussion and disposition (vote).

46114612  SUSPENSION OF RULES: Except as otherwise provided by law, any
procedural rule contained in this Policy may be suspended or changed by
order.

47. OFFICIATION:

4.7.1. OFFICIATING AND LINES OF SUCCESSION:

4.7.1.1. The President when-present—shall preside at all meetings of the Board,
shall take the chair at the hour appointed for every Board meeting and
immediately call the Members to order, and except in the absence of a
quorum, shall proceed with the business of the Board in the manner
prescribed in these rules.

4.7.1.2. Inthe absence or unavailability of the President, the Vice-President shall
act as President.

4.7.1.3. inthe absence of the Vice President, the most senior Board Member shall
preside.

4.7.2. POWERS AND DUTIES — PRESIDENT: The President shall possess the powers
and perform the duties prescribed as follows:

4.7.2.1. The President shall be the chief officer of the Board and shall, subject to
the approval of the Board of Directors, give supervision and direction to
the business and affairs of the Board.

4.7.2.2. The President shall be the presiding officer at all Board of Director
meetings. The President shall be an ex-officio Member of all Standing
Committees. The Board President shall appoint Standing and Ad Hoc
Committees Members as deemed necessary,

January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meeting Page —-83



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.01
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PAGE 17 OF 25
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OPERATIONS

4.7.2.3. The President shall have the general powers, duties and management
usually vested in the office of the president of a corporation. The President
shall have such other powers and duties as may be prescribed or by the
vote of the Board of Directors.

472144724 It is the duty of the President or his/her designee to call a
workshop meeting prior to the first General Meeting after elections. This
is to benefit the newly elected Directors and acquaint them with the
California State Health and Safety Code, District Policies, the Brown Act
(Open Meeting Laws) and the current Annual Budget.

47224725, Have general direction over the Boardroom and assign seats
for the use of the Board Members and Members of the Staff, and if required:

4.7.2.5.1. Preserve order and decorum; prevent demonstration; order removal
from the Boardroom any person whose conduct is deemed
objectionable; and order the Boardroom cleared whenever the
President deems it necessary.

4722147252  Limit the amount time to twenty (20) minutes for any
agendized topic that may be discussed in order to facilitate the
business of the Board.

4.7.2.5.3. Limit the amount of time that a person may address the Board
during a public comment period to accommodate those persons
desiring to speak and-to facilitate the business of the Board. Public
comments should be limited to three minutes per speaker.
472347286. Testimony of experts during an agendized topic may be
limited to ten (10) minutes at the discretion of the Board President.
47244727 Allocate equal time to opposing sides insofar as possible,
taking into account the number of persons requesting to be heard on any
side.

47264728 The President shall be the official spokesperson for the Board,
unless the Board selects another person.

4.7.3. POWERS AND DUTIES — VICE PRESIDENT:

4.7.3.1. Inthe absence of, or disability of the President, the Vice President shall
perform all of the duties of the President. When so acting, the Vice
President shall have all the powers of the President and be subject to all
the restrictions upon the President.

47.4. RECORDING OF INFORMATION:

January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meeting Page -84



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL
GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.01
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PAGE 18 oF 25

4741, All open sessions of the Board meetings shall be tape-recorded in their
entirety. The recordings tapes-will be destroyed after the minutes have
been approved, but no sooner than thirty (30) days after the Board
meeting (Government Code Section 54593-6(b}).
4-7.4-1-4.7.4 2. Prior to taking final action, the Board shall orally report a summary of
a recommendation for a final action on the salaries, salary schedules or
compensation paid in the form of fringe benefits of the Fire Chief/CEO
as defined in Government Code § 3511.1(d), during the open meeting
in which the final action is to be taken.
47424743 Minutes shall be taken by the Board Secretary which summarize:
4742147431 Synopsis of the Board discussion on items presented;
4742247432 Actiontaken, with a recordation of motion noting name of each
person making and seconding motion;

47433  Any action taken and the vote or abstention on that action of each
Member present for the action. (Government Code Section 54593 (c)
(3).

4-74:2.3.47.4.34 Action taken, with a recordation of voting by name on each
motion where a roll call vote is required;

4742447435 Specific information requested by the Board to be entered into
the minutes.

4.7.5. CONTROL OF DISTURBANCES:

47.51. The Presiding Officer President—shall order removed from the
Boardroom any person who disrupts any Regular or Special meeting of
the Board. Examples of disruptive behavior may be:

4.7.5.1.1. Impertinent, slanderous or profane remarks to any Member of the
Board, Staff, the public or others;

4.7.51.2. Disparaging an individual, group or their associates on the basis
of their ethnicity, race, gender, sexuality, age, disability,
immigration status or religion;

4.7.51.3. Loud, threatening or abusive language, especially directed at
individuals, causing fear, havoc or similar reactions;

4.7.51.4. Argumentative interruption of a speaker, the presiding officer, a
Member of the Body, staff or meeting facilitator;

4.7.5.1.5. Engaging in disorderly or boisterous conduct, including using loud,
threatening or abusive language, whistling, clapping, stamping of
feet, waving signs or similar acts;

4761247516, Continuing to speak after exceeding a time limit and
being asked to step down.

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -85



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

PoLIcY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.01
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PAGE 19 OF 25

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OPERATIONS

47.5.2. Everyone, even persons disrupting a meeting, will be treated with
equitability and respect. The presiding officer will issue a warning to
stop the disruptive behavior. If the disruptive behavior continues, the
presiding officer or a majority of the Body will take action to regain
order and to continue the work of the Board.

4.7.56.3. Any person so removed shall be excluded from further attendance at the
meeting from which the person has been removed, unless permission
to attend is granted upon motion adopted by a majority vote of the Board.

4.7.5.4. The exception to the right of the public to attend all meetings of the Board
applies to those who attempt to disrupt the conduct of the meeting. In
the event that any meeting is willfully disrupted, by a group or groups of
persons, that renders the orderly conduct of such meeting unfeasible
and order cannot be restored by the removal of the individuals who are
willingly interrupting the meeting, the Board may order the meeting room
cleared and continue in session. However, only matters appearing on
the Agenda may be considered in such a session. Duly accredited
representatives of the press and other news media, except those
participating in the disturbance shall be allowed to attend any session
held pursuant to this exception.

4.7.6. INTRODUCTION OF NON-AGENDA ITEMS: Any Board Member intending to
introduce a special item not contained in the Agenda shall deliver a copy of
such items to each Board Member. items may not normally be added to the
Agenda unless the item(s) in question are of an exigent nature and in such
cases the addition of the specified item(s) must occur with unanimous
approval of the presiding quorum.

4.7.7. ORDER OF SPEAKING: When any Board Member wishes to speak, the Board
Member shall address the President. The President shall name the Member
who is first to speak and speakers shall confine their remarks to the questions
under debate and avoid personalities. The President may elect not to

recognize a Board Member to speak again until all other Members have had
an opportunity to be heard.

47.8. RULES OF PROCEDURE AND CONDUCT: Meetings and Committee meetings
shall be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, the Fire Protection
District Law of 1987 and this Policy. Should the point of order in question not

be addressed in these documents, the President shall take the following
actions {in order):

47.8.1. Refer to Roberts Rules of Order, Revised edition:

January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meeting Page —86



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

PoLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.01
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PAGE 20 oF 25
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OPERATIONS

4.7.8.2. Askfor a motion and vote to rule on the point of order;
4.7.8.3. Rule on the point of order.

4.7.9. MOTIONS:

47.91. Any action taken by the Board shall be initiated by a motion or
introduction of a resolution or ordinance.

47.92. A second on the motion is required.

47.93. The President shall be allowed to make motions.

4.7.94. The Secretary shall record the names of those making and seconding
motions.

4.7.9.5. Once the President calls for remarks on a motion, the Member making
the motion is entitled to speak first. The President shall recognize
speakers before the make their remarks.

4.7.96. Secondary motions pertaining to the main motion may be introduced
before the main motion is voted. The last motion stated, shall be the
first pending motion and the main motion shalt be voted upon last.

4.7.9.7. A motion to amend must have the approval of the person making the
original motion or a majority vote of the Board. An amendment to a
motion may only be amended once.

4.7.9.8. MoTions To RECONSIDER: Except in the case of specific Agenda items
requiring a noticed public hearing, the Board may reconsider any vote
taken at the same session to correct an inadvertent error or consider
new information not available at the time of the vote. A motion to
reconsider requires a majority vote (3/5) prior to being reconsidered.

47.99. ITEMS PREVIOUSLY VOTED UPON: Unless an emergency situation exists,
an item which has been voted on by the Board will not be brought back
to the Board for consideration for a minimum of one year, without
approval of the majority of the Board.

4.7.9.10. MoTIONS TO RESCIND, REPEAL, OR ANNUL ACTIONS TAKEN AT PREVIOUS
MEETINGS: Such actions may be carried out by:

4.7.9.10.1. Passing a motion to place the item on a future Agenda; or
4.7.8.10.2. Passing the motion to rescind, repeal or annul with the appropriate
number of votes (see below).

4.7.10. VoOTING:

4.7.10.1. ApproVAL OF A MoTION: To be deemed an official action of the Board, all
actions must receive a majority vote (3/5), with the following exceptions,
which require a 2/3 vote (super majority or 4/5 vote):

47.10.1.1. Motion to adopt or amend any policy or rule:

January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meeting Page —87



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL.

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.01
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PAGE 21 0OF 25

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OPERATIONS

47.10.1.2 Motion to reconsider a previously considered motion;

4710.1.3 Motion to close a debate;

4710.14, Motion on any non-agendized item;

4.7.10.1.5 Motion to remove a Board Member from a Board Office position.

4.7.10.2. A unanimous motion is required to discontinue or transfer funds designated
as Capital Outlay reserves.
4.7.10.3. RoLL CAiL: The roll need not be called in voting upon a motion except
where specifically required by law or requested by any Board Member.
When the roll is called on any motion, any Member present who does not
vote in an audible voice shall be recorded as "AYE.”
4.7.10.4. RiGHT TO0 VOTE: Questions pertaining to a Director’s right to vote on items
because of the potential conflict of interest shall be decided as foilows:
4.7.10.4.1. Director disqualifies himselffherself; or
47.104.2.  President disqualifies the Director from voting.
4.7.10.5. ApPEAL OF RIGHT TO VOTE: Should any Director be disqualified from voting
or be overruled on a point of order by the President, he/she may move to
appeal the ruling to the full Board. The President shall have the right to vote
on the appeal and the majority vote of the Board overrules the President.
4.7.10.6. VOTING PARAMETERS:
47.106.1. There must be a quorum of three Members present to conduct
business;
47.10.6.2. A majority vote (simple majority) means three affirmative votes (3/5);
47.10.6.3. A 2/3 or super majority vote means four affirmative votes (4/5);
47.10.6.4. A unanimous vote means five affirmative votes (5/5).

2.0. EXPENSES OF THE DISTRICT:

5.1. EXPENDITURES: A claims statement of expenditures for the proceeding period
shall be submitted for the approval of the Board.

5.2.  CAPITAL OUTLAY: Major items exceeding-$5.000.00-shall be approved by the
Board prior to purchase in accordance with the Purchase and Contracting Policy,
even though the item is included in the Annual Budget. Items costing in excess of
the limits set forth in Public Contract Code and Health and Safety Code, will be bid
by no less than three (3) sealed bids.

5.3. EMERGENCY EXPENSES: In the event of sudden extreme emergency, the
President and the Fire Chief/CEO or their designated representatives concurrently
may authorize expenditures of funds not budgeted when a Board meeting cannot

be convened in time. Board approval must be obtained at the next regular Board
meeting.

January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meeting Page —88



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

PoLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.01
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PAGE 22 OF 25
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OPERATIONS

54. COMPENSATION: In concurrence with Health and Safety Code § 13857 and AB
1234, each Member of the District Board shall receive such sum as may be fixed
by the Board, not to exceed $100, for attending each meeting of the District Board,
not to exceed four (4) such meetings in any calendar month, including:

54.1. MEETINGS:

54.11. Each Regular or Special meeting attended:;

54.1.2. Each Regular or Special advisory meeting attended:;

2.4.13. Any conference or organized educational activity conducted in
compliance with the Government Code, including but not limited to,
ethics training;

5414. Compensation for attendance at any meeting of the Board shall be the
same rate;

5415 Members of the District Board may receive such other benefits as
allowed by law only if the Board has adopted, in a public meeting, a
written policy specifying other types of occasions that constitute the
performance of official duties for which a Member of the Board may
receive payment.

5.5. EDUCATION:

3.5.1.  The District may authorize its Directors and employees to attend professional
or vocational meetings and pay their actual and necessary traveling and
incidental expenses while on official business. Reimbursement for these
expenses is subject to the Government Code.

5.5.2. Members shall provide brief reports on meetings attended at the expense of
the local agency at the next regular meeting of the legislative body.

55.3. ETHICS TRAINING:

5.5.3.1. Any Member of the a local agency legislative body or any elected local
agency official who receives any type of compensation, salary, stipend or
reimbursement for actual and necessary expenses incurred in the
performance of actual duties shall have approved biennial ethics training.
This training includes:
5.5.3.11. Any employee designated by the local agency legislative body who
is to receive training as specified under the Government Code.
6:6-3-2—nitial-training-for each-Member-of- the-Board-shall be-assomplished-priorto
January1, 2007

January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meetina Page -89



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.01
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PAGE 23 OF 25
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OPERAIONS

8§833.553.2. Thereafler—Eeach Member of the Board and specified employees
shall attend approved Biennial Ethics Training.

6:6-3-4-5.5.3.3. The District shall provide the Members of the Board with information
educational opportunities to satisfy this requirement at least annually.

66365534, Members of the District Board may be allowed actual and necessary
travel, meals and lodging to attend biennial ethics training as approved by
the Board.

554, SEXUAL HARASSMENT PREVENTION TRAINING AND EDUCATION:

554.1. Under Assembly Bill 1661 (2016), North County Fire Protection District
qualifies as a “Local agency” as special district.

5542 As Directors of NCFPD, each Director qualifies as a “Local Agency
Official,” as a Member of a local agency legislative body and elected
local agency official [Government Code § 53237].

5543 Since NCFPD provides compensation to its Directors for meetings (as
outlined in § 5.4 herein), then its local agency officials shall receive
sexual harassment prevention training and education pursuant pursuant
to Government Code § 53237.1.

554.4. Each Director shall receive at least two (2) hours of sexual harassment
prevention training and education within the first six (6) months of taking
office and every two (2) years thereafter.

5545, An entity that develops curricula to satisfy the requirements of
Government Code § 53237.1, shall consult with County Counsel
regarding the sufficiency and accuracy of that proposed content. An
entity is permitted to include local sexual harassment prevention training
and education policies in the curricula.

5.54.6.  The training and education required by Government Code § 53237.1
shall include information and practical guidance regarding the federal
and state statutory provisions concerning the prohibition against, and
the prevention and correction of, sexual harassment and the remedies
available to victims of sexual harassment in employment. The training
and education shall also include practical examples aimed at instructing
the local agency official in the prevention of sexual harassment,
discrimination and refaliation, and shall be presented by trainers or
educators with knowledge and expertise in the prevention of sexual
harassment, discrimination and retaliation.

5647 The District may offer one or more training courses, or sets of self-study
materials with tests, to meet the requirements of Government Code §
53237.1. These courses may be taken at home, in person or online.

5.5.4.8.  All providers of training courses shall provide participants with proof of
participation to meet the requirements of this Government Code §

January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meeting Page —90




NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECTION 110.01

PAGE 24 OF 25
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OPERATIONS

53237 1.

5549 A local agency shall provide a recommendation on training available to
meet the requirements of this article to its local agency officials and its
employees at least once in written form before assuming a new position
and every two years thereafter.

5:5:3:6—— A local agency official who serves more than one local agency shall
satisfy the requirements of this article once every two years without
regard to the number of local agencies he or she serves.

664555 DISTRICT RESPONSIBILITIES:
86415551, ETHICS AND HARASSMENT -TRAINING:
8641155511, The District shall maintain records demonstrating

satisfaction of the ethies-ethics and/or harassment training mandate
that demonstrates the following:
664144555111 The dates the Members satisfied the requirements for
ethics and/or harassment training;
5:5:4-1-12:5.5.5.1.1.2. The entity that provided the training.

56414255512 The records shall be maintain for at least five (5) years
after the Members obtain the training;
6:5413.55513. The records shall be public records subject to

disclosure under the California Public Records Act.
565556, EXPENSES:

6:6:6.55.7. The District shall provide expense report forms to be filed by the
Members of the Board for reimbursement of actua! and necessary expenses
incurred on behalf of the District in performance of official duties.
Reimbursable expenses shall include, but not be limited to, meals, lodging
and travel.

56. TRAVEL/LODGING:

5.7. Members of the District Board may be allowed actual and necessary travel, meals
lodging and other actua! and necessary incidental expenses incurred in the
performance of official business of the District as approved by the District Board.

5.8. Members are required to submit an expense report with a reasonable time, with
supporting documentation in order to be reimbursed for expenses.

6.0. REFERENCES:

January 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting Page -91



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

GOVERNANCE SECTION 110.01
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PAGE 25 OF 25
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OPERATIONS

6.1. FPPC Requlation 18705.5;

6.2. Assembly Bill 1661;

6.3. Government Code § §946.4:
6-4+—Government Code § 53051;

6.4. Government Code §§ 53237-53237.5;
626.5. Government Code Sections 87100;

6-3-6.6. Government Code Sections 87102.5-6 & 8:
6467, Government Code Sections 87103:
68.56.8. Government Code Sections 54950-54963;
6669 Health and Safety §13852:

6-76.10. Health & Safety Code § 13853b;

6.11. Health and Safety Code § 13857,
6-8.6.12. Health & Safety § 13895

7.0. RELATED POLICIES/IFORMS:

7.1. POLICIES:
7.1.1. Code of Ethics & Values.

7.2. FORMS:

7.2.1 Conflict of Interest - Form 806:
+2317.2.2. Statement of Facts.

LAST REVIEW 11-27-12 04-08-2009

LM Review
LAST UPDATE: 14-27-12 05-14-2009
FC/BOD APFROVAL: 12-11-12 05-29-2009
TRACKER: 140.01

January 22, 2019 - Reqular Board Meeting Page -92



NORTH COUNTY FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICT

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES — BUDGET & FINANCE

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FROM: DePUTY CHIEF MAROVICH AND CHIEF ABBOTT
DATE: JANUARY 22, 2019

SUBJECT: SECOND QUARTER OVERTIME TRACKING REPORT

CONSENT AGENDA
BACKGROUND:

This report is designed to provide an overview of the overtime expenditures in
comparison with the budgeted amounts and historical usage. In addition, this report
documents overtime based on the leave that generates it and includes reimbursements
from providing Mutual Aid.

DISCUSSION:

The attached charts provide multiple views of overtime usage and the leave that
generates it. The reporting periods coincide with the month divisions and not pay
periods. Therefore, there may be variations from month to month. An increase in
overtime may be attributed to an additional pay period falling within that particular month
or unusually high overtime due to an event or mutual aid activity. Three charts are
included to give a quick visual comparison of the tracked areas:

+ Leave Analysis by Type
+ Five Year Overtime History
» Two Year Overtime Comparison by Month

FISCAL ANALYSIS:

The District finished the second quarter with a slight decrease in both annual leave and
sick leave compared to the same quarter last year but are experiencing higher rate of
industrial injury. Current overtime is 40.56% expended but the District received
reimbursements for mutual aid in the amount of $94,906 which reduces the overtime
down to 29.64% of the budget.

SUMMARY:

information only, no action needed.

Page 1 of 1 ]
January 22, 2019 - Reqular Board Meeting Page -93



—

002£0'8

000 0589 000 00'bTE SLT9T 00'995'L 0S'S68L | PV emny m
000 00°0 000 000 | SLEL 0S'6 0S'E 006 | 2rea1.30 IV E
000 SLTT9 000 000 0002 000 00'858 000 Anful leuisnpu) m
000 00'90€°T 000 00’6181 0O'ELE ST oY1 00'86%'1 SLOPT'T IAEIT IS |
000 00°SET'T 000 00°'805T 05°'6vY'T 00'€TT'T 05'¥S9'T 05909 anea fenuuy -w.
61/81 8T/L1 61/81 8L/L1 61/81 8T/LT 61/81 8T/LT

| nouw 10 Yy 1D pig 0o pag 10 puz np puz "o 15T 10 IST -

- 00°000°T
00°000°C
00°000°E

- 00°000°
- - 00°000°S
00'000°'9

- 00°000°L

00'000'8

- el 007000°6

6T/8T-8T/LT HILYVND puz
3dAL A9 SYNOH 40 YIFINNN
SIDIAYIS ADNIDYIWI Ad4DN

S3JIAY3S AONIOHINWT Ad4ON

Page —94

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting



| abedq
6T/8T Ad BT/LT A/ LT/9T Af4 9T/ST A/4 ST/¥T A/d
s
000°005$
¥NLOE 000'000'1S
pasinguiay 1O @
I
pred 10m w ! =
S L3 . = 000°00S°TS
d 3] [+
o - =
& A
Pud
000°000°ZS
AN
N
[ 3
[=]
o
m Bl bl T ot Sl Bt Sttt o P Sl e Cefl o TR Ooo.ocm.mw

INFNISHNGWITY ANV AHOLSIH INILYIAO HVIA S
SIJINY3S ADNIDHUW3 Ad4ON

689'/6Z¢ 908'2vZ'l$  9£8'009%  142'900'1%  SH0'98.% 8N 10O
906'v6$ 9/6'198% ig Mg ¥89'vGES 9eL'68E$  pasinquidy 10O
L6S'ZSE$ TBL'60L'ZS #BY'CKO'LE  LSFLOELS  18LLLLLS pled 1O
6L/8L Ad  8H.IIL NS 291 M4 oL/sL M4 SLivl A/

XHLO YA S

e e vl |

Paae -95

Januarv 22, 2019 - Reqular Board Meeting



61/8T papuadxy A
81/LT papuadxy m

or 6 8 L 9 5 14 £ z T
- 0%

- 000°05%

985'£6$
9£9'565 |

- 000°00TS

94L'201$

00005T%

808'ELTS

000°002%

109°€61S
S£9°502%

000°05Z5

099°81Z$
66E'ZETS

T [ e e R B 000°00€%

= 000°0S€S

HLNOW A9 NOSIYVdINOD
JINILYINO ¥VIA OML
SIDIAYIS AINIDYINI Ad4ON

ZEE'DF£$

Page —96

January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meeting




NORTH COUNTY FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICT

OPERATIONS
TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FROM: OPERATIONS/EMS DIVISION
DATE: TUESDAY, JAN 22N° 2019

SUBJECT: CUSTOMER SATISFACTION SURVEY PROGRAM, 2018 — 4™ QUARTER RESULTS
CONSENT AGENDA
RECOMMENDATION:

Review the report as submitted. In looking at the overall percentage of satisfaction with
our service, our customers continue to rate their level of satisfaction overwhelmingly in
the “excellent” category.

BACKGROUND:

This report focuses on two areas, direct feedback based on surveys sent to patients
transported by North County Fire and our Service/Sympathy card program. The distribution
of the survey is based on the 2018 Payer Class percentages according to our ambulance
billing company, Wittman Enterprises. This quarter's customer satisfaction results
incorporate surveys received from Oct 1%, 2018 through Dec 31, 2018. The following is a

listing of the type and number of individual payer classes that are randomly mailed surveys
on a monthly basis.

2018 Payer Class

Private Commercial Insurance 26
 (includes Champus/Active Duty)
MediCal 110

Medicare 54

(includes Senior HMO) _

Cash . el 10

Total - 100

DISCUSSION:

The survey results are reported on quarterly intervals to all safety employees. The sharing
of this information with all employees provides a heightened awareness regarding our
customer's experience in the field. If a system or human deficiency trend is noted, the
management staff will coordinate any measures necessary to correct the problem.

January 22, 2019 - Reqular Board Meeting Page -97



Customer Satisfaction Survey Program
Tuesday, Jan 22, 2019
Page 2 of 3

The first section of the Satisfaction Survey Form evaluates the customer's overall
satisfaction with our service by rating it from “Excellent” to “Poor.” The second section of
the form allows the customer to provide comments on their perception of the service they
received. This quarter 300 surveys were mailed and 76 surveys were returned (25%).

Ninety five percent (95%) of the surveys returned indicated “excellent’ customer
satisfaction as indicated on the chart below:

2018 Customer Satisfaction Results

100%

80%

m 1st Quarter 2018
m2nd Quarter 2018

60%

40% ® 3rd Quarter 2018

20%

[ 4%
| 1%
1%

0%

Excellent

Good Fair Poor

4th Quarter 2018

A

The customer comment portion of the survey has proven to be most effective by aliowing
us to hear the customer’s opinions or concerns first hand, thus allowing us to mitigate any

problems as quickly as possible. These comments are reported on Aftachment-A of this
report.

In order to maintain Continual Quality Improvement (CQ!) for this program, the responses
are reviewed for any unusual comments or areas of concern. When necessary, incident
documents will be reviewed. If a poor rating or adverse report is noted, the EMS Chief
reaches out to seek clarification and ultimately improve services. If indicated, this review
may warrant further investigation or training to mitigate potential customer service issues.

SERVICE/SYMPATHY CARD PROGRAM:

The District continues to utilize a Service/Sympathy Card Program to promote excellence
in our emergency delivery services. This particular program allows our firefighters to
correspond with our customers by personally signing and mailing “Service Cards.” This
post-incident program has proven invaluable in maintaining a positive relationship with
our community through personal contact between our firefighters and the customers they

serve. The “Sympathy Cards” are utilized in the same way by corresponding concern with
a deceased patient's family.

January 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting

Page -98



Customer Satisfaction Survey Program
Tuesday, Jan 22, 2019
Page 3 of 3

The following data identifies the total number of Service and Sympathy cards completed
by each crew during this report’s time frame:

“A"” CREW “B"” CREW “C” CREW TOTAL
4th Q 2018 119 103 109 331
3rd Q 2018 112 138 146 396
29 Q 2018 195 116 154 465
15t Q 2018 100 118 132 350

The above numbers represent 36% of total cards sent by A Shift, 31% of total cards sent
by B Shift and 33% of total cards sent by C Shift.

FISCAL ANALYSIS:

The increased use of Service Cards has contributed to increased expenditures in both
printing and postage. Annually, the Program costs approximately $2,000.00 to operate.

It is our belief that enhanced public relations and the benefits these cards represent is
worth the expenditure.

SUMMARY:

The North County Fire Protection District takes seriously the demeanor and professional
conduct of its employees while providing emergency services. Qur Customer Survey
Program provides a tool to measure and quantify this area and if necessary, implement
and/or modify the emergency delivery system to ensure its ability to meet customer
expectations. This program, which is now in its seventeenth year, consistently reflects a
high degree of satisfaction with the services delivered by the employees of the North
County Fire Protection District, beginning from the request for service up to and including
final mitigation of the incident.

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -99



...... jua|@oXx3 8L0Z/9L/0L | 91-P0-8L
“Ryipoey 0) aAup uo [epdsoy ul ¥ 03 3oeq pake|a) Apoaod jou Juawssasse Buunp aw 1o} %00} dipsweled
(jeoipaw) uoewLOjU| "8ABY PINOD 8Y Sk asioaid Se uoljelLojul punosByoey [eoipatu Aejal 10U pIp Jipawieled 8L0Z/60/0L | SL-¥0-8L
g, M. g “inoAuey) ‘jjam Buiop w,| ‘sjqesbpamouy pue _mcoMmEoE fan ase fayl 810Z/90/01 | ¥iL-v0-8)
i9W 10} 3|gejieA. DBuiaq 1o} SHUELE Auew
‘Auepy ‘9iqepojwiod aw axeww of Buiyiliens paiy sy pue uled SLWAXS U SEM [ jJUS)|80Xa Sem juepuspe sy | _ 8L02/90/01 | £l-v0-81
‘auop [[@m qor uaned nay) Joj Buled pue jeucissajoxd Kion se man SIY) puaWiWod | ‘Jamsue |
ue se ou e} Lupip Aoy ‘wajqoid diy Aw yum aw 10) 20eid 1$9q U mauy ABU] Jewo|ed O} Juam am Jo
W 105 WwooJ e Buiaey Jou Jewoed yum ayndsip Loys e Jayy JEWOE O} O }as pue pJeoquo sw papeo diy 8L0¢/50/0L | Z1-v0-8l
Aw ax01q | pazijeal Aay | “Aptoinb Alaa aweo jdap auy ay) "dn 386 o) ajqeun ‘diy Aw Bunjealq |18y pue paddu |
4Bl wads Jou seop Bulyiowos juapioul sy} 104 pajitq Buieq w,| ¢BUBID yim y1omiau jo 1no 4ON sI AU g810Z/S0/01 | [1-PO-BL
S isoipawesed jealc)
{SHUBL L ‘pajpuey Sem |je Aem au) Jo @snedaq |Njssalls ssa| SouBiNge Ue Ul asusiadxa (jsef Apnjedoy pue) 8L0Z/S0/0L | 0L-PO-8L
1Sy Aw apew Aay) "xejas 0} sw padiay yoiym uoissedwod pue wsijeuoissajoid ay) ypm passasduil Ao sem |
T fendsoy |
Jewojed Aq pawuopiad }s3) 3 SS90X2 AU} ||B PASU J0U PIp pue wooiyleq Aw ul [|e) Sem pIp | [|© — 000'GES S3A 8L0Z/P0/0L | 60-¥0-8l
SEM {[Ig BY) PUE JeLIO[Ed W YOO0] NOA |Pasnyal noA — oBaig ueg ul [epdsou A aU] 0] USye) 9g o) pajsanbal |
.y Jus|8oxg | | 8L0Z/¥0/0L | 80-¥0-8L
TR ‘Buleo pue [euoissajoid sem Q440N Yim eouauadx3 | | 810Z/v0/0L | Z0-v0-81
‘nof yueyy ‘sem ay YIS MOy aZi|eal Jou pIp apA Biuownaud signop
pEY PUE ¥20US Ul SEM 8y A0~ 01306 ay uaum se a01Ape 1Saq ayj sem eyl Jabuo| Jo| B way] 3HE) pinom —
1 'oyeJ; Jo asnedeq pue Buuiow ABpUO SEM }| “SIEJIA SIY OF @np J jsulebe pasiApe Ing pinod Ay} paje)s 8L0Z/c0/0L | 90-¥0-8l
Aay) AuD 1] Jo pesisul Jewoied 0] pueqsny Aw ayE] 0] wal) pajuem | jeaib arem jpuucssad jdap and
)se}
Alan sem s asuodsal 8y 1O aJed UdNe) pue ajes AISA )9 pue paJeds Jusem aug ‘Anubip yum tsyybnep | 21L0Z/Z00L | SO-v0-81
Aw pajeas pue sotu sem 3uokIand (Juss a1am SIIOIYA pue 3idoad Auew os Aym puejsispun ), :m_o snl | | )
inoAyuey) |
‘paonpal Ajlesib s1am Sjoay9 Jajk Siy 'asucdsal yoinb 1By} YUAA 930S siy woy Buiaacoas si puegsny | e10Z/10/0L | wO-tO-8L
Aw pue 2011198 Jiay) 1o} (nateab a1e ap Jnydiey pue [euoissajoid AJaA a1em BOUB)SISSE N0 0} SWIED OYM |y
| TR jualaox3 8102/L0/0L | €0-¥0-81
” i inof yuey . j901A19s JuL)@axXT JuswsAoidull 10} suonsabbns oN 8102/L0/0L | 20-¥0-81
= nofyueyy ‘jeuoissejoid Kisapueinaied | | 8L0Z/L0/0L | LO-b0-8L
SHUBUILIOY) J8WI0ISNY) z.w__q__o 4 ﬂwwﬂmom ._M“M”_z
Y juswiyoelly
9Q-P0O

81.0Z JOHEND YLNO-
Aaaing uonoejsies Jawosn)

Jou3sIq uonoalold ali4 Ajunod YHoN

Page ~100

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting



T R ~ ie1e0ieaq JOf paYSE 8AEY JOU PIn03 | | '8102/€2/0L | 1E-¥0-8L
e {1ens| payoeye sas) Juaj@ox3 8L0Z/2Z/0L | 0E-p0-8L
| noA yjuey) ‘Buiulow Buimoyjoy ayy esnoy auy 03 Wway) buug 03 yBnous puny aJem Aoy} pue »Oeq SpIed jedipall [ T
s pueqgsny Aw }a6 o job.0} | uoisnjuod Aw uy ‘asey) 3126 0) sn Joj moy pue puegsny Aw Bupye) asem Asyy | RLOZ/ZZI0L | 62-v0-81
aseym ‘Buiuaddey sem Jeym pauiejdxe A3yl "puny pue Jusye atam Asy) — Apjoinb paallie soipaweled ay| |
- s = = T [ 0 8102/22/0\ | 82-50-81
‘pueqgsny Aw 03 papuaje jey) sopaweted ay) Jo Aousidiye pue Jeuuel
Aipualy ‘a1ed ay) sjeasdde yjoq spA AINWWOS INO 0} adIAIas jual@oxa ue Buipiacid oy noA yuey) ‘eudsoy
oY) O} 9ACID 3y JBU) pajess puegsny AW "M JEWOIE ay) J& Wy} Jow | ‘sping Al swos wiy anb o] paue)s
SEM A} Uy ‘90UBjNguE Sy} 0] papodsuel) sem ay pue Jayojaqs e uo wiy ind Aay) ‘suonsanb jusuuad payse 8L0Z/ZZI0L | 22-¥0-8l
Aay ‘|reop 0} sAnuape a1am Aayl ‘440N aui Yim paysnes A1an asom | pue puegsny AN Inydiay pue puiy
‘leuoissajoid Aian a1am Aay ] Apjoinb Asan panse soipaweled ay] ‘)L L6 Pa||ed Jajybnep AW Jewojed je H3 |
aL) 01 off 0] papaau ay || AaA S1 9 "uonelpAysp S19ASS 0] NP (SAOW 10) Yiem 0] a|qeun sem puegsny AW |
‘2Jnpua nok uiens pue ssals ay) pugjsiapun | {4 I~
palij2l e sy "aoue)sIsse JnoA ayernaldde Ang) apn (aweu) o) Buiopwos 9 [njased g awn asuodsal Jus||@ox3 8L0z/cz/0lL | 9cvo8l
‘diay =Tl
papaau | uaym aw Buinosai Joy noA yuey | ‘uopenyis Aw of Buued AaA se ||om Se [euo1Ssajoid Al 3.9m NOA 8L0z/ee/oL | Gc-vo-8l
~jdiay peeu am uaym a1y Buiag Joj 1e nok yuey L injubnou pue puiy Ais/\ |PUIOSIME B5oM LB BUL 81L02/22/0L | ¥Z-¥0-8lL
"yonw AJaA nok juey | "awn siuj Je suonsabbns oN 'qol Juaji@oxa Ue pip auoiuaa] | 8102/2C/0L | €2-¥0BL
‘20188 [euoissajo.d g ydwoud nok o) nod yueyy 8L02/0Z/01 | ZZ-v0-8l
T T T syueyy -eoinies Jnok ancidilil pjnod 18y BUIIAUE JO JUIUY JUED 81L02/02/0L | LZ-¥0-81
"G UONIB)S WOl oU3 pue upsna ‘|20 ‘a3 ‘@onig o} syuey] uaw bunok syj e j0 ssaungybnowy)
pue a1e2 ay) ynm passasdwl Alaa sem | ‘a10jeq Siy) X aouauadxe ue Buiaey JaaaN "9je ‘ainssaid poojq
‘ajel peay Bupoayd pue spaw uied aw Buinh u Buiop sem ay jeym pauieidxa aonig ‘|ejdsoy syj 0] aAup . .
ay} U "uBAIpaW 3y} 0) aw Bulrow ul Iqissod se INJaIed S pue [njoadsar Aiaa atam Asy ‘papuodsal Jey; 8L02/0¢/0} | 0C-¥0-8L
uswialy aAl ay) AQ aJeo [eucissajold JSOUWIN UM paleal) Sem | 'SSnuilW UIypIm umu:onmm: depamayy 116 |
pajjes Ajpjelpsww) pueqgsny Ay “uted Buieronioxa u) sem | anow o) Suidl uaum ‘Wy 3y} ul Apes ‘(sjep) uo |
Juajeoxy | | 8LOZ/6LI0L | 61-P0-8I
. ‘obe syjuotu
sem siy) ‘Bunjiem 3)iym )1 uass Jou pey | Ji papubl aaey pino pooyroqubiau ajoym ay) Apdwoid papuodsal 8102/61/10L | 8L-v0-8l
ﬁwu 14 ‘oM 3N B Buiyonoy woy Bupseds sem Jey) sa1) wied e pey s woy ssode (Asasanu) Apadoud ay |
T R NoA yuey) sjm o
A pue 3y Agicows uam Bulyliaag "HAL 03 podsuel) Aouabiawa UE 10§ papasu &M SWl) Puodas ay} st siy) 8L0z/6L0L | LL-¥0-8L
dn poAtadYy JaguinN
SHUSWIWIOY JBUIOISND MOJI04 orea eI
Y juswiyoeny

990-190
8102 Jouenpd) yuno4
KanIng uonoejsnes Jswojsny

JoulsIq uoialold aid AUnoD YUOoN

LZhl 183

Page —-101

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting



- [iiMaI0 ¥ | UonE)S nok yuey] jauop jjam qol e 1o}
uiebe syuey | job o) poob asimiayjo Jng obiuaa awos Buousliadxe |BS * BUIOU 0] YOEBq, JSOLWE L. | [SIe)om
Aw 10} LIR2U0D % Bulpuejsiapun anoA sjenaidde | pue pasnjucs g B sem | mouy | 2w Buneas) ul pauwsouod 810¢/0L/LL | 9vv0-8l
2 puny 0s Buiag 1oy 2189 AW U POAJOAUI BUCAIBAS YuBY) 0} psjuem | Ing / >m>5m s1y) Buiuinial ul a3e) 9| & w,|
[E=s "Sn Joj @18y ale nok moud |
| 0} pooo) ‘urebe uaddey siy} aAy 0} Jou Alj jjim am pue noA JUBY] "WIeje as[e) B SEM )l I USAS puodsal 0} 8L0Z/80/LL | SHPO-8L
alsy aJem NOA pue Qc:oo 3y} JO JNO 1M DM 109101d pue digy 0} 218y aJe noA mouy 03 Jealt sy inoA yuey) |
"~ "awoy 1ab o) piey
mcs_._oz. S| pue geyaJ u sl a4 ‘Buiyifiana 1oy nok yuey] Jayie} Aw jo _:bomnme ‘leuoissayoad fuan ‘Aawn Lsp 8L0Z/L0/LL | v7PO-8L
e ‘op 0} pey Aay) Jeym O} SE Jualoyje aIem .
Asy] “Ajpuaiy @ Inidipy AsaA soM UBW (| ||BD | L6 JNO JO SAINUIW Ulyim paaLe soipsweled @ moF__w_nnE< 8LOc/e0/LL | EFPO-8L
"$59|q poo) pue uiebe syjuey| ‘saxey ale uo Junod nok aidoad ay) pue dijay pasau [ —
noA uaym 9UOBIOS |{B0 0} 3|qe 39 O} ealb >__m2 s} ‘pasu jo awn Aw ul asuodsas Aiaun) 1nok 1oy nok juey ) | 8L0C/L0/LL | ¥ vO8L
s ysiueds a1ow sxeads jey) yels asow S| Buissiwa buiy
Ajuo sy ‘sxuey ] HjoENE LBAY B SEM )t 95NB03Q 3yl Aw panes Wm: 1 JusyR0x3 (|8 — (ysiuedg woy Uwum_m:mé 8LOZ/LE/L | L ¥08l
R - 90138 SIY) aAey am pelb we | | 8L02/LE0L | OF+0-8L
_ o noAuey] ‘poob Kiaa pip Aoy L 8L0Z/0E/0L | 6E-v0-81
‘sawy Auew os Jno aw Buidjay pue asay Buieq Joj nok suey ] ‘sasn (J4s ay ydiym syoos buiddub Jooy [e1asds =i
Aian Jo sited Z 1an0 Jybnoiq 198y aseq uo paddys p,| se Buiaas ‘aouo pue snoapnoo sAemie aJe sidoad ally | 210z2/08/0L | |E-HO-8L
8y “dioy papaau puegsny Aw uasym sawn Auew jno aw padiey aey Aay ] uawyuedap aly Jno jo pnoid we |
[ inok yuey; | j9o1nas Buipugising 8L02/6C/0) | lE-#0-BL
-‘Kunwwos Jnok anias o} anunuod nok se nok ssaiq poo Jybuje w,| §1 yse oy Bumabio) Jansu ng ‘Ape) Aw oy
Bules 18114 JUSIDIYD PUB pupy 0s dsam Aay) awed A3y} ewr yoeg ‘dwel Jno uo [[3) Oym Joop Ixau Joqybisu Jay
10} 20u0 pue 18y Joy djay 1o} {eD |16 B ayew o) papasu aA | € ‘s.eai ¢ 104 fjlunuoddo siy) pey aaey | Jey) poo 8L0¢/L2/0L | 9tv0-8L
asieud | pue saaibaIeD AU |in) {SWeu) uaaq SAeY | ‘SIS HBY) o) JdJON BY) Juey) o} Juem Aleuosiad |
ille nok >uey jleuoissajoid 9 JUB|[SOXS SEM SIAISS "BW) SHJ} I8 JON (¢ suopsabbns] 8102/S2/0)L | Se-v0-81
I ‘gje)s Juablawa Aw Buljeas] ajiym S|qELOJLIOD pUe Wied aw buidasy
ul >=m2m umn_mc NOA pue JUS(|9X3 SEM 218D INOA "PAA[OAU| SOIpaWIEIEd ||B YUBY) O} JUBM | {9483 JUd)j90X3 810c/se/oL | vevOBl
! B JUa1190X3 8L02/52/0) | €€-¥0-8L
‘Runwwod
1o jo aocead pue A1ajes ‘Yeay ayy poddns 0} piey os Buiyiom 104 noA yueyl e | L6 9y 0} papuodsal QLOZ/PZIOL | 2E-PO-8L
Jey] slaquwaw (e AQ uaalb uoyuaye pue aJed ay) pajedadde yonw AIaA apA jiiiAlpuny Ao pajeal) Sem |
SJUSLULLIOY) JBU0ISNT 3“__“_0 3 uonhwmg_ ._MM__M”_Z
¥V Jusuwiyseny
28010

g10¢ Jouenpd yuno4
AaaIng uonoejsijes J1swWosny

JouIsIqg uonoajold a4 AunoD YuoN

Page -102

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting



14
_ ‘new Aq oyur Joy 3senbau Jeje) skep may paAiadal Ing (spejep eouelnsul) yeys o3 oy Aw e papiacid
| £SIU} 10§ 000'ZE Aum Inq “uoipuos Aw Buuapisuod poob (je ‘youaq apis asn uaned J2yo yim apu aieys S3A 810c/6e/LL | cov08L
m jue|[eox3 8Loe/8e/LL | 19-¥0-8l
[ ks [ S Ait— D S inok yuey) -aqissod se Buiwies se uonenys Kieos | B
_ fuaa e apew Aay ) “uosiad nuapuom Ajginjosay jejidsoy o) ' 1 '3 mouy aw Buma) a)luab ¢ pury " 8ouBinque
Aw u1 jou ‘ou yo, aw pansseals sy pue a1p 0} Buiob | we, sopaweied payse | |ndiay os alam soipaweled
uay) USA] "Yoewo)s Al O] 3IIS 319} | Julod 2uo 1y Wied aw daoy o) aw Buipojwos asem soipaweled 8L0z/8e/LL | 09%0-8L
U} apu a1ud syl "HAL O} Aem Ino U0 pue asugnque sy} ojul aw Job pue Apoinb uonewlou Aw o6 ‘sw
paLojwod Asy] (|e 1e jlom Buiylealq Jou B paleds AIaA Sem | 'SINUIW F UIyim paalie 1dep auy $ solpawesed .
mcm_,moxm 8L02/L2/LL | BS-¥0-8L
"MaJ0 a|qeabpamouy
Kiap “Alajes aw papodsuei] YSIA T POPUIWILLICISY "UCIIPU0D Aw pajeniea] Apoinb dn pamouys Aay gloz/zent | 8s-v0-8l
e ‘sjuiejdwod oN ‘juajadwod g |euoissajoid AIBA 8L0Z/LE/LL | LSP0-8BL
"JoAD aled jSag Juepyuod pue buued jeuoissejoid Kap 810Z//Z/L ) | 96-+0-8L
. “Kian02al 1oy aoueyd 15aq au wiy aAib o} pip noA |e Joy nok yuey ] jj@m buiop si pue
| 9jONS SIY WOY PIISA0IBI SBY S Jewoied 0} puegsny Aw paudjsuel) Asy) se asipadxe nay) 10y Inysielb ase 2L0Z/9e/LL | SSP0-8L |
AN PeduRLRd® pue djeuciIssedwod ‘pun) Aaa a2om ASY] j[ED | L6 AW JO SN G UIYIM PaaLLie JINS SJL
T T Uiy g 2w 0] LIOJWI0D B SEM UDIUM paq B Ul Sem (aWeu) i) 2Aes] J,upip Aay ] ‘swajqold | e
awos pasod wool paubisse 1sa) 3y Uaym WOoJ JUiaIp & paje)l|ioe) uaaa Jusned pue jnyd|ay Araa ajom
Aay) 1ewojed 1y Jaiem yum Jadied Apoo|q auy) yeos pue sjamo) Apoolq au) tesio o) aw Buidjay sem oipaweled | g8LoZWZ/LL | +S-+0-81
Buimewss ay] “1sydjans aty uo Jnd Buiag sem pueqsny Aw se aw uo Bunjoayd uaaes asem Asy] sbuljas) ino
0] aAIISURS AiaA pue wied Jusoiye ‘Bules g puny ‘leuoissajold siam Aay) onseiuE) sem malo opaweled ay)
_ o . Juaj8ax] 8L0Z/VT/LL | £5¥0-8L |
"80IA13s ay) 10j |nyayelb sem | pue Apdwoad |epdsoy ay) 0 uaye; sem aym Al Juaaa Aue u| ‘seaInosal
“ JO 21SeM B Y| SWaas 1By} SoURINGLUE aU) O} UORIPPE U1 JUSS SBM YoN) aiy B Jey) pazewe sem | |ejdsoy 8L02/¥2/LL | ZS-¥0-8l
m ay) o) aym Aw podsues; 0} uoisioap ¥aoinb e apew wesa) ay) pue )}dwoid sem e | L6 Aw 0} ssuodsal sy
"80IMSs J5Ed INOA ||B 10) nok yuey ] [e)jep) uo paseadap (juaned) ‘auou - (i suonsabbns) | gLoZ/vT/iL | LS#0-8L
Jusjj20x3 8L0Z/LZ/LL | 0S-¥#0-8l
sAnB asay Jo 8sne0Sq dANE W | jJ9AR Young jsag 8102/1E/L L | 6¥-P0-8l
T ETe——
1€ Juswileal) sudssp ‘dn pasesd JoU IS SBY Y2IUM UOIID34UI UB Ul PI)NSDI PUB SINOY LUSASS ISAD JO 43 ay)
| ui pajeanun Yo sem punom ay) ‘Aem ay) Ag ‘|josojoid Aq paddesipuey ybnouy) ‘Aieidwaxa asam pajsisse oym 21L0Z/9L/LL | 8FP0-8L
| ssaybly a1y JOUI0 BY) SE ||SM S MDD SDUBINGLUE BY) ‘JOABMOH JUSLWIIESI]} JB)SE) PUB JBIBg YINW Upm paynsal
aABY pINoM 9S00 SI YdIyMm ‘Bnoawa | 1e 20IA9S sy} aASIeg pUB |eJidSoY JBLIOIEd JO SUB) JOU 48 3AN |
L e, $juey L Josped Sem 0IAIBS JNOA | 8LOZ/EL/LL | Ltr¥0-8l
dn paAleday JaquInN
SIUSWILIOY) J2WoISnY) MO0 ajeq axely|
V jusiuyoeny
BaI°0
810¢ 1ayend yunod

Asnaing uonoesnes Jawolsny
Joulsiq uogoejold alig Aunod yuoN

Page -103

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting



‘lepdsoy . Jewojed je ﬁmv ¥3 2y yum pasesyd se uo: mm..s | 1i21B0 J23q JOJ PA)SE SARY JOU PINCY | 8L0T/LE/2L | 9/-#0-81
_|euuosiad jadng "ex0q J,ust i I }i Xy Jued 810Z/1€/2L | S.-¥0-8L |
e e Jus||@0x3 810¢/LE/CL | ¥.-p0-8)
R e T L e s s i B JusiEox3 | BLOZ/LER)L | £400-8L
“jeointes [euoissayold yons pajdadxa JO PaySE SABLY JOU PIN0D
| 'UoljesapIsuod Yiim uaAlb pue Juaiolye YIog Sem PaAIadal | JusWieas ay ) Jujjaoxa sem sui) asuodsal sy BlOc/8e/el | eLv0r8h
i Eo__wwmm 8102/82/ZL | Li-v0-8i
‘@oualadxa
jueses|d ||EJSA0 LB SEM 1| "Joueawap Alpuawy Yum _mco_mmw_o._a alam sjuepuany Ajawy sem asuodsay 8Lociciel | 0L-v0-8L
jimnz oAeig
jiAep A1aas AUNWILIOD INO DUE SN 10) Op ABL) JBUM PUB SIENPIAIPUY BUIpUuB)SING 8say) 2Z1Iuf003) 9SB3|d s
AN ‘OuBySISED UoBEH — || LYY UOSISpUY 'ZILOW ‘SBUOP — f| 1.3 WIYS .8, O1 NOA YUBY] MO sem ay |
MaUY | 'saka Suos AW L) YOO} ay) Jsnp '2uUoAue 0] pa)|e) UsAs am 210jed {|8] PINo9 | ‘asea je pue JqenoiLcd
Wiy apew Asyl jjusj|eoxa SEM 4N 1B Wea) SiU | jaJe2 Jealb ut sem aH juo jods alam sasuas Aw pue
Y3 a4} W paALLe A3L) uaum s Apey 1B Ylog 219m I “Spuey poob Ul sem ay mauy | 0 AP ay) pue Japiaoid gL0Z/20/2L | 69-F0-8L
jeapaw ay) Buiaq Jaquuiawial | pue AABN 2U) Ul SBm | Uaum | N3 uB aq o} pasn | ‘wied AjBuisudins sem
| W SWeS 343 1B ‘1aAamoH ualed B Inoyum apu siy) Bunie; sem ay Buimouy Buiuseoucd sem siyy auibeusn |
ued nof sy “pajodsuen Buiag sem Uos JNO JBY} JOOYDS AU WO SWED UOIEDI0U USUM AS|[BA UCISSIN Ul JIOM
Je SEm | PUE UOJapuad dwes) 1B sem pueqsny Ay [O0Uds Je 2] B Jaye suopnesaud 1o} jendsoH s.uaippyp |
s.Apey 0} |0oysg Aejuaalg e aAi] woly paliodsues sem Uos InQ jolsejue) sem aouauadxs Jno
== "80UBYD OU — MOUY | 'SBA '3OEQ (B)idsoy Jno
190 Ajuo pinoo am §1I ‘'MoN “pajpuey Ajjeucissajoid pue Ajawi} Sem Ydiym am Aw 10} $a01:9s papiaod gd40ON
obe s1eal (1 1noqy ‘|29A9] do] sem SoUBISISSE Jey} paouIAuO W) Ing ‘aBpajmouy 12a0p ou aaey | ‘asoj@iay ] 8L02/S0/ct | 89¥0-8L
‘yers aieblan)ig Ag paisanbal pue pajeuibluo sem unl ay | "me| U1 Jayioiq oA-gg Aul 10} sem Juapioul ay .
| liedal | Jeym wioJ) Juaned pue sd1U sem al padjay Jey) dipswesed syl 810Z/L0/CL | 19708l |
...... st Lo i TN 08 Mo aet, [y o] . ﬁl LA VA
0} a1ay) asem Aay) jnyajeib Auaa we pue way) pajsni) Ajjeai | Juspioul Aw ybnoy) aw padjay pue sw ypm | 81L0Z/0E/LL | 99-v0-8L
Em_gma 9q 0} Swl) ay) %00} >m.._ L ‘Buiaq-jom Awi Joj Buued pue [euoissajoid AUDA S19M WEd) Ppue mald ail auj
e e T nok xuey] a21Alas oA aacidw pjnod nok AemAue mouy Jou op | 8102/05/LL | S9-¥0-8l
: juajaa3 8L0C/6C/LL | PI-PO-8L
juaj|j@ox3 8l0g/6e/LL | £9-+0-8l
SIUSWILIO?) JBUIOISNT BM___._O 4 uohﬂmwm ._M“MHW
Y juswiyoeny
3230100
g10¢ Jeuenyd yunocd

Aomnng uonoejsnes Jawosn)
PIsIg uond8jold all4 Alunod YUoN

Page —-104

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting



Lyl [lejol puess
8l Z 9 0l JowweH| ¢
ol I 4 L 6 L Aieg| ¢
Z L L dwedag| ¢z
65 €2 ) Zl 6 | buues| 4 o)
ol 4 b 8 Z opebleg| ¢
L L sauor 174
L Z i l sishy| ¢
Ll Zl | 2 uejinoen| | g
L1 8 S 4 4 sedy| ¢
6 b Z ] Z uald| ¢
L 3 Z Z ojjojeyenN| ¢
8 L | € Z L uojpued| v
29Q-0€ [08@d-£Z [92a-9t [9eQ-6 [9°0-T uieden| uonels | maip
{2101 WYS |lejol maid JO jO9M

Page —-105

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting



Januar y 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting

Page —-106



TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FROM: FIRE MARSHAL KOCH
DATE: JANUARY 22, 2019

SUBJECT: ANNUAL PREVENTION REPORT FOR YEAR 2018

CONSENT AGENDA

BACKGROUND:

This report reflects the Fire Prevention activities for 2018. The following data is a
compilation of Fire Prevention activities. Many of the imposed changes in the Bureau will
be outlined in this report, as well as the supporting data.

INTENT:

The intent of this report is to assist the Board of Directors and Staff with planning needs.

PLAN REVIEW:

This includes new commercial and residential buildings, remodels of commercial or
residential buildings, new or revised subdivisions and administrative variances, grading

plans, project availability forms, fire protection plans, special hazard installations and
sprinkler plans.

Total Plan reviews:

2018: 543
2017: 379
2016: 318

REVENUE:

Plan check revenue increased in 2017 by 127% and increased another 65% in 2018.

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page —-107



Annual Fire Prevention Report
January 22, 2019

Page 2 of 6
Revenue
$700,000.00
$615,844
$600,000.00
$500,000.00
$400,000.00
$300,000.00 $272,365.00
$200,000.00 $179,132.00 $181,187.00 165,171, 00.‘:189 633
5131 391.00 5124 789, 00$ 111,673.00

$100,000.00 572 568.00

$0.00

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

B Mitigation Fees  ®Plan Check Fees

*Mitigation Fees are collected and reported quarterly ending in the FY.
The number shown for 2018 is for only a portion of the collection period.

Billed Hours, by Month

450
400
350
300
250

200 222.25 2205 39575 ; , 176
150 179,

100
50 87.5 ] —=g==2017

January 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting Page —108



Annual Fire Prevention Report
January 22, 2019
Page 3 of 6

Finance Trends
$50,000.00

$40,000.00

$30,000.00

$20,000.00

$10,000.00

$0.00

Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Apr-18 May-18 Jun-  Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18
18

m—=fpONthly IncOMe  ss——=New Money  ——Collected Outstanding

DESCRIPTION:

Prevention Staff developed a financiat reconciliation system for fees collected. The Fire
Prevention Administrative Specialist uses this system and ensures that all project
payments are paid up front and tracked throughout the planning process. This system
has increased our collection rate to nearly 100 percent and has been especially valuable
with the steady increase in new construction. The increase in revenue is due to the
continued increase of new construction within the district and the recently revised fee
schedule. It is anticipated that we will continue to see a steady increase in building
construction plan checks and inspections as more developments are getting ready to

build and our largest project thus far, Horse Creek Ridge, is only about half way through
production.

INSPECTIONS:

ANNUAL OCCUPANCY INSPECTIONS:

Prevention staff has only been able to complete a minimal amount of annual occupancy
inspections do to the reduction in prevention staffing and the increase in new construction.
Fire Prevention Specialist completed 127 out of the 748 inspections recorded. The
number of inspections completed improved slightly with the program being managed by
Captain Ayres but has fallen well below the numbers from when we had full time staff
assigned to overseeing this program.

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page —-109



Annual Fire Prevention Report
January 22, 2019

Page 4 of 6
Inspections Completed
1600
1400
1200 -
| m|2014
1000
| m2015
800 5 02016
600 m2017
400 m2018
2091g9g 24023
200 + e ]
40 38 57
0 ——
Business New Construction Permits

** Pemnits added in 2016.

New Construction inspections: 402 staff hours

WILDLAND/URBAN INTERFACE INSPECTIONS:

in the late spring, the District annually sends out over 13,000 notices to district property
owners in order to kick off the vegetation hazard abatement efforts. Throughout the year,
we address customers concerns about vegetation management and/or defensible space
via phone inquiry and front counter visits. The Fire Prevention Administrative Specialist
tracks all complaints, assists staff with mailing and tracking notices, researches owner
information and tracks citation notices so that we follow our abatement process and
Resolution. Fire Prevention Specialists conduct field inspections in response to requests
for assistance and complaints from residents. With the addition of our Administrative
Specialist position, for the second year we have been able to track our weed abatement
efforts. We have a very high success rate with very few complaints leading to force
abatement. The Lilac Fire in December of 2017 has many residents concerned about the
threat of wildfire in the community and the prevention staff has been puiting a large
amount of staff hours into following up on resident complaints and concerns.

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -110



Annual Fire Prevention Report
January 22, 2019
Page 5 of 6

Weed Abatement

Complaints Received 28

319

. 617
Inspections 395

Initial Notice 311

. . 130
Final Notice E

Force Abatement

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700

m2018 m2017

INITIAL _ FIRST FINAL FORCED
CONTACT NOTICE NOTICE ABATEMENT

PROGRAMS:

COLLABORATION WITH FALLBROOK FIRE SAFE COUNCIL (FSC):

This Program utilizes youth groups and other volunteers to perform vegetation
maintenance for the elderly or disabled. We also collaborate with FSC to provide Chipping
Days in our District. We held two events in 2018, which were very well received by the
community. Fire Safe Council also held two very successfutl wildfire safety seminars in
2018 and have plans to expand this program in 2019.

COLLABORATION WITH CERT:

North County Fire’s CERT organization has been reorganizing to become active in the
community once more. They recently swore in approximately 30 community members as

Disaster Service Workers. They will begin to schedule regular meetings and training in
2019.

January 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting Page —-111



Annual Fire Prevention Report
January 22, 2019
Page 6 of 6

PuBLIC EDUCATION:

We had another successful Fire Prevention Week and Open House, thanks to Sam
Russel, Rob Hager, Aaron Murg, and Mindy Ost. During Fire Prevention week, grade
school children in Bonsall and Fallbrook were taught valuable fire safety information by
Sam Russel and Rob Hager. Open house provided valuable fire safety information to our
community and reinforced what the grade school children had learned alt week. This year
we had our very first pancake breakfast at the firehouse. The on-duty staff, prevention
personnel, explorers, neighboring departments and community partners made open
house a huge success even though it was a rainy day.

We will be discontinuing our school program for 2019 because of the shortage of Fire
Prevention Staff to support the program.

2019 PROJECTIONS:

We will continue to see an increase in finances for both plan review and mitigation fees.
This will also increase the number of plan checks and associated field inspections. Horse
Creek Ridge is currently half way through the construction phase. Meadowood, Campus
Park West, Ocean Breeze, Peppertree Park, three large residential care facilities, an
energy storage facility and other smaller projects are in the early stages of development.
The Fire Prevention Bureau should experience a continued increase in workload and
revenue over the next year. A recent survey showed that 75 percent of the workload
handled by the Fire Prevention Administrative Specialist is technical support provided to
Fire Prevention. Without this position it is projected that there will be less time available
for staff to complete weed, annual business, and construction inspections as well as the
ability to effectively track weed citations and bill or collect fees for service.

SUMMARY:

New programs have been developed to improve organization, accountability and
scheduling. The addition of Mindy, our part-time Administrative Specialist, provides the
Bureau with front and back office support. This allows for Prevention Staff to spend more
time in the field, plan checks and other associated responsibilities. In addition to this,
having an administrative specialist has allowed us to cover the front office, which includes
tracking, scheduling and billing for new construction and inspections. Having the
administrative position has also allowed the bureau to develop and implement a tracking
and record maintenance program so that we can enforce weed abatements. Bringing
back this position at 28 hours a week has improved the consistency and efficiency of the

Bureau's daily operations. As a team, we continue to strive to meet the needs of the
District.

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -112



NORTH COUNTY FIRE

PROTECTION DISTRICT

ADMINISTRATION STAFF REPORT

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Stephen Abbott, Fire Chief/CEO

DATE: January 22, 2019

SUBJECT: Approve Resolution 2019-03, Authorizing Participation in a Joint

Facilities Agreement with the County of San Diego for the
Meadowood Development.

ACTION AGENDA
RECOMMENDATION:

That the Board of Directors approve Resolution 2019-03 and authorize the Fire Chief to
execute a Joint Facilities Agreement (JFCA) with San Diego County for fire protection
services to the Meadowood Development.

BACKGROUND:

A new housing development is in the final stages of approval for the northeast corner of
1-15 and SR 76. Although several projects are planned, this one is called Meadowood
and it is located on property both within and adjacent to the boundaries of the Fire District,
immediately to the south of the Horse Creek Ridge development. Annexation of this

development was previously approved by LAFCO in April 2014, for which the District
received payment of $389,000 in annexation fees.

At this point, it is estimated that the project will include approximately 473 Single Family
Homes and 352 Multi-family homes. Currently 7% of the 1% property tax paid on the land
is dedicated to the Fire District. This is insufficient to pay the costs of providing fire
protection services to the new planned development. A community facilities district (CFD)
Is being created by the developer (Pardee) and San Diego County to collect a special tax
to pay for services not funded within the normal property tax. A portion of the tax paid to
the CFD will come to the Fire District to make up the additional revenue required to
provide fire protection services to the development. Revenue collected by the CFD is then

distributed to participating entities through a JFCA. The Agreement spells out how the
taxes will be collected and how they will be distributed.

DISCUSSION:

The issue before the Board is approval of participation in the JFCA. The agreement
stipulates that a portion of the taxes collected by the CFD will be dedicated for fire
protection services and will be transferred to the Fire District on a regular basis. The Draft
Rate and Method of Apportionment (RMA) document describes specifically how the tax

Page 1 of 2
January 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting Page —-113



Meabpowoob JFCA
JANUARY 22, 2019
PAGE 2 0F 2

will be collected and distributed. The RMA specifies that the Fire District will receive $283
per singie family home and $195 per multi-family home (condo) annually as its share of
the CFD taxes. These fees will be adjusted 2% annually to reflect increased costs of doing
business. The first fees will be paid by the property owner once structures are completed

and will only be paid on developed land. There will be no special fee for fire protection for
undeveloped land.

A draft copy of the actual Joint Facilities Agreement is also attached for the Board's
information.

If approved by the Board, these same documents will go to the San Diego Board of
Supervisors for approval and formation of the CFD.

FISCAL ANALYSIS:

At full build-out, this CFD will generate approximately $202,500 in additional revenue to
the Fire District to offset the costs of servicing the new community. The amount of the
Special Tax will be raised by 2% annually thereafter.

SUMMARY:

Staff recommends the Board adopt Resolution 2018-03 and authorize the Fire Chief to

executive the Joint Facilities Agreement at the point that it is approved by the Board of
Supervisors.

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page —114



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
RESOLUTION 2019-03

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE NORTH COUNTY FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICT, NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, SAN DIEGO
COUNTY, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF
A JOINT COMMUNITY FACILITIES AGREEMENT WITH THE COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO,
IN CONNECTION WITH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2019-01
(MEADOWOOD) AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (the "County Board") of the County of San Diego {the "County")
plans to conduct proceedings under the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 (the "Act") to
approve the County of San Diego Community Facilities District No. 2019-01 (Meadowood Maintenance)
(the "Community Facilities District"), to authorize the levy of special taxes within the Community Facilities
District Area to contribute to the financing of certain facilities and services (the "Services");

WHEREAS, the County Board is considering including, among the Services to be authorized to be
financed by the Community Facilities District, certain fire protection, suppression and emergency

medical services (the "Fire Protection Services") which are to be provided by the North County Fire
Protection District (the "Fire Protection District");

WHEREAS, this Board of Directors (the "Board of Directors") of the Fire Protection District is
advised that in order for it to authorize the Community Facilities District to finance the Fire Protection
Services to be provided by the Fire Protection District, it must enter into a joint community facilities
agreement (the "Fire Protection District JCFA") with the County;

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has determined that the Fire Protection District JCFA and the

resulting Fire Protection Services to be financed pursuant thereto will be beneficial to the residents
of the Community Facilities District;

WHEREAS, there have been prepared and submitted to this meeting a form of the Fire Protection
District JCFA;

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors is fully advised in this matter;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the North County Fire
Protection District as follows:

Section 1. The Fire Protection District JCFA, in substantially the form submitted to this meeting and
made a part hereof as though set forth in full herein, is hereby approved. The President of the Board
of Directors, the Vice President of the Board of Directors, the Fire Chief/CEQ of the Fire Protection
District or his or her designee (each an "Authorized Officer) are, and each of them is, hereby
authorized and directed, for and in the name of the Fire Protection District, to execute and deliver the
Fire Protection District JCFA in the form presented to this meeting, with such changes, insertions and
omissions as are approved by such Authorized Officers in consultation with Counsel to the Fire

Protection District, such approval and consultation to be conclusively evidenced by such execution
and delivery.

Section 2. The officers and employees of the Fire Protection District are, and each of them is, hereby
authorized and directed, for and in the name of the Fire Protection District, to do any and all things
and to execute and deliver any and all documents which they or any of them deem necessary or

Lo Communiy Faciilaesrasy 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting " '“Page —115



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

RESOLUTION 2019-03

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE NORTH COUNTY FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICT, NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, SAN DIEGO
COUNTY, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF
A JOINT COMMUNITY FACILITIES AGREEMENT WITH THE COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO,
IN CONNECTION WITH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2019-01
(MEADOWOOD) AND O THER MATTERS RELATED THERETO

advisable in order to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Resolution and otherwise to
carry out, give effect to and comply with the terms and intent of this Resolution.

Section 3. All actions heretofore taken by the officers and employees of the Fire Protection District in

connection with or related to any of the agreements or documents referred to herein, are hereby
approved, confirmed and ratified.

Section 4. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

Section 5. The Secretary of the Board of Directors shall certify to the passage and adoption of this
Resolution and enter it into the book of original resolutions.

APPROVED, SIGNED and ADOPTED by the Board of Directors, North County Fire Protection

District, County of San Diego, State of California, on this 22™ day of January, 2019, by the
following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:
RECUSED:

Fred Luevano, Board President

ATTEST:

| HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the resolution duly and regularly
adopted by the Board of Directors of the North County Fire Protection District thereof held on the 22™ day
of January, 2019, and that the same now appears on record in the Board Secretary's office.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, | hereunto set my hand and affixed by official seal this 22" day of January
2019.

Ha. QM_

Loren Stephen-Porter, Board Secretary

Resolution 2019-03 Page 2 of 2

Joint Communiy Faciitej aqneeraety 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting Page -116



JOINT COMMUNITY FACILITIES AGREEMENT

by and between

COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO

and

NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

relating to

County of San Diego
Community Facilities District No. 2019-01
(Meadowood Maintenance)

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page —117



JOINT COMMUNITY FACILITIES AGREEMENT

THIS JOINT COMMUNITY FACILITIES AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is made
and entered into as of , 2019, by and between COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO, a
California county organized and existing under the laws of the State of California (the “County”),
and NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, an independent fire protection district
duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of California (“NCFPD”), and relates to
the formation by the County of a community facilities district known as County of San Diego
Community Facilities District No.2019-01 (Meadowood Maintenance) (the “Community
Facilities District”) for the purpose of financing, among other things, certain fire protection,
suppression and emergency medical services to be provided by NCFPD from proceeds of the
Special Tax C (as defined herein) to be levied within the Community Facilities District.

RECITALS:

A. The County is conducting proceedings under the Mello Roos Community
Facilities Act of 1982, Chapter 2.5 (commencing with Section 53311) of Part 1 of Division 2 of
Title 5 of the California Government Code (the “Act”) in which it is considering the formation of
the Community Facilities District to fund certain public services (the “Services™).

B. The property described and depicted in Exhibit A hereto (the “Property”) which is
located in the County of San Diego, State of California, is the land within the boundaries of the
Community Facilities District.

C. Certain of the Services will be provided by NCFPD, which relate to land within
the County and are fire protection, suppression and emergency medical services described in
Exhibit B hereto (the “Fire Protection Facilities and Services”).

D. The County will conduct proceedings to form, and will have sole discretion and
responsibility for the administration of, the Community Facilities District.

E. This Agreement constitutes a joint community facilities agreement, within the
meaning of Section 53316.2 of the Act, by and between the County and NCFPD, pursuant to

which the Community Facilities District will be authorized to finance the Fire Protection
Facilities and Services.

F. As authorized by Section 53316.6 of the Act, NCFPD shall have responsibility for
providing the Fire Protection Facilities and Services.

G. The County finds and determines that this Agreement would be beneficial to the
residents of the County.

H. NCFPD finds and determines that this Agreement would be beneficial to the
residents of NCFPD.

January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meeting Page -118



AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants
contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS

Section 1.1. Definitions. Unless the context otherwise requires, the terms defined in this
Article [ shall have the meanings herein specified.

“Act” means the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, constituting Sections
53311 et seq. of the California Government Code, as amended.

“Agreement” means this Joint Community Facilities Agreement by and between the
County and NCFPD, as originally executed or as the same may be amended from time to time in
accordance with its terms.

“County” means the County of San Diego, a California county organized and existing
under the laws of the State of California, and its successors,

“County Representative” means the person or persons designated as such in a
certificate signed by the County and delivered to NCFPD, which certificate shall contain an
original or specimen signature of each person so designated.

“Community Facilities District” means the County of San Diego Community Facilities
District No. 2019-01 (Meadowood Maintenance), a community facilities district organized and
existing under the laws of the State, and its successors.

“Fire Protection Facilities and Services” means certain Services which are fire
protection facilities and services described in Exhibit B attached hereto.

“NCFPD” means North County Fire Protection District, a county fire protection district

duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of California, and its successors and
assigns.

“MEADOWOOD FIRE CFD 19-01 C-SPECIAL TAX” means the special revenue
fund by that name which the County agrees to establish pursuant to Section 2.1 hereof.

“NCFPD Representative” means the person or persons designated as such in a
certificate signed by NCFPD and delivered to the Community Facilities District and the County,
which certificate shall contain an original or specimen signature of each person so designated.

“Property” means the real property located within the Community Facilities District
described and depicted in Exhibit A attached hereto.

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -119



“Rate and Method” means the rate and method of apportionment of the Special Taxes
approved by the qualified electors of the Community Facilities District.

“Services” means the services authorized to be funded by the Community Facilities
District.

“Special Taxes” means the special taxes authorized to be levied within the Community
Facilities District pursuant to the Act and the Rate and Method.

“Special Tax C” means that certain Special Tax authorized to be levied within the
Community Facilities District pursuant to the Act and the Rate and Method to fund Fire
Protection Facilities and Services, as further described in Resolution No. the Rate and
Method of Apportionment of Special Tax, as approved by the Board of Supervisors on February
27, 2019, a copy of which is on file with the Secretary of the Board of Directors of NCFPD and
the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors of the County.

“State” means the State of California.

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page —120



ARTICLE II
FORMATION AND ADMINISTRATION OF COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT

Section 2.1. Formation and Administration of Community Facilities District.

Pursuant to Government Code Section 53316.2, the County will conduct proceedings
under the Act to form the Community Facilities District and to authorize the financing of the
Services. The Fire Protection Facilities and Services are those certain Services described in
Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.

The County shall administer the Community Facilities District, including employing and
paying all consultants, annually levying and collecting the Special Taxes, and complying with all
State requirements appertaining to the proceedings. NCFPD will have no responsibility in that
regard, and will not participate in nor be considered a participant in the proceedings respecting
the Community Facilities District (other than as a party to this Agreement).

In the event the County completes formation of the Community Facilities District and
becomes authorized to levy the Special Taxes, including Special Tax C, the County shall
establish a separate fund on behalf of the Community Facilities District to be known as the
"MEADOWOOD FIRE CFD 19-01 C- SPECIAL TAX” Fund. All Special Tax C revenues
collected that are intended to be utilized to fund Fire Protection Facilities and Services shall be
deposited in the MEADOWOOD FIRE CFD 19-01 C-SPECIAL TAX Fund. Any interest
earned on this MEADOWOOD FIRE CFD 19-01 C-SPECIAL TAX Fund shall be used
exclusively for North County Fire Protection Facilities and Services and shall be allocated and
distributed to the MEADOWOOD FIRE CFD 19-01 C-SPECIAL TAX Fund. Upon requests by
the District, NCFPD will be reimbursed from at least annually by MEADOWOOD FIRE CFD
19-01 C-SPECIAL TAX fund for NCFPD costs as noted in Exhibit B.

The County does not make any warranty, either express or implied, that the Community
Facilities District will be formed or will be able to levy Special Taxes to fund the Services,
including Special Tax C to fund the Fire Protection Facilities and Services, or that the Special
Taxes levied will be sufficient for such purpose.

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -121



ARTICLE III

PROVISION OF FIRE PROTECTION FACILITIES AND SERVICES

Section 3.1. Provision of Fire Protection Facilities and Services. NCFPD hereby
represents that it provides Fire Protection Facilities and Services to property within the
Community Facilities District.

Section 3.2. Duty of NCFPD to Provide Fire Protection Facilities and Services.
NCFPD agrees to fully administer, and to take full responsibility for, the provision of the Fire
Protection Facilities and Services, and the County shall have no responsibility whatsoever in that
regard. NCFPD shall apply amounts on deposit in the MEADOWOOD FIRE CFD 19-01 C-
SPECIAL TAX Fund to fund the provision of the Fire Protection Facilities and Services. Under
no circumstances will the County have any obligation for Fire Protection Facilities and Services

beyond depositing Special Tax C revenues collected, if any, in the MEADOWOOD FIRE CFD
19-01 C-SPECIAL TAX Fund.

NCFPD acknowledges that it is represented by its own separate legal counsel in regard to
the subject special tax proceedings and, in particular, to the provision of Fire Protection Facilities
and Services. NCFPD accepts responsibility for and shall be responsible for identification of and
for compliance with all applicable laws pertaining to the provision of Fire Protection Facilities
and Services when it takes on this responsibility. The County makes no representation as to the
applicability or inapplicability of any laws relating to the provision of Fire Protection Facilities
and Services. NCFPD will neither seek to hold nor hold the County or the Community Facilities
District liable, and pursuant to Section 4.3 hereof shall hold harmless and indemnify the County
and the Community Facilities District, and each of their respective officers, officials and
employees for any consequence of any failure by NCFPD to correctly determine the applicability
of any such requirements to any contract it enters into, irrespective of whether the County or the
Community Facilities District knew or should have known about the applicability of any such
requirement. This paragraph shall apply with respect to any enforcement action, whether public
or private, and whether brought by a public enforcement agency or by private civil litigation,
against NCFPD, the County or the Community Facilities District with respect to the matters
addressed by this Agreement and the provision of Fire Protection Facilities and Services.

Section 3.3. Annual Reporting for Fire Protection Facilities and Services. (a) In
order to assist the Community Facilities District and the County with the filing of an annual

report pursuant to California Government Code Section 50075.3, the preparation of an annual
report pursuant to California Government Code Section 53343.1, and any future legislated
reporting, NCFPD agrees to provide to the Community Facilities District and the County, no
later than December 30 following the last day of the fiscal year (which fiscal year begins July 1
and ends June 30) for each fiscal year during which the Special Tax C is levied, the amount of

Special Tax C revenues expended for Fire Protection Facilities and Services during the most
recent fiscal year.

(b) In the event an annual report is requested by a person who resides in or owns

property in the Community Facilities District pursuant to California Government Code Section
53343.1, NCFPD agrees to provide to the Community Facilities District and the County, within a

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page —-122



reasonable amount of time to permit the Community Facilities District and the County to comply
with California Government Code Section 53343.1, any other information reasonably required
for the Community Facilities District and the County to comply with the provisions of California
Government Code Section 53343.1, including, but not limited to, the identification of the
categories of each type of Fire Protection Facilities and Services funded during the most recent
fiscal year, and certification that the Special Tax C revenues expended during the most recent
fiscal year were applied only to the funding of Fire Protection Facilities and Services. In the
event such report is requested, the County agrees to charge a fee for such report to reimburse the
County, the Community Facilities District and NCFPD, as applicable, for the actual costs of
preparing such report.

(¢)  The information to be provided by NCFPD pursuant to this Section may be

provided together with, or provided as part of, any other annual report provided by NCFPD to
the County.

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page —123



ARTICLE IV

REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS;
INDEMNIFICATION; DAMAGES

Section 4.1. Representations, Warranties and Covenants of NCFPD. NCFPD makes
the following representations, warranties and covenants for the benefit of the County:

(a) Organization. NCFPD represents and warrants that NCFPD is a local fire
protection district duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of California.

(b)  Authority. NCFPD represents and warrants that NCFPD has the power
and authority to enter into this Agreement, and has taken all action necessary to cause this
Agreement to be executed and delivered, and this Agreement has been duly and validly
executed and delivered on behalf of NCFPD.

(c) Binding Obligation. NCFPD represents and warrants that this Agreement
is a valid and binding obligation of NCFPD and is enforceable against NCFPD in
accordance with its terms, subject only to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency,
reorganization, moratorium or similar laws or equitable principles affecting or limiting
the rights of contracting parties generally.

(d})  Fire Protection Facilities and Services. NCFPD covenants that it will use
its reasonable and diligent efforts to do all things which may be lawfully required of it in
order to provide the Fire Protection Facilities and Services in accordance with this
Agreement.

(e) Compliance with Laws. NCFPD covenants that it will not commit, suffer
or permit any act to be done in connection with the provision of the Fire Protection
Facilities and Services in violation of any law, ordinance, rule, regulation or order of any
governmental authority or any covenant, condition or restriction affecting the Property.

7] Special Tax C Revenues; Annual Reporting. NCFPD covenants to only
use funds disbursed to it from the MEADOWOOD FIRE CFD 19-01 C-SPECIAL TAX
Fund to fund the cost of NCFPD Services and to promptly provide annual reports in
accordance with Section 3.3 of this Agreement.

(g) Financial Records. NCFPD covenants to maintain proper books of record
and account for all Fire Protection Facilities and Services and all costs related thereto
when Special Tax C is obtained to pay for Fire Protection Facilities and Services.
NCFPD covenants that such accounting books will be maintained in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and will be available for inspection by the
Community Facilities District and the County, and their respective agents, at any
reasonable time during regular business hours on reasonable notice.

(h)  No Material Impediments. NCFPD represents and warrants that to the

best of its knowledge there is no material impediment to NCFPD’s performance of its
obligations under this Agreement,

January 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting Page -124



(i) Disbursement Requests. Notwithstanding any other provision, the NCFPD
covenants to provide invoices to request disbursement from Special Tax C Funds, which
shall show the NCFPD expenditures for Fire Protection Facilities and Services within the
CFD up to or in excess of the amount of the MEADOWOOD FIRE CFD 19-01 C-
SPECIAL TAX fund. The CFD Administrator shall pay all invoices submitted by
NCFPD for Fire Protection Facilities and Services up to the available funding. As it
relates to the preceding sentence, the parties agree that any request from NCFPD to fund
eligible fire and emergency medical service staffing costs may be provided in the form of

Exhibit C attached hereto in-lieu of providing invoices. Such expenses shall be funded in
arrears.

Section 4.2. Representations, Warranties and Covenants of the County. The County
makes the following representations, warranties and covenants for the benefit of NCFPD:

(@)  Authority. The County represents and warrants that the County has the
power and authority to enter into this Agreement, and has taken all action necessary to
cause this Agreement to be executed and delivered, and this Agreement has been duly
and validly executed and delivered on behalf of the County.

(b)  Binding Obligation. The County represents and warrants that this
Agreement is a valid and binding obligation of the County and is enforceable against the
County in accordance with its terms.

()  Deposit of Special Tax C Revenues. In the event the County completes
formation of the Community Facilities District and becomes authorized to levy the
Special Taxes, including Special Tax C, the County represents and warrants that it will
deposit all Special Tax C revenues collected into the MEADOWOOD FIRE CFD 19-01
C-SPECIAL TAX Fund and use such funds to reimburse the NCFPD.

Section 4.3. Indemnification. NCFPD agrees to protect, indemnify, defend and hold
the Community Facilities District and the County, and their respective officers, employees and
agents, and each of them, harmless from and against any and all claims, losses, expenses, suits,
actions, decrees, judgments, awards, attorney’s fees, and court costs (collectively, “Claims”)
which the Community Facilities District or the County, or their respective officers, employees
and agents, or any combination thereof, may suffer or which may be sought against or recovered
or obtained from the Community Facilities District or the County, or their respective officers,
employees or agents, or any combination, thereof as a result of or by reason of or arising out of
or in consequence of (a) the financing of the Fire Protection Facilities and Services, (b) the
untruth or inaccuracy of any representation or warranty made by NCFPD in this Agreement, (c)
any act or omission, negligent or otherwise, of NCFPD or any of its subcontractors, agents or
anyone who is directly employed by NCFPD or any of its subcontractors, or agents, in any way
connected with the provision of Fire Protection Facilities and Services, (d) this Agreement, ()
the validity or enforceability of this Agreement, or (&) the failure to comply with any law,
regulation, ruling or court decision relating in any way to this Agreement or the Community
Facilities District. If NCFPD fails to do so, the Community Facilities District and the County
shall have the right, but not the obligation, to defend the same and charge all of the direct or

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -125



incidental costs of such defense, including any attorneys’ fees or court costs, to and recover the
same from NCFPD.

The foregoing indemnification shall not extend to any Claim against an indemnified party
to the extent such Claim arises from (a) the willful misconduct or gross negligence of the

Community Facilities District or the County, or their respective officers, employees or agents, or
(b) a default hereunder by the County.

The provisions of this Section shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Section 4.4. Remedies in General; Damages Limited. NCFPD acknowledges that the
County would not have entered into this Agreement if it were to be liable in damages under or
with respect to this Agreement. Any and all obligations of the County hereunder shall be
payable only from proceeds of Special Tax C, to the extent such proceeds may become available.
The County shall not have any pecuniary liability for any act or omission of the County, except
as set forth in this Section. In no event will an act, or an omission or failure to act, by the County
with respect to the levy of the Special Taxes, including Special Tax C, subject the County to
pecuniary liability therefor.

In general, each of the parties hereto may pursue any remedy at law or equity available
for the breach of any provision of this Agreement; provided, however, that the County shall not
be liable in damages to NCFPD. In light of the foregoing, NCFPD covenants not to sue for or
claim any damages for any alleged breach of, or dispute which arises out of, this Agreement,
other than to compel deposit by the County of the amount of Special Tax C revenues collected
into the MEADOWOQOD FIRE CFD 19-01 C-SPECIAL TAX Fund and to promptly reimburse
NCFPD for Fire Protection Facilities and Services in accordance with the provisions hereof.

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page —126



ARTICLE V
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 5.1. Nature of Agreement. This Agreement shall constitute a joint community
facilities agreement entered into pursuant to Sections 53316.2, 53316.4 and 53316.6 of the Act.

Section 5.2. Amendment and Assignment. This Agreement may be amended at any
time but only in writing signed by each party hereto. Neither this Agreement nor the duties and
obligations of NCFPD hereunder may be assigned without the written consent of the Community
Facilities District and the County. The agreements and covenants included herein shall be
binding on and inure to the benefit of any partners, permitted assigns, and successors-in-interest
of the parties hereto.

Section 5.3. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between
the parties with respect to the matters provided for herein and supersedes all prior agreements
and negotiations between the parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement.

Section 5.4. Limitation of Rights. Nothing in this Agreement (either express or
implied) is intended to confer upon any person or entity, other than the Community Facilities
District, the County and NCFPD (and their respective successors and assigns), any rights,
remedies, obligations or liabilities under or by reason of this Agreement.

Section 5.5. Notices. Any notice, payment or instrument required or permitted by this
Agreement to be given or delivered to either party shall be deemed to have been received when
personally delivered or seventy two hours following deposit of the same in any United States
Post Office in California, registered or certified, postage prepaid, addressed as follows:

County/
Community Facilities District: County of San Diego
Department of

5510 Overland Avenue, Suite 210, MS 0383
San Diego, California 92123

Attn:

Phone: Email:

NCFPD: North County Fire Protection District
330 South Main Avenue
Fallbrook, California 92028
Attention: Stephen Abbott, Fire Chief/CEO
Phone: (760) 723-2012
Email: sabbott@ncfire.org

The County and NCFPD may designate, by notice in writing, any further or different
addresses to which subsequent notices, certificates or other communications shall be sent.

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page —127



Section 5.6. Exhibits. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated into this Agreement
by reference.

Section 5.7. Attorneys’ Fees. In the event of the bringing of any action or suit by any
part against any other part arising out of this Agreement, the part in whose favor final judgment
shall be entered shall be entitled to recover from the losing party all costs and expenses of suit,
including reasonable attorneys’ fees.

Section 5.8. Severability. If any part of this Agreement is held to be illegal or
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Agreement shall be
given effect to the fullest extent reasonably possible.

Section 5.9. Governing Law. This Agreement and any dispute arising hereunder shall
be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State.

Section 5.10. Waiver. Failure by a party to insist upon the strict performance of any of
the provisions of this Agreement by the other party hereto, or the failure by a party to exercise its
rights upon the default of another party, shall not constitute a waiver of such party’s right to
insist and demand strict compliance by such other party with the terms of this Agreement
thereafter.

Section 5.11. No Third Party Beneficiaries. No person or entity other than the
Community Facilities District, when and if formed, shall be deemed to be a third party
beneficiary hereof, and nothing in this Agreement (either express or implied) is intended to
confer upon any petson or entity, other than NCFPD, the County and the Community Facilities
District (and their respective successors and assigns, exclusive of individual homebuyers), any
rights, remedies, obligations or liabilities under or by reason of this Agreement.

Section $.12. Singular and Plural; Gender. As used herein, the singular of any word
includes the plural, and terms in any gender shall be deemed to include the masculine and
feminine gender.

Section 5.13. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute but one instrument.

Section 5.14. Effective Date. This Agreement shall take effect on the date of formation
of the Community Facilities District.

January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meeting Page —128



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and
year written above,

COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO

By:

Name:
Title:

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

THOMAS E. MONTGOMERY
County Counsel

By:
Thomas L. Bosworth,
Senior Deputy County Counsel
NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION
DISTRICT
By:
Stephen Abbott,
Fire Chief/CEO
APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Robert H. James, Esq.,
District Counsel

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page —-129



EXHIBIT A
DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

The Property consists of the following San Diego County Assessor Parcel Nos.:

108-120-52
108-120-53
108-120-54
108-121-15
108-122-03
108-122-08
108-122-09
108-122-15
108-122-19
125-061-04
125-061-07
125-062-07

January 22, 2019 - Reqular Board Meeting Page —130



BOUNDARY MAP

[Reduced copy of Boundary Map]

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -131



EXHIBIT B
FIRE PROTECTION FACILITIES AND SERVICES

Fire protection, suppression, and emergency medical services of North County Fire
Protection District, including but not limited to (i) the costs of contracting services, (ii)
equipment, vehicles, ambulances and paramedics, fire apparatus, supplies, facilities (replacement
and/or improvement and expansion of existing fire stations) and (iii) the salaries and benefits of

staff that directly provide fire protection, suppression, and emergency medical and paramedic
services.

It is expected that the services will be provided by the North County Fire Protection

District, either with its own employees or by contract with third parties, or any combination
thereof.

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -132



EXHIBIT C
DISBURSEMENT REQUEST

Community Facilities District No. 2019-01
{Meadowood Maintenance)
of the County of San Diego

The undersigned (“NCFPD”) hereby requests disbursement in the total amount of
$ for the Fire Protection Facilities and Services (as defined in the Joint Community
Facilities Agreement (the “JCFA”) by and among the County of San Diego (the “County”) and
NCFPD described in Exhibit B to that Agreement), all as more fully described in Attachment 1
hereto. In connection with this Disbursement Request, the undersigned hereby certifies,
represents and warrants to the County as follows:

A. He(she) is a duly authorized representative or signatory of NCFPD, qualified to
execute this Disbursement Request for payment on behalf of NCFPD and is knowledgeable as to
the matters set forth herein.

B. The Fire Protection Facilities and Services that are the subject of this
Disbursement Request are in accordance with the requirements of the JCFA.

C. This request for payment of the Fire Protection Facilities and Services has been
calculated in conformance with the terms of the JCFA. All costs for which disbursement is
requested hereby are eligible costs (as permitted in the JCFA).

D. NCFPD is in compliance with the terms and provisions of the JCFA.

I hereby declare under penalty of perjury that the above representations and warranties
are true and correct.

NCFPD:

Dated:

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -133



EXAMPLE

ATTACHMENT 1

North County Fire Protection District

Staffing Costs to Serve Meadowood Project

Time Period Covered:

NCFPD Level of Service Standard:

1 Firefighter per 1,000 Persons

Total Residential Units in CFD No. 2019-01: 825 mn

County of San Diego Persons per Household (a): | 2.87 [2]

Total Persons generated by Project: 2,368 [31=[1]1x1{2)
Required Firefighters: 237 [4] = [3] = 1,000
NCFPD Average Cost per Position (b): [$150,000] | [5]

Total NCFPD Staffing Costs: $355,163 | =[4]x[5)

Note: All expenses have been incurred in arrears.

Footnotes:

(a) Per U.S. Census Bureau Quick Facts: San Diego County.

(b) [NCFPD to cite source]

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting

Page -134



RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF SPECIAL TAX
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2019-01
(MEADOWOOD MAINTENANCE)

A Special Tax as hereinafter defined shall be levied on all Assessor’s Parcels within County of San
Diego Community Facilities District No. 2019-01 (Meadowood Maintenance), (“CFD No. 2019-01"),
other than Assessor’s Parcels classified as Exempt Property as defined herein, and collected each Fiscal
Year commencing in Fiscal Year 2019-2020, in an amount determined by the CFD Administrator
through the application of the procedures described below. All of the real property within CFD No.
2019-01, unless exempted by law or by the provisions hereof, shall be taxed for the purposes, to the
extent, and in the manner herein provided.

A. DEFINITIONS

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meanings:

“Acre or Acreage” means the land area of an Assessor’s Parcel, expressed in acres, as shown on
an Assessor’s Parcel Map, or if the land area is not shown on an Assessor’s Parcel Map, the land
atea shown on the applicable Final Map, or functonally equivalent map or instrument recorded

in the San Diego County Recorder’s Office. The square footage of an Assessor’s Parcel is equal
to the Acreage multiplied by 43,560.

“Act” means the Mello-Roos Communities Facilities Act of 1982 as amended, being Chapter 2.5,
Part 1, Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California.

“Administrative Expenses” means the following actual or rcasonably estimated expenses
related to the administration of CFD No. 2019-01: the costs of determining the amount of the
levy of Special Taxes, the collection of Special Taxes, including the expenses of collecting
delinquencies and pursuing foreclosures, the payment of a proportional share of salaries and
benefits of any County employee and County overhead whose duties are directly related to the
administration of CFD No. 2019-01, fees and expenses for counsel, audits, costs associated with

responding to public inquiries regarding CFD No. 2019-01, and any and all other costs incurred
in connection with the administration of CFD No. 2019-01.

“Annual Escalation Factor” means an annual percentage change of two percent (2%},

“Assessor's Parcel” means a lot or parcel shown in an Assessor's Parcel Map with an assigned
assessor's parcel number.

“Assessot's Parcel Map” means an official map of the Assessor of the County designating
parcels by assessor's parcel number.

“Assigned Special Tax” means the annual Special Tax described in Section D below.
“Backup Special Tax” means the Special Tax described in Section E below.
“Base Year” means Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2019 and ending June 30, 2020.

“Boundary Map” means the map of the boundaries of CFD No. 2019-01 recorded in the San
Diego County Recorder’s Office.

“Building Permit” means a permit issued for new construction of a residential dwelling, For
purposes of this definition, “Building Permit” shall not include permits for construction or

1 CFD No. 2019-01

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page —135



installation of retaining walls, grading, utility improvements, or other such improvements not
intended for human habitation.

“CFD Administrator” means an official of the County, or designee thereof, responsible for

determining the Special Tax Requirement for Services and providing for the levy and collection
of the Special Taxes for CFD No. 2019-01.

“CFD No. 2019-01” means County of San Diego Community Facilities District No. 2019-01
(Meadowood Maintenance) established by the County Board under the Act.

“County” means the County of San Diego.

“County Board” means the Board of Supervisors of the County, acting as the legislative body
of CFD No. 2019-01.

“County Services” means those authorized services provided by the County, including but not
limited to, the maintenance of public trails, pathways, park and recreation facilities, and drainage
facilities that may be funded by CFD No. 2019-01 pursuant to the Act.

“Developed Property” means an Assessor’s Parcel of Taxable Property for which a Building

Permit was issued on or before May 1 preceding the Fiscal Year for which Special Taxes are being
levied.

“Exempt Property” means all Assessor’s Parcels within CFD No. 2019-01 that are exempt from
the Special Taxes pursuant to the Act or Section H herein.

“Final Map” means a Final Subdivision Map, lot line adjustment, or any other map functionally

considered to be an equivalent development map that has been recorded in the San Diego County
Recorder’s Office.

“Final Subdivision Map” means a subdivision of property creating single family residential
buildable lots by recordation of a final subdivision map or parcel map pursuant to the Subdivision
Map Act (California Government Code Section 66410 et seq.), or recordation of a condominium
plan pursuant to California Civil Code Section 4285, that creates individual lots for which building

permits may be issued without further subdivision and is recorded prior to May 1 preceding the
Fiscal Year in which the Special Tax is being levied.

“Flood Control District” means the San Diego County Flood Control District.

“Flood Control Services” means those authorized services provided by the Flood Control
District, including but not limited to, t detention and retention basins, biofiltration basins, storm
drain pipes, storm water treatment devices, and appurtenant facilities and improvements,
including a proportionate amount of salaries of Flood Control District employees and a
proportionate amount of the Flood Control District’s general administrative overhead related
thereto that may be funded by CFD No. 2019-01 pursuant to the Act, as amended.

“Fire Facilities and Services” means thosc authorized facilities and services provided by North
County Fire Protection District, including but not limited to: the cost of contracting services,
equipment, vehicles, ambulances, paramedics, fire apparatus, supplies, facilities (replacement
and/or improvement and expansion of existing fire stations), and the salaties and benefits of staff
that directly provide fire protection, suppression and emergency medical and paramedic services
that may be funded by CFD No. 2019-01 pursuant to the Act, as amended.

“Fiscal Yeat” means the period commencing on July 1 of any year and ending the following
June 30.

“Land Use Type” means any of the land use types listed in Table 1 through 9 below.

2 CFD No. 201%-01

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -136



“Maximum Special Tax A” means the maximum Special Tax A determined in accordance with
Section C, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on an Assessor’s Parcel of Taxable Property.

“Maximum Special Tax B” means the maximum Special Tax B determined in accordance with
Section C, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on an Assessor’s Parcel of Taxable Property.

“Maximum Special Tax C” means the maximum special Tax C determined in accordance with
Section C, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on an Assessor’s Parcel of Taxable Property.

“Multi-Family Residential Property” or “MFR Property” means all Assessor’s Parcels of
Developed Property for which a Building Permit has been issued for purposes of constructing a
residential structure consisting of two or mote residential units that share common walls,
including, but not limited to, duplexes, triplexes, town homes, condominiums, and apartment
units. For the purposes of this definition, residential structures built in connection with the
recordation of a condominium plan pursuant to California Civil Code 4285, irrespective of
whether or not such units share common walls, will be classified as MFR Property.

“Property Owner Association Property” means for each Fiscal Year any property within the
boundaries of CFD No. 2019-01 that was owned by, or irrevocably dedicated as indicated in an
instrument recorded with the County Recorder to a property owner association, including any
master or sub-association, as of May 1.

“Proportionately” means:

® For Developed Property, the ratio of the actual Special Tax A levied on Developed
Property to the Maximum Special Tax A for Developed Property is equal for all
Residential Units of Developed Property, and the ratio of the actual Special Tax B levied
on Developed Property to the Maximum Special Tax B for Developed Property is equal
for all Residential Units of Developed Property; or where the Developed Backup Special
Tax A is being levied, the ratio of the actual Special Tax A levied on Developed Property
to the Backup Special Tax A for Developed Property is equal for all Residential Units of
Developed Property subject to the Developed Backup Special Tax A; or where the
Developed Backup Special Tax B is being levied, the ratio of the actual Special Tax B
levied on Developed Property to the Backup Special Tax B for Developed Property is
equal for all Residential Units of Developed Property subject to the Developed Backup
Special Tax B.

¢ For Undeveloped Property, the ratio of the actual Special Tax A levied on Undeveloped
Property to the Maximum Special Tax A for Undeveloped Property is equal for all Acres
of Undeveloped Property, and the ratio of the actual Special Tax B levied on
Undeveloped Property to the Maximum Special Tax B for Undeveloped Property is equal
for all Acres of Undeveloped Propetty; or where the Undeveloped Backup Special Tax A
is being levied, the ratio of the actual Special Tax A levied on Undeveloped Property to
the Undeveloped Backup Special Tax A for Undeveloped Property is equal for all Acres
of Undeveloped Property subject to the Undeveloped Backup Special Tax A; or where
the Undeveloped Backup Special Tax B is being levied, the ratio of the actual Special Tax
B levied on Undeveloped Property to the Undeveloped Backup Special Tax B for

Undeveloped Property is equal for all Acres of Undeveloped Property subject to the
Undeveloped Backup Special Tax B.

“Public Property” means any property that is owned by, dedicated or irrevocably dedicated to
a city, the federal government, the State of California, the County, or any other public agency
(each, a “Public Entity”); provided, however, that if any such property is leased by such a Public
Entity to a private entity and is thereby subject to taxation pursuant to Section 53340.1 of the
Act, such leasehold estate shall be classified and taxed according to the use thereof.

3 CFD No. 2019-01

January 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting Page —137



“Residential Property” means all Assessot’s Parcels of Developed Property within CFD No.
2019-01 for which a Building Permit has been issued for purposes of constructing one or more
Residential Unit(s).

“Residential Unit” means any residence in which a person or persons may live, which is not
considered to be used for non-residential purposes.

“Single-Family Residential Property” or “SFR Property” means an Assessor’s Parcel
classified as Developed Property for which a Building Permit(s) has been issued for purposes of
constructing a single-family residential dwelling unit. For purposes of this definition,
condominiums are not classified as SFR Property.

“Special Tax” means, Special Tax A, Special Tax B, and/or Special Tax C, as applicable.

“Special Tax A” means the special tax authorized to be levied within CFD No. 2019-01 pursuant
to the Act, to fund the Special Tax Requirement for County Services.

“Special Tax B” means the special tax authorized to be levied within CFD No. 2019-01 pursuant
to the Act, to fund the Special Tax Requirement for Flood Control Services.

“Special Tax C” means the special tax authorized to be levied within CFD No. 2019-01 pursuant
to the Act, to fund Fire Facilities and Services.

“Special Tax Requirement for County Services” means the amount, as determined by the
CFD Administrator, for any Fiscal Year to: (i) pay the costs of providing County Services during
such Fiscal Year, (ii) pay Administrative Expenses associated with Special Tax, (iii) pay incidental
expenses related to County Services as authorized pursuant to the Act, (iv) fund an amount equal
to a reasonable estimate of delinquencies expected to occur in the Fiscal Year in which Special
Tax A will be levied (“Estimated Special Tax Delinquency Amount”), (v) fund an operating
reserve for the costs of County Services as determined by the CFD Administrator to the extent
the inclusion of such amount does not increase the Special Tax A levy on Undeveloped Property,
and (vi) fund the shortfall, if any, in the Special Tax A revenues collected in the preceding Fiscal
Year necessary to fund the Special Tax Requirement for County Services, where the shortfall
resulted from delinquencies in the payment of Special Taxes that exceeded the Estimated Special
Tax Delinquency Amount included in the Special Tax Requirement for County Services.

“Special Tax Requirement for Flood Control Services” means the amount, as determined by
the CFD Administrator, for any Fiscal Year to: (i) pay the costs of providing Flood Control
Services during such Fiscal Year, (ii) pay incidental expenses related to Flood Control Services as
authorized pursuant to the Act, (iii) fund an amount equal to a reasonable estimate of
delinquencies expected to occur in the Fiscal Year in which Special Tax B will be levied
(“Estimated Special Tax Delinquency Amount”), (iv) fund an operating reserve for the costs of
Flood Control Services as determined by the CFD Administrator to the extent the inclusion of
such amount does not increase the Special Tax B levy on Undeveloped Property, and (v) fund
the shortfall, if any, in the Special Tax B revenues collected in the preceding Fiscal Year necessary
to fund the Special Tax Requirement for Flood Control Services, whete the shortfall resulted
from delinquencies in the payment of Special Taxes that exceeded the Estimated Special Tax
Delinquency Amount included in the Special Tax Requirement for Flood Control Services.

“Taxable Property” means all Assessor’s Parcels within the boundaries of CFD No. 2019-01
that are within a Zone and not exempt from the Special Tax pursuant to the Act or Section H.

“Undeveloped Property” means an Assessor’s Parcel of Taxable Property for which a Building

Permit has not been issued on or before May 1 preceding the Fiscal Year for which Special Taxes
are being levied.

“Zone” means Zone 1, Zone 2, Zone 3, Zone 4, Zone 5, Zone 6, as applicable.

4 CFD No. 2019-01

January 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting Page -138



“Zone 1” means the specific geographic area within CFD No. 2019-01 as depicted on the
Boundary Map and as described in Exhibit A herein.

“Zone 2” means the specific geographic area within CFD No. 2019-01 as depicted on the
Boundary Map and as described in Exhibit A herein.

“Zone 3” means the specific geographic area within CFD No. 2019-01 as depicted on the
Boundary Map and as described in Exhibit A herein.

“Zone 4” means the specific geographic area within CFD No. 2019-01 as depicted on the
Boundary Map and as described in Exhibit A herein.

“Zone 5” means the specific geographic area within CFD No. 2019-01 as depicted on the
Boundary Map and as described in Exhibit A herein.

“Zone 6” means the specific geographic area within CFD No. 2019-01 as depicted on the
Boundary Map and as described in Exhibit A herein.

B. CLASSIFICATION OF ASSESSOR’S PARCELS

Each Fiscal Year, beginning with Fiscal Year 2019-2020, using the definitions above, each Assessor’s
Parcel within CFD No. 2019-01 shall be classified by the CFD Administrator as Taxable Property or
Exempt Propetrty. In addition, each such Fiscal Year, each Assessor’s Parcel of Taxable Property shall
be further classified by the CFD Administrator as Developed Property or Undeveloped Property.
Lastly, each such Fiscal Year, each Assessor’s Parcel of Developed Property shall be further classified
by the CFD Administrator as SFR Property or MFR Property. Commencing with Fiscal Year 2019-
2020 and for each subsequent Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property shall be subject to the levy of Special
Taxes pursuant to Section C below.

In the event an Assessor’s Parcel of Taxable Property lies partially within two or more Zones, it shall
be taxed by CFD No. 2019-01 according to the Zone in which the majority of the Acreage of such
Assessor’s Parcel lies.

Further, it should be noted that the entirety of the property located within Zone 2 is reserved as a
school site pursuant to County of San Diego Vesting Tentative Map No. 5354 RPL*. Should all or a
portion of the property in Zone 2 be acquired by a school district (or other public agency) and meets
the definition of “Public Property’ herein, such property shall be exempt from the levy of Special
Taxes pursuant to Section H. If the property in Zone 2 is not acquired by the school district, it may
be developed with Residential Units pursuant to underlying residential land use entitlements.

C. MAXIMUM ANNUAL SPECIAL TAXES
1.  Developed Property

Each Fiscal Year commencing in the Base Year, each Assessor’s Parcel of Developed Property
shall be subject to Special Tax A, Special Tax B, and Special Tax C.

The Maximum Special Tax A for each Assessor’s Parcel classified as Developed Property
in any Fiscal Year shall be the amount determined by the greater of (i) the application of the

Assigned Special Tax set forth in Section D.1 or (ii) the application of the Developed Backup
Special Tax set forth in Section E.1.

The Maximum Special Tax B for each Assessor’s Parcel classified as Developed Property
in any Fiscal Year shall be the amount determined by the greater of (i) the application of the

5 CFD No. 2019-01

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page —139



Assigned Special Tax set forth in Section D.1 or (ii) the application of the Developed Backup
Special Tax set forth in Section E.3.

The Maximum Special Tax C for each Assessor’s Parcel classified as Developed Property
in any Fiscal Year shall be the amount set forth in Table 1 below

TABLE 1

DEVELOPED PROPERTY
BASE YEAR MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAX C RATES FOR ALL ZONES

Maximum

Land Use Type Special Tax C

SFR Property $283 per Residential Unit

MFR Property $195 per Residential Unit

For cach subsequent Fiscal Year following the Base Year, the Maximum Special Tax C rate
shall be increased from the Maximum Special Tax C rate in effect for the prior Fiscal Year by
the Annual Escalation Factor.

Undeveloped Property

Each Fiscal Year commencing in the Base Year, each Assessor’s Parcel classified as
Undeveloped Property shall be subject to Special Tax A and Special Tax B.

The Maximum Special Tax A for each Assessor’s Parcel classified as Undeveloped Property
in any Fiscal Year shall be the amount determined by the greater of (i) the application of the

Assigned Special Tax set forth in Section D.2 or (ii) the application of the Undeveloped
Backup Special Tax set forth in Section E.2.

The Maximum Special Tax B for each Assessor’s Patcel classified as Undeveloped Property
in any Fiscal Year shall be the amount determined by the greater of (i) the application of the

Assigned Special Tax set forth in Section D.2 or (ii) the application of the Undeveloped
Backup Special Tax set forth in Section E.4.

Undeveloped Property is not subject to the levy of Special Tax C.
Multiple Land Uses

In some instances, an Assessor’s Parcel may contain both Undeveloped Property and

Developed Property. Furthermore, Developed Property may contain mote than one Land
Use Type.

In such cases, the Acreage of the Assessor’s Parcel shall be allocated between Developed
Property and Undeveloped Property based the portion of the Assessor’s Parcel for which
building permits had been issued prior to May 1 of the prior Fiscal Year and portion of the
Assessor’s Parcel for which building permits had not been issued prior to May 1 of the prior
Fiscal Year. The Acreage that is considered Developed Property shall be allocated berween
SFR Property and MFR Property based on the applicable Final Map or site plan. The

6 CFD No. 2019-01

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -140



1.

Maximum Special Tax A and Maximum Special Tax B that can be levied on such Assessor’s
Parcel shall be the sum of the Maximum Special Tax A and Maximum Special Tax B,

respectively, that can be levied on each type of property located on that Assessor’s Parcel.

The CFD Administrator’s allocaton to each type of property shall be final.

D. ASSIGNED SPECIAL TAXES

Developed Property

For each Zone, the original number of planned Residential Units as well as the Assigned
Special Tax A and Assigned Special Tax B for Developed Property for the Base Year are

shown below in Tables 2 through 8 below.

TABLE 2

DEVELOPED PROPERTY
ASSIGNED SPECIAL TAX A AND ASSIGNED SPECIAL TAX B
BASE YEAR RATES FOR ZONE 1

Original Number . 5
Land Use Type of Planned S As:s;lg};ed Al S As.s 1lg'1;ed B
Residential Units PEEIAL DA D
$609 per Residential | $342 per Residential
SFR Property 52 Unit Unit
MFR Property N/A N/A N/A
TABLE 3
DEVELOPED PROPERTY
ASSIGNED SPECIAL TAX A AND ASSIGNED SPECIAL TAX B
BASE YEAR RATES FOR ZONE 2
Original Number ] !
Land Use Type of Planned S AS.S;lgfIl.ed A S As.szlg.xl)‘ed B
Residential Units o e
$609 per Residential | $342 per Residential
*
SFR Property 42 Unit Unit
MFR Property N/A N/A N/A

*Assumes the property is not acquired by school district.

CFD No. 2019-01

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting

Page —141



TABLE 4

DEVELOPED PROPERTY
ASSIGNED SPECIAL TAX A AND ASSIGNED SPECIAL TAX B
BASE YEAR RATES FOR ZONE 3
Original Number . .
Land Use Type of Planned S As:q;]g'x;ed R S As.?' 1lgr;ed B
Residential Units P pecial Tax
: 3609 per Residential | $342 per Residential
SFR Property 49 Unit Unit
MFR Property N/A N/A N/A
TABLE 5
DEVELOPED PROPERTY
ASSIGNED SPECIAL TAX A AND ASSIGNED SPECIAL TAX B
BASE YEAR RATES FOR ZONE 4
Original Number : .
Land Use Type of Planned 3 As:tnlg;ed n S As's 1lg'1]1red B
Residential Units PeCta ** Pe A%
SFR Property N/A N/A N/A
$457 per Residential | $256 per Residential
MFR Property 352 Unit Unit
TABLE 6
DEVELOPED PROPERTY
ASSIGNED SPECIAL TAX A AND ASSIGNED SPECIAL TAX B
BASE YEAR RATES FOR ZONE 6
Original Number ] .
Land Use Type |  of Planned " Asf’:lg,';ed R . As?;ﬁ"d B
Residential Units i pecial Tax
$609 per Residential | $342 per Residential
SFR Property 241 Unit Unit
MFR Property N/A N/A N/A
TABLE 7
DEVELOPED PROPERTY

ASSIGNED SPECIAL TAX A AND ASSIGNED SPECIAL TAX B
BASE YEAR RATES FOR ZONE 6

Land Use Type

Original Number
of Planned
Residential Units

Assigned
Special Tax A

Assigned
Special Tax B

CFD No. 2019-01

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting

Page —142



$609 per Residential | $342 per Residential
SFR Property 131 Unit Unit
MEFR Property N/A N/A N/A

For each subsequent Fiscal Year following the Base Year, Assigned Special Tax A and
Assigned Special Tax B rates for each zone shall be increased from the Assigned Special Tax
A and Assigned Special Tax B rates for each zone in effect for the prior Fiscal Year by the
Annual Escalation Factor.

Undeveloped Property

For each Zone, the Assigned Special Tax A and Assigned Special Tax B for the Base Year and
the original anticipated taxable Acreage is shown in Table 9. There shall be no levy of Special
Tax C on Undeveloped Property.

TABLE 9

UNDEVELOPED PROPERTY
BASE YEAR
ASSIGNED SPECIAL TAX A AND
ASSIGNED SPECIAL TAX B RATES

zone | LandUseType | Torble | Aspned || Aoigned
creage

Zone 1 | Undeveloped Property 3.22 $9,824 per Acre | 85,516 per Acre
Zone 2 | Undeveloped Property 2.65*% | 89,6063 per Acre | $5,426per Acre
Zone 3 | Undeveloped Property 3.14 $9,507 per Acre | $5,339 pet Acre
Zone 4 | Undeveloped Property 19.27 $8,341 per Acre | $4,684 per Acte
Zone 5 | Undeveloped Property | 28.83 | 85,090 per Acre | $2,858 per Acre
Zone 6 | Undeveloped Property 19.24 | $4,145 per Acre | $2,328 per Acre

*Assumes the property is not acquired by school district.

For each subsequent Fiscal Year following the Base Year, Assigned Special Tax A and
Assigned Special Tax B rates for each zone shall be increased from the Assigned Special Tax

A and Assigned Special Tax B rates for each zone in effect for the prior Fiscal Year by the
Annual Escalation Factor.

CFD No. 2019-01

January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meeting

Page —-143



3. Exempt Property
No Special Tax shall be levied on Exempt Property as defined in Section H.

For each Fiscal Year, if the use or ownership of an Assessor’s Parcel of Exempt Property
changes so that such Assessor’s Parcel is no longer classified as one of the uses set forth in
Section H, therefore making such Assessot’s Parcel no longer eligible to be classified as
Exempt Propetty, such Assessor’s Parcel shall be deemed to be Taxable Property and shall be
taxed pursuant to the provisions of Section C and Section D.

E. BACKUP SPECIAL TAX

If a Final Map is subsequently changed, modified, or superseded by a new or amended recorded Final
Map, and only if the CFD Administrator determines such a change or modification results in a
decrease in the number of planned Residential Units, or a reduction in taxable Acreage within such
new Final Map, from those shown in Tables 1 through 9 (as applicable), then for all subsequent Fiscal
Years, the Backup Special Tax A shall be calculated pursuant to sections E.1 and E.2 below and the
Backup Special Tax B shall be calculated pursuant to sections E.3 and E.4 below.

1. Developed Backup Special Tax A

The Developed Backup Special Tax A for Developed Property within the Final Map shall be
the Special Tax per Residential Unit calculated according to the following formula:

SFR Property:
Developed Backup Special Tax per Residential Unit =
(A srr x B srn}/C ser
MFR Property:
Developed Backup Special Tax per Residential Unit =
{A mer x B mrr)/C mrr
Where:
A = Assigned Special Tax A per Residential Unit for the applicable Zone
B = Original number of planned Residential Units within such Final Map
C = Amended Number of Total Residential Units within such Final Map

For each subsequent Fiscal Year following the Base Year, Developed Backup Special Tax A
rates shall be increased from the Developed Backup Special Tax A rates in effect for the prior
Fiscal Year by the Annual Escalation Factor.

2.  Undeveloped Backup Special Tax A

Each Fiscal Year commencing in the Base Year, each Assessor’s Parcel of Undeveloped
Property shall be subject to an Undeveloped Backup Special Tax A. The Undeveloped Backup

Special Tax A for Undeveloped Property within the Final Map shall be the amount per Acre
calculated according to the following formula:

Undeveloped Backup Special Tax per Acre = (W x Y)/Z
Where:

W = Assigned Special Tax A per Acre for the applicable Zone

10 CFD No. 2019-01

January 22, 2019 - Reqular Board Meetina Paae -144



Y = Original Taxable Acreage within such Final Map
Z = Amended Taxable Acreage within such Final Map

For each subsequent Fiscal Year following the Base Year, the Undeveloped Backup Special
Tax A shall be increased from the Backup Special Tax A rates in effect for the prior Fiscal
Year by the Annual Escalation Factor.

Developed Backup Special Tax B

The Developed Backup Special Tax B for Developed Property within the Final Map shall be
the Special Tax per Residential Unit calculated according to the following formula:

SFR Property:
Developed Backup Special Tax per Residential Unit =
(D s;R X B sm)/c SFR

MFR Property:
Developed Backup Special Tax per Residential Unit =
(D mrr X B mer)/C mer
Where:
D = Assigned Special Tax B per Residential Unit for the applicable Zone
B = Original number of planned Residential Units within such Final Map
C = Amended Number of Total Residential Units within such Final Map.

For each subsequent Fiscal Year following the Base Year, Developed Backup Special Tax B
rates shall be increased from the Developed Backup Special Tax B rates in effect for the prior
Fiscal Year by the Annual Escalation Factor.

Undeveloped Backup Special Tax B

Each Fiscal Year commencing in the Base Year, each Assessor’s Parcel of Undeveloped
Property shall be subject to an Undeveloped Backup Special Tax B. The Undeveloped Backup
Special Tax B for Undeveloped Property within the Final Map shall be the amount per Acre
calculated according to the following formula:

Undeveloped Backup Special Tax per Acre = X x Y)/Z
Where:
X = Assigned Special Tax B per Acre for the applicable Zone
Y = Original Taxable Acreage within such Final Map
Z = Amended Taxable Acreage within such Final Map

For each subsequent Fiscal Year following the Base Year, the Undeveloped Backup Special
Tax B shall be increased from the Backup Special Tax B rates in effect for the prior Fiscal
Year by the Annual Escalation Factor.

11 CFD No. 2019-01

Januarv 22, 2019 - Reaular Board Meetina Paae -145



F. METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF SPECIAL TAX

1,

Special Tax A

Commencing in the Base Year and for each subsequent Fiscal Year, the CFD Administrator
shall levy Special Tax A on all Taxable Property until the total amount of Special Tax A levied

equals the Special Tax Requirement for County Services in accordance with the following
steps:

Step One: The Special Tax A shall be levied Proportionately on each Assessor’s Parcel of
Developed Property up to 100% of the applicable Assigned Special Tax A to
satisfy the Special Tax Requirement for County Services.

Step Two: If additional monies are needed to satisfy the Special Tax Requirement for
County Services after the first step has been completed, the Special Tax A shall
be levied Proportionately on each Acre of Undeveloped Property up to 100%
of the applicable Assigned Special Tax A for Undeveloped Property as needed
to satisfy the Special Tax Requirement for County Services.

Step Three;  If additional monies are needed to satisfy the Special Tax Requirement for
County Services after the first two steps have been completed, and if a changed
or amended Final Map has been recorded that necessitates the calculation of a
Backup Special Tax, then for each Assessor's Patcel of Developed Property
whose Maximum Special Tax is equal to the Backup Special Tax, those parcels’
Special Tax shall be increased Proportionately up to 100% of the Backup
Special Tax as needed to satisfy the Special Tax Requirement for County
Services.

Step Four: If additional monies are needed to satisfy the Special Tax Requirement for
County Setvices after the first three steps have been completed, and if a
changed or amended Final Map has been recorded that necessitates the
calculation of a Backup Special Tax, then for each Assessor’s Parcel of
Undeveloped Property whose Maximum Special Tax is equal to the Backup
Special Tax, those parcels’ Special Tax shall be increased Propostionately up
to 100% of the Backup Special Tax as needed to satisfy the Special Tax
Requirement for County Services.

Special Tax B

Commencing in the Base Year and for each subsequent Fiscal Year, the CFD Administrator
shall levy Special Tax B on all Taxable Property until the total amount of Special Tax B levied

equals the Special Tax Requirement for Flood Control Services in accordance with the
following steps:

Step One: The Special Tax B shall be levied Proportionately on each Assessor’s Parcel of
Developed Property up to 100% of the applicable Assigned Special Tax B to
satisfy the Special Tax Requirement for Flood Control Services.

Step Two: If additional monies are needed to satisfy the Special Tax Requirement for
Flood Control Setvices after the first step has been completed, the Special Tax
B shall be levied Proportionately on each Acre of Undeveloped Property up
to 100% of the applicable Assigned Special Tax B for Undeveloped Property
as needed to satisfy the Special Tax Requirement for Flood Control Services.

Step Three:  If additional monies are needed to satisfy the Special Tax Requirement for
12 CFD No. 2019-01

January 22, 2019 - Reqular Board Meetinqg Page —146



Flood Control Services after the first two steps have been completed, and if 2
changed or amended Final Map has been recorded that necessitates the
calculation of a Backup Special Tax, then for each Assessor's Parcel of
Developed Property whose Maximum Special Tax is equal to the Backup
Special Tax, those parcels’ Special Tax shall be increased Proportionately up
to 100% of the Backup Special Tax as needed to satisfy the Special Tax
Requirement for Flood Control Services.

Step Four: If additional monies are needed to satisfy the Special Tax Requirement for
Flood Control Services after the first three steps have been completed, and if
a changed or amended Final Map has been recorded that necessitates the
calculation of a Backup Special Tax, then for each Assessor’s Parcel of
Undeveloped Property whose Maximum Special Tax is equal to the Backup
Special Tax, those parcels’ Special Tax shall be increased Proportionately up
to 100% of the Backup Special Tax as needed to satisfy the Special Tax
Requirement for Flood Control Services.

3. Special Tax C

Commencing in the Base Year and for each subsequent Fiscal Year, the CFD Administrator
shall levy a Special Tax C on all Developed Property of CFD No. 2019-01 in an amount equal
to 100% of the applicable Maximum Special Tax C to fund Fire Facilities and Services.

There shall be no levy of Special Tax C on Undeveloped Property.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Section F to the contrary, under no circamstances will the
Special Tax A, Special Tax B, or Special Tax C levied in any Fiscal Year against any Assessor’s Parcel
of Residential Property for which an occupancy permit for private residential use has been issued
be increased as a result of a delinquency or default in the payment of Special Taxes applicable to any
other Assessor’s Parcel within CFD No. 2019-01 by more than ten percent (10%) above what would
have been levied in the absence of such delinquencies or defaults.

G. PREPAYMENT OF SPECIAL TAX
1. Special Tax A

Special Tax A is levied for the purpose of financing ongoing County Services and therefore may not
be prepaid.

2. Special Tax B

Special Tax B is levied for the purpose of financing ongoing Flood Control Services and therefore
may not be prepaid.

3. Special Tax C

Special Tax C is levied for the purpose of financing ongoing Fire Facilities and Services and therefore
may not be prepaid.

H. EXEMPTIONS

The County Board shall classify as Exempt Property: (i) Public Property, (i) Property Ownes
Association Property, (iii) Assessor’s Parcels with public or utility easements making impractical their
utilization for other than the purposes set forth in the easement, including but not limited to property

13 CED No. 2019-01

January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meetina Paae -147



designated for drainage, open space, trails, pathways, parks ot park and recreation related facilities, (iv)
property reasonably designated by the County or CFD Administrator as Exempt Property due to deed
restrictions, conservation easement, or similar factors, and (v) property not located within a Zone.

I APPEALS

Any property owner claiming that the amount or application of the Special Tax A, Special Tax B, or
Special Tax C is not correct may file a written notice of appeal with the CFD Administrator not later
than twelve months after having paid the first installment of the Special Tax A, Special Tax B, or
Special Tax C that is disputed. The CFD Administrator shall promptly review the appeal, and if
necessary, meet with the property owner, consider written and oral evidence regarding the amount of
the Special Tax A, Special Tax B, or Special Tax C, and rule on the appeal. If the decision of the CFD
Administrator requires that the Special Tax A, Special Tax B, or Special Tax C for an Assessor’s Parcel
be modified or changed in favor of the property owner, a cash refund shall not be made but an
adjustment shall be made to the Special Tax A, Special Tax B, and/or Special Tax C on that Assessor’s

Parcel in the subsequent Fiscal Year(s) to compensate for the overpayment of Special Tax A, Special
Tax B, and/or Special Tax C.

J. MANNER OF COLLECTION

The annual Special Taxes shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad
valorem property taxes, provided, however, that the Special Taxes may be billed and collected at a

different time or in a different manner if necessary to meet the financial obligations of CFD No. 2019-
01.

K INTERPRETATION, APPLICATION, AND AMENDMENTS

The County Board or designee thereof shall interpret this Rate and Method of Apportionment of
Special Tax (“RMA”) for purposes of clarifying any ambiguities and make determinations relative to

the administration of the Special Taxes and any landowner appeals. The decision of the County Board
or designee shall be final.

Without County Board approval, the CFD Administrator may make minor, non-substantive
administrative and technical changes to the provisions of this RMA that do not materially affect the
rate, method of apportionment, or manner of collection of the Special Taxes for purposes of
administrative efficiency or convenience or to comply with new applicable federal, state, or local law.

Further, it may become necessary to amend this RMA and/or Boundary to address changes made to
County of San Diego Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 5354 RPL* (or a related Final Map) and/or
associated public facilities engineering plans, subsequent to the date CFD No. 2019-01 was
established. In such case, upon written request of an owner (or owners) of land in CFD No. 2019-01
thatis not a Developed Property, the County may amend this RMA and/or the Boundary Map, in any
manner acceptable to the County, without Resolution or Ordinance of the County Board, in otder to
effectuate changes to Special Taxes or Zone boundaries, upon the affirmative written consent of such
owner(s) and without the noticing or consent of owners of any other parcels in CFD No. 2019-01,
provided such amendment (i) only affects the requesting owner’s parcel(s) and (i} does not add or
remove territory from the boundaries of CFD No. 2019-01. A certificate in substantially the form
attached hereto as Exhibit B shall be used for purposes of effectuating any such amendments pursuant
to this paragraph. The amendments permitted pursuant to this paragraph shall be reflected in an
amended Notice of Special Tax Lien and/or amended Boundary Map, as applicable, which the County
shall cause to be recorded. The property owner(s) that requested the amendment shall bear the costs
to prepare and record the required documents. Prior to approval of an amendment pursuant to this

14 CFD No. 2019-01

January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meeting Page -148



paragraph, the County may require a deposit from the requesting property owner(s) for the estimated
costs to carry out the amendment.

L. TERM OF SPECIAL TAXES

Taxable Property shall remain subject to the Special Tax A, Special Tax B, and Special Tax C in
perpetuity or until the County Board takes appropriate actions to terminate the Special Tax A, Special
Tax B, and/or Special Tax C pursuant to the Act.

15 CFD No. 2019-01

January 22. 2019 - Reaular Board Meetina Paae —149



EXHIBIT A

Legal Description of Each Zone

Those portions of Fractional Section 36, Township 9 South, Range 3 West, San
Bernardino Base and Meridian, in the County of San Diego, state of California, according
to the Official Plat thereof, together with a portion of Rancho Monserate, according to Map
No. 827 on File in the Office of the Recorder of San Diego County, also being described
as Parcels 1A and 2A in Grant Deed to Pardee Homes per Document No. 2007-0673087,
recorded October 19, 2007 of Official Records of said County, and as shown on Record
of Survey No. 21755, filed June 27, 2014 in the Office of said County Recorder, more
particularly described as follows:

ZONE 1

Commencing at the Southwest corner of said Parcel 2A, also being the Southeast corner
of County of San Diego Tract No. 5338-2, according to Map thereof No. 16183, recorded
March 28, 2017 of Official Records of said County;

Thence along the Westerly boundary of said Parce! 2A North 03°49'37" West 962.73 feet
to the Point of Beginning;

Thence continuing along said Westerly boundary North 03°49'37" West 1,517.28 feet to
an angle point in said Westerly boundary and the centerline of Horse Ranch Creek Road
per Document No. 2011-0017038, recorded January 10, 2011 of Official Records of said
County, said point herein referred to as Point ‘A’;

Thence leaving said Westerly line and along said centerline South 26°41'44” East 6.11
feet to the beginning of a tangent 2,400.00-foot radius curve concave Northeasterly;
Thence Southeasterly along the arc of said curve through a central angle of 04°36'29” a
distance of 193.02 feet,

Thence South 31°18'13” East 738.84 feet to the beginning of a tangent 1,900.00-foot
radius curve concave Southwesterly;

Thence Southeasterly along the arc of said curve through a central angle of 06°17'59" a
distance of 208.91 feet to the Easterly boundary of said Parcel 2A;

Thence leaving said centerline and along said Easterly boundary South 10°40'09" East
21.07 feet to the beginning of a tangent 230.00-foot radius curve concave Easterly;

Thence Southeasterly along the arc of said curve through a central angle of 11°26'50” a
distance of 45.95 feet;

Thence South 22°06'59" East 168.01 feet;
Thence leaving said Easterly boundary South 72°05'12” West 105.67 feet to the
beginning of a 1,200.00 radius tangent curve concave Southeasterly;

Thence Southwesterly along the arc of said curve through a central angle of 25°35'25" a
distance of 535.96 feet to the Point of Beginning.

Said parcel contains 445,511 square feet or 10.23 acres, more or less.

ZONE 2

16 CFD No. 2019-01

Januarv 22. 2019 - Reaular Board Meetina Paae -150



Beginning at the above described Point ‘A’;

Thence along the Westerly boundary of said Parcel 2A and the centerline of said Horse
Ranch Creek Road North 26°41'44” West 554.05 feet to a point herein referred to as
Point ‘B’;

Thence leaving said Westerly boundary and said centerline North 63°18'16” East 253.93
feet;

Thence North 56°57°37" East 52.00 feet;

Thence North 64°02’'37" East 444.73 feet;

Thence South 25°34'57” East 1.30 feet to an angie point in the Easterly boundary of said
Parcel 2A, also being the Northwest corner of Parcel A in Exhibit B “Adjacent Property”
per said Document No. 2007-0673087;

Thence along said Easterly boundary South 25°34'57” East 251.25 feet to the beginning
of a tangent 170.00-foot radius curve concave Westerly;

Thence Southeasterly, Southerly and Southwesterly along the arc of said curve through
a central angle of 37°23'00" a distance of 110.92 feet;

Thence South 11°48'03" West 248.63 feet to the beginning of a tangent 230.00-foot
radius curve concave Easterly;

Thence Southwesterly along the arc of said curve through a central angle of 08°02'00" a
distance of 32.25 feet;

Thence South 03°46'03" West 665.08 feet to the beginning of a tangent 230.00-foot
radius curve concave Easterly;

Thence Southwesterly, Southerly and Southeasterly along the arc of said curve through
a central angle of 24°46'00" a distance of 99.42 feet;

Thence South 20°59'67" East 174.56 feet to the beginning of a tangent 170.00-foot radius
curve concave Westerly,

Thence Southeasterly along the arc of said curve through a central angle of 10°19'48” a
distance of 30.65 feet;

Thence South 10°40'09” East 261.34 feet to said centerline of Horse Ranch Creek Road,
being a non-tangent 1,900.00-foot radius curve concave Southwesterly, radial line to said
point bears North 64°59'46" East;

Thence leaving said Easterly boundary, Northwesterly along said centerline and the arc
of said curve through a central angle of 06°17'59" a distance of 208.91 feet;

Thence North 31°18'13" West 738.84 feet to the beginning of a tangent 2,400.00-foot
radius curve concave Northeasterly;

Thence Northwesterly along the arc of said curve through a central angle of 04°36'29” a
distance of 193.02 feet;

Thence North 26°41°44" West 6.11 feet to the Point of Beginning.

Said parcel contains 646,108 square feet or 14.83 acres, more or less.

ZONE 3

Beginning at the above described Point ‘B’;

Thence along the Westerly boundary of said Parcel 2A and the centerline of said Horse
Ranch Creek Road North 26°41'44” West 663.44 feet to a point herein referred to as
Point ‘C’;

Thence leaving said Westerly boundary and said centerline North 63°17°21” East 142.36
feet to the beginning of a tangent 300.00-foot radius curve concave Southerly;

Thence Northeasterly, Easterly and Southeasterly along the arc of said curve through a

17 CFD No. 2019-01

January 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting Page —-151



central angle of 35°06'52" a distance of 183.86 feet;

Thence South 81°35'47" East §52.75 feet to the beginning of a tangent 300.00-foot radius
curve concave Northerly;

Thence Southeasterly, Easterly and Northeasterly along the arc of said curve through a
central angle of 21°28'46” a distance of 112.47 feet;

Thence South 13°04'33" East 86.13 feet;

Thence South 04°30'39" West 188.56 feet;

Thence South 64°02'37" West 445.49 feet;

Thence South 56°57'37" West 52.00 feet;

Thence South 63°18'16" West 253.93 feet; the Point of Beginning.

Said parcel contains 422,938 square feet or 9.70 acres, more or less.

ZONE 4

Beginning at the above described Point ‘C’;

Thence along the Westerly boundary of said Parcel 2A and the centerline of said Horse
Ranch Creek Road North 26°41'44” West 344.10 feet to the Southwest corner of said
Parcel 1A;

Thence leaving said Westerly boundary of Parcel 2A, continuing along said centerline
and the Westerly boundary of said Parcel 1A North 26°41°44” West 32.25 feet;

Thence leaving said centerline and continuing along the Westerly and Northerly boundary
of said Parcel 1A North 00°02'58” East 1,328.05 feet;

Thence North 65°22'48" East 681.61 feet;

Thence leaving said Northerly boundary South 17°24'01” East 51.12 feet to the beginning
of a non-tangent 1,500.00-foot radius curve concave Southerly, a radial line to said point
bears North 17°24'01" West;

Thence Southwesterly along the arc of said curve through a central angle of 02°01°39" a
distance of 53.08 feet;

Thence South 19°25'40” East 121.29 feet;

Thence South 42°14'46” East 155.03 feet;

Thence South 28°14'25” East 142.18 feet;

Thence South 26°28'29" West 161.07 feet;

Thence South 16°53'68" East 201.27 feet;

Thence South 27°17°'46" East 190.48 feet;

Thence South 04°37'54" East 264.28 feet;

Thence South 22°45'29" East 381.77 feet;

Thence South 13°46'14” East 174.44 feet;

Thence South 13°04'33" East 226.70 feet to the beginning of a non-tangent 300.00-foot
radius curve concave Northerly, a radial line to said point bears South 13°04'33” East,
Thence Southwesterly, Westerly and Northwesterly along the arc of said curve through a
central angle of 21°28'46" a distance of 112.47 feet;

Thence North 81°35'47" West 552.75 feet to the beginning of a tangent 300.00-foot radius
curve concave Southerly;

Thence Northwesterly, Westerly and Southwesterly along the arc of said curve through a
central angle of 35°06'52" a distance of 183.86 feet;

Thence South 63°17°21" West 142.36 feet;

Thence North 26°41°'44” West 376.35 feet to the Point of Beginning.

Said parcel contains 1,527,971 square feet or 35.08 acres, more or less.

18 CFD No. 2019-01

January 22, 2019 - Reqular Board Meeting Page —152



ZONE 5

Beginning at an angle point in the Easterly boundary of said Parcel 2A, also being the
Northwest corner of Parcel A in Exhibit B “Adjacent Property” per said Document No.
2007-0673087,

Thence North 04°30'39” East 190.07 feet;

Thence North 13°04'33” West 312.83 feet;

Thence North 13°46'14” West 174.44 feet;

Thence North 22°45'29" West 381.77 feet;

Thence North 04°37'54" West 264.28 feet:

Thence North 27°17°46" West 190.48 feet;

Thence North 16°53'58" West 201.27 feet:

Thence North 26°28'29" East 161.07 feet;

Thence North 28°14'25" West 142.18 feet;

Thence North 42°14'46" West 155.03 feet;

Thence North 19°25'40" West 121.29 feet to the beginning of a non-tangent 1,500.00-
foot radius curve concave Southerly, a radial line to said point bears North 19°25'40"
West;

Thence Northeasterly along the arc of said curve through a central angle of 03°34'56" a
distance of 93.78 feet;

Thence North 74°09'16" East 121.99 feet:

Thence North 73°56'28" East 57.15 feet:

Thence North 74°14'53" East 130.18 feet;

Thence South 42°18'59" East 217.54 feet:

Thence North 69°35'03" East 389.43 feet:

Thence North 15°15'44" West 285.53 feet:

Thence North 09°09'19" East 222.10 feet:

Thence North 38°55'44” East 173.66 feet;

Thence North 87°26'23" East 189.49 feet:

Thence South 39°39'03" East 47.05 feet to the beginning of a non-tangent 280.00-foot
radius curve concave Northwesterly, a radial line to said point bears South 39°39'03"
East;

Thence Northeasterly along the arc of said curve through a central angle of 13°20'50” a
distance of 65.23 feet;

Thence South 52°59'53" East 198.28 feet;

Thence South 41°44'47” West 259.00 feet;

Thence South 22°23'11” East 102.76 feet:

Thence South 44°24'24" East 84.03 feet:

Thence South 66°13'21” East 125.84 feet;

Thence South 25°13'04" West 128.38 feet:

Thence South 25°46'11” East 427.18 feet:

Thence South 88°16°31” East 148.39 feet;

Thence South 57°34'45” East 93.47 feet:

Thence North 89°49'49" East 308.53 feet:

Thence South 63°06'50" East 143.62 feet;

Thence South 03°24'34" East 102.76 feet:

Thence South 12°38'54" West 108.09 feet:

Thence South 51°21'35" West 109.12 feet:

19 CFD No. 2019-01

January 22, 2019 - Reqular Board Meeting Page -153



Thence South 08°18'31" West 88.84 feet;

Thence South 50°33'49" West 64.42 feet;

Thence North 86°28'06" West 172.51 feet;

Thence South 63°57'22" West 142.94 feet;

Thence South 22°48'24" West 49.30 feet;

Thence South 19°32'06" East 663.90 feet;

Thence South 61°25'03" West 224.77 feet;

Thence South 85°17°42" West 257.05 feet;

Thence South 59°50'06” West 230.09 feet to an angle point in the Easterly boundary of
said Parcel 2A;

Thence along said Easterly boundary South 64°12'41” West 841.72 feet to the Point of
Beginning.

Said parcel contains 3,278,777 square feet or 75.27 acres, more or less.

ZONE 6

Beginning at an angle point in the Westerly boundary of said Parcel 2A, also being the
most Easterly corner of County of San Diego Tract No. 5338-3, according to Map thereof
No. 16184, recorded March 28, 2017 of Official Records of said County;

Thence along said Westerly boundary North 24°37'50" West 519.87 feet;

Thence leaving said Westerly boundary North 60°55'02" East 637.90 feet:

Thence North 10°05'56" East 213.82 feet;

Thence North 54°29'09" East 39.16 feet;

Thence North 13°57'35" East 226.16 feet;

Thence South 81°00'42" East 303.80 feet:

Thence South 43°25'25" East 193.72 feet;

Thence South 08°45'22" West 181.43 feet;

Thence South 51°37'59" East 130.99 feet;

Thence South 06°33'25" East 262.63 feet;

Thence South 18°50'50" West 224 .92 feet;

Thence South 37°43'08" West 144 .41 feet;

Thence South 04°58'13" West 230.68 feet;

Thence South 19°37'26" East 182.35 feet;

Thence South 42°43'21" West 90.70 feet;

Thence South 68°56'38" West 50.55 feet;

Thence South 41°44'47" West 135.07 feet:

Thence North 52°59'53" West 198.28 feet to the beginning of a non-tangent 280.00-foot
radius curve concave Northwesterly, a radial line to said point bears South 52°59'53"
East;

Thence Southwesterly along the arc of said curve through a central angle of 13°20'50” a
distance of 65.23 feet;

Thence North 39°39'03" West 47.05 feet;

Thence South 87°26°23" West 189.49 feet;

Thence South 38°55'44" West 173.66 feet;

Thence South 09°09'19” West 222.10 feet;

Thence South 15°15'44" East 285.53 feet;

Thence South 69°35'03" West 389.43 feet;

Thence North 42°18'59” West 217.54 feet;

Thence South 74°14'53" West 130.18 feet;

20 CFD No. 2019-01

January 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting Page —154



Thence South 73°56'28" West 57.15 feet;

Thence South 74°09'16" West 121.99 feet to the beginning of a tangent 1,500.00-foot
radius curve concave Southerly;

Thence Southwesterly along the arc of said curve through a central angle of 01°33'17" a
distance of 40.70 feet;

Thence North 17°24'01” West 51.12 feet to an angle point in said Westerly boundary;
Thence along said Westerly boundary North 06°12'30” West 239.80 feet;

Thence North 14°07'56" East 123.43 feet;

Thence North 49°11°'40” East 663.99 feet;

Thence North 47°45'48” East 221.17 feet to the Point of Beginning.

Said parcel contains 1,779,366 square feet or 40.85 acres, more or less.

21 CFD No. 2019-01

Januarv 22. 2019 - Reaular Board Meetina Paae -155



EXHIBIT B
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO AND CFD NO. 2019-01 CERTIFICATE

1. Pursuant to Section K of the Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax (the
“RMA?”), the County of San Diego (the “County”) and Community Facilities District No.
2019-01 of the County (“CFD No. 2019-01”) hereby agree to amendments as follows:

a. The information in the RMA relating to the Special Tax for Developed Property and
Undeveloped Property shall be modified as follows:

[insert table or tables reflecting revised Assigned Special Tax and Backup Special Tax
rates for Developed and Undeveloped Property and revisions to Original Number of
Planned Residential Units and Original Taxable Acreage, as applicable, with

reference to the applicable Zone)

b. The Boundary Map shall be revised as follows: [insert “N/A” or describe changes
being made to Boundary Map and reason for such changes]

2. Special Tax rates and/or the Boundary Map may only be modified upon the affirmative
written consent of the owner of the affected patcels, provided such amendment (i) only

affects such owner’s parcel(s) and (ii) does not add or remove territory from the boundaries
of CFD No. 2019-01,

3. Upon execution of this Certificate by CFD No. 2019-01 the County shall cause an amended
Notice of Special Tax Lien and/or Boundary Map to be recorded reflecting the
modifications set forth herein.

By execution hereof, the undersigned acknowledges, on behalf of the County of San Diego and
CFD No. 2019-01, receipt of this Certificate and modification of the RMA and/or Boundary Map as
set forth in this Certificate.

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2019-01 (MEADOWOOD
MAINTENANCE) OF THE COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO

By: Date:

CFD Administrator

22 CFD No. 2019-01

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page —-156



DRAFT

EXHIBIT C
DISBURSEMENT REQUEST

Community Facilities District No. 2019-01
{(Meadowood Maintenance)
of the County of San Diego

The undersigned (“NCFPD”) hereby requests disbursement in the total amount of
$ for the Fire Protection Services (as defined in the Joint Community Facilities
Agreement (the “JCFA”) by and among the County of San Diego (the “County”) and NCFPD
described in Exhibit B to that Agreement), all as more fully described in Attachment 1 hereto. In
connection with this Disbursement Request, the undersigned hereby certifies, represents and
warrants to the County as follows:

A. He(she) is a duly authorized representative or signatory of NCFPD, qualified to
execute this Disbursement Request for payment on behalf of NCFPD and is knowledgeable as to
the matters set forth herein.

B. The Fire Protection Services that are the subject of this Disbursement Request are
in accordance with the requirements of the JCFA,

; s | ded Horparithl i ;
p : £ the C it Eacilitios Disteiet, ey s ites D peice fo- i

D. This request for payment of the Fire Protection Services has been calculated in
conformance with the terms of the JCFA. All costs for which disbursement is requested hereby are
eligible costs (as permitted in the JCFA).

E. NCFPD is in compliance with the terms and provisions of the JCFA.

January 22, 2019 - Reqular Board Meeting Page -157



DRAFT

[ hereby declare under penalty of perjury that the above representations and warranties are
true and correct.

NCFPD:

Dated:

Januaryv 22. 2019 - Reaular Board Meetina Paae —158



DRAFT

ATTACHMENT 1

North County Fire Protection District
Staffing Costs to Serve Meadowood Project

l NCFPD Level of Service Standard: | Firefighter per 1,000 Persons |
Total Residential Units in CFD No. 2019-01: 806 0
County of San Diego Persons per Household (a): | 2.87 (2]
Total Persons generated by Project: 2,313 [B1=[11x[2] |
Required Firefighters: (231 [4]=[3]+ 1,000 |
NCFPD Average Cost per Position (b): | [$150,000] | [5] :
|_Total NCFPD Staffing Costs: ) | $346,983 | =[4]1x[5] ]
Footnotes:

(a) Per U.S, Census Bureau QuickFacts: San Diego County.
(b) [NCFPD to cite source]

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page —159



Januar v 22,2019 — Reqular Board Meetina Page —-160



NORTH COUNTY FIRE

PROTECTION DISTRICT
FIRE CHIEF/CEO

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FROM: CHIEF ABBOTT

DATE: JANUARY 22, 2019

SUBJECT: CoMMUNITY QUTREACH SURVEY FINDINGS

ACTION AGENDA

BACKGROUND:

As community outreach was previously identified as a strategic initiative to address the
District's deferred facilities maintenance challenges, over the last few months staff has
augmented public outreach efforts in concert with Strategy Research Institute (SRI). This
outreach has included dozens of community speaking engagements, Facebook Live
presentations, a District-wide mailer, daily responses to inquiries via social media, and
numerous social media posts. Last week SRI conducted a follow-up public opinion survey
to evaluate the impact of these outreach efforts.

DISCUSSION:

Survey instrument findings include recommendations by the consuitant to either proceed
immediately with a particular course of action, proceed after additional public outreach,
or do not proceed. As the survey evaluates a range of scenarios, this recommendation
is based upon the degree of suppont for each scenarioc presented to the survey
participants. Among the factors considered were the public’'s general awareness of our
facility challenges and the options to address those challenges, which included expansion
of fees, reduction in force or facilities, privatization of ambulance services, pursuit of a
revenue measure, and/or consolidation with other agencies. Of these options, pursuit of
a revenue measure received the greatest support.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Because pursuit of a revenue measure could be a viable option, the fiscal impact is based
largely upon the extent of outreach efforts and the associated timing with subsequent
elections. Consultation services for community outreach between now and a summer
2019 election would be $35,000. A District-wide direct mailing costs $7,500 per mailing,
two are recommended. In addition to these outreach costs, implementing Phase C of
David Taussig & Associates {DTA) engineering analysis, development of ballot ianguage,
& public financing strategy consultation would cost an additional $25,000. Participation
in a November 2020 general election costs approximately $30,000; holding a special
election via mail ballot could be as low as $60,000 and as high as $150,000 provided that
utilization of a 3" party firm is feasible. Conducting a special mail ballot via the County
of San Diego is cost prohibitive at over double these estimates. The total fiscal impact

Page 1 of 2
January 22, 2019 - Reqular Board Meeting Page —161



COMMUNITY OUTREACH SURVEY FINDINGS
JANUARY 22, 2019
PAGE20F 2

would therefore range from a low of $87,500 and a high of $225,000. These expenditures
were not included in this year's budget and would need from current fiscal year
contingency funds; at the halfway point through this fiscal year the District has expended
43% of its operating budget.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends careful evatuation of the community outreach survey results and
subsequent recommendations from SRI and the community outreach ad hoc committee.

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -162



NORTH COUNTY FIRE

PROTECTION DISTRICT
FIRE CHIEF/CEO

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FROM: CHIEF ABBOTT
DATE: JANUARY 22,2019

SUBJECT: TRANSITION TO DISTRICT BASED ELECTION SYSTEM

ACTION AGENDA

RECOMMENDATION: That the Board adopt Resolution No. 2019-01 initiating transition to a
"By-District Area" election system commencing with the 2020 Board Election.

BACKGROUND:

In 2002, the California legisiature enacted the California Voting Rights Act ("CVRA"),
which prohibits the use of at-large elections of board members for publicly elected
governing bodies if it "impairs the ability of a protected class to elect candidates of its
choice or its ability to influence the outcome of an election...." (Elections Code § 14027,
emphasis added.) Under the CVRA, the only election system that provides an accepted
“safe harbor” from a potential CVRA claim is a “by-zone” or “district-based” election
system. Under a by-district area election system, a special district is divided into separate
district areas and one governing board member is elected by the registered voters in that
particular district area, rather than the community at-large. The North County Fire
Protection District currently employs an “at-large” election system for the purposes of
electing Governing Board members. With a CVRA claim, proof of intent on the part of
voters or elected officials to discriminate against a protected class is not required.
(Elections Code § 14028(d).).The CVRA grants a prevailing plaintiff the right to recover
reasonable attorneys’ fees and expert witness fees. (Elections Code § 14030.).

DISCUSSION:

Numerous cities, counties, and special districts throughout the state have been targeted
by private law firms for alleged violations of the CVRA and it is believed that the best
course of action for the District is to initiate its transition to "district based” area elections
for future Board elections. A district-based election system is where a district is divided
into geographic areas and one governing board member is elected by only the registered
voters in that particular district area. Steps for navigating this process are as follows:

Present CVRA at a regularly scheduled board meeting. Pass a resolution to initiate
transition to a district-based efection system by majority vote of the Board.

Page 1 of 2
Januarv 22. 2019 — Reaular Board Meetina Paae —163



Transition to District-Based Election System
January 22, 2019
Page 2 of 2

Development of a communications plan to provide information to the district's Board and
the public about the reason for the change in the election and sharing and receiving public
comments on the draft voting map plans that will be developed as part of the process.
This may include preparing materials in other languages as warranted.

Hold at least two public hearings to gather community input regarding composition of the
District election areas over a period of no more than 30 days.

Work with a demographer and legal counsel to prepare draft district area maps and
present them to the Board and the District's constituents for review and comment. The
transition to district area election method will involve input from the community at public
hearings on options for developing and approving a district area map.

Hold at least two additional public hearings over a period of no more than 45 days to
gather public input on the draft map(s) and the proposed sequence of elections, if
applicable. The first version of the draft map(s) must be published at least 7 days before
consideration at any further public hearings. If a draft map is revised at or following a
public hearing, it must be published and made available to the public for at least 7 days
before adoption by the Board. If members of the Board will be elected in their District

areas at different times to provide for staggered terms of office, publish the potential
sequence of the elections.

District approves resolution selecting final voting District election area map and
authorizing transition to by-trustee area election system by majority vote of the Board.

FiSCAL IMPACT:

Based upon the experience of neighboring jurisdictions of comparable size, the
anticipated cost of retaining a demographics consultant to conduct perform the necessary
analytics and public hearings is estimated to be $30,000. The District may be able to
realize some savings in using consultants already retained by these jurisdictions in that
much of that demographic analysis has already been performed. Should the District
receive notification by a law firm for alleged violation of the CRVA prior to approval of a
resolution of intention to transition to a district-based election system, it could be exposed
up to an additional $30,000 in fees related to preparation of this claim.

SUMMARY:

Transitioning to a District-based election system will allow the District to ensure it is

complying with the legislative intent of the CRVA and minimize exposure to additional
legal expenses.

January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meeting Page -164



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

RESOLUTION 2019-01

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF NORTH COUNTY
FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT OUTLINING INTENTION TO
TRANSITION FROM AT-LARGE TO DISTRICT-BASED ELECTIONS
PURSUANT TO ELECTIONS CODE SECTION 10010(e)J)(A)

WHEREAS, NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT ("NCFPD") is an independent
California fire protect district duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of
California, particularly the District Law, constituting Division 12 of the Health and Safety Code
of the State of California, and more particutarly, Health and Safety Code Sections 13000 et
seq. (the "Law");

WHEREAS, the governing board ("Board") is currently composed of five (5) directors who are
voted into office by an "at-large” election method, meaning one in which the voters of the
entire jurisdiction efect the members to the governing body;

WHEREAS, the Board wishes to transition the method of election for the NCFPD Board from
an "at-large" method to a "by-zone" or "district-based" election method, meaning a method of
electing members to the governing body of NCFPD in which the candidate must reside within
an election district that is a divisible part of NCFPD's jurisdiction and is elected only by voters
residing within that election district;

WHEREAS, the Board wishes to effectuate this transition from at-large to district-based
elections in order to ensure that NCFPD maintains an election method that does not impair
the ability of any protected class to elect candidates of its choice or its ability to influence the
outcome of an election, as a result of the dilution or the abridgement of the rights of voters,
who are members of a protected class, as defined by Elections Code Section 14026;

WHEREAS, this Resolution is expressly intended to address the requirements of Elections
Code Section 10010(e)(3)(A), and thereby outline NCFPD's intention to transition from at-
large to district-based elections, outline specific steps that NCFPD will undertake to facilitate
this transition, and set forth an estimated time frame for doing so; and,

WHEREAS, under the Law, NCFPD must first hold a public hearing prior to adoption of a

resolution moving to divisional elections and must follow the process laid out under the Law
for a transition to district-based elections;

NOW, THEREFORE, this Board of Directors of North County Fire Protection District does
hereby resolve:

Section 1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct.

Section 2. The Fire Chief/CEQ is hereby authorized and directed to confer with the
District's legal counsel and hire independent consultants whom the Fire Chief/CEQ

deems necessary and appropriate in order to begin the transition from at-large to
district-based elections.

Resolution 2018-01 Page 10of 3

T T v ———
Al-Large to DnstrictTranjigaWElarv 22, 2019 - Reqular Board Meetinq Page -165



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

RESOLUTION 2019-01

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF NORTH COUNTY
FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT OUTLINING INTENTION TO
TRANSITION FROM AT-LARGE TO DISTRICT-BASED ELECTIONS
PURSUANT TO ELECTIONS CODE SECTION 10010(e){()(A)

Section 3. The Fire Chief/CEQ is hereby authorized and directed to coordinate and
effectuate outreach to the public, including to non-English speaking communities, to
explain the districting process and to encourage public participation.

Section 4. Pursuant to Elections Code Section 10010, the Fire Chief/CEQ is hereby
authorized and directed to propose a schedule for no less than two (2) public hearings,
at which the public shall be invited to provide input regarding the composition of NCFPD
before NCFPD draws any draft maps of the proposed boundaries for district elections.
These public hearings shall be held over a period of no maore than thirty (30) days and

the first public hearing shall occur within thirty (30) days of the adoption of this
Embracement Resolution.

Section 5. In accordance with Elections Code Section 10010(a)(2), the Fire
Chief/CEO of NCFPD is hereby authorized and directed to confer with NCFPD legal
counsel and any consultants, and to create draft maps of the zones or districts for
presentation to the Board at a public meeting to be held pursuant to Section 6 below.
At the Board meeting, NCFPD shall also publish and make available for release to the
public draft maps for five (5) zones in the current NCFPD boundaries and shall also
disclose the following: a) whether members of the NCFPD Board will be elected in
their districts at different times, b) provide for proposed staggered terms of office; ¢)
identify the potential sequence of the elections.

Section 6. In accordance with Elections Code section 10010(a)(2), NCFPD shall hold at
least two (2) public hearings over a period of at least forty-five (45) days, at which the
public shall be invited to provide input regarding the content of the draft map(s) and the
proposed sequence of elections, if applicable. The first version of the draft map(s) shalt
be published at least seven (7) days before consideration at a public hearing. If the draft
map(s) is revised at or following a hearing, it shall be published and made available to
the public for at least seven (7) days before being adopted. The first of these two public

hearings shall be no later than thirty (30) days after the last Board meeting referenced
in Section 4 above, or as soon thereafter as practicable.

Section 7. Pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 13848, the Fire Chief/CEQ of
NCFPD is hereby authorized and directed to subsequently coordinate and effectuate a
public hearing on the proposed establishment of zones or districts for the district-based
elections, at which the Board shall provide for representation in accordance with
demographic, including population and geographic factors of the entire geographic area
of NCFPD. At this hearing, any elector of NCFPD may present his or her views and plans
in relation to the proposed zoning, but the Board shall not be bound thereby and its
decision, in the resolution adopted, shall be finai. This public hearing shall occur no later

Resolution 2019-01 Page 2 of 3

Friamebsretrygiiiary 22, 2019 - Reaular Board Meetina Page -166



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

RESOLUTION 2019-01

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF NORTH COUNTY
FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT OUTLINING INTENTION TO
TRANSITION FROM AT-LARGE TO DISTRICT-BASED ELECTIONS
PURSUANT TO ELECTIONS CODE SECTION 10010{e)(I(A)

than forty-five (45) days after the last public hearing referenced in Section 4 above, or
as soon thereafter as practicable. After this hearing, the Board will be presented with a
resolution to divide the District into the zones or districts.

Section 8. If the Board elects to approve a resolution which divides the district into
the zones or districts presented, the zones or districts shall be effective for the next
district election after the resolution of the Board for which there is time to implement

the zones and elections within the zones, or as provided for in Health & Safety Code
Section 13846.

Section 9. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

APPROVED, SIGNED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the

North County Fire Protection District held on this 22nd day of January, 2019, by the following
vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:
RECUSED:

Fred Luevano, Board President

| HEREBY CERTIFY that foregoing is a true and correct copy of the Resolution duly and
regularly adopted by the Board of Directors of the North County Fire Protection District at

the meeting thereof held on the 22nd day of January, 2019, and that the same now appears
on record in my office.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, | hereunto set my hand and affixed by official seal this this 22nd day
of January, 2019.

Loren A. Stephen-Porter, Board Secretary

Resolution 2019-01 Page 3of 3

Artee oD Terggitiary 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting Page —167



January 22,2019 — Reaular Board Meetina

Paae

—-168



NORTH COUNTY FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICT

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FROM: 0/C MAHR AND CHIEF ABBOTT
DATE: JANUARY 22, 2019

SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE RENEWAL OF CONTRACT FOR MEDICAL STANDBYS WITHIN EQA
ACTION AGENDA

RECOMMENDATION:

1. Authorize the District to renew its contract with Mercy Medical Transport Inc. to
provide limited medical standby services within the District’s exclusive operating
area (EOA) as authorized by Resolution 2019-02.

2. Authorize Chief Abbott to execute the Agreement on behalf of the District.

BACKGROUND:

As an element of providing emergency medical transport services prior to 1981, the
District has been granted an “exclusive operating area” by the County of San Diego to
continue to provide exclusive advanced life support (ALS) transport services within the
District. As the District is not in a position to routinely provide ALS standby services, it
has historically contracted with private providers for such services.

The owner of Santa Anita Racetrack has purchased San Luis Rey Downs Track &
Training Center (SLRD) and augmented operations to ultimately include the boarding of
up to 400 horses and daily training activities. To this end the California Horse Racing
Board requires transport capable ALS standby services. SLRD has contracted with
Mercy Medical Transport for those services. This will be the third extension of the

Agreement with Mercy Medical Transport, with one additional extension permitted under
this agreement.

DISCUSSION:

in order to protect the District's EOA interests, it is necessary to enter into a limited ALS
standby agreement with Mercy Medical Transport. Accordingly, we have developed an
agreement which would allow Mercy to provide limited medicai standby services within
our EOA, in accordance with the attached EOA Agreement (Exhibit “A”) and Medical

Page 1 of 2

January 22, 2019 - Reqular Board Meeting Page —169



RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE CONTRACT MEDICAL STANDBYS WITHIN EOA
JANUARY 22, 2019

PAGE 2 OF 2

Operations Plan (Exhibit “B”). Under this agreement, although an ALS ambulance from
Mercy would be staged at SLRD, they would contact NCFPD for patient transportation.

FISCAL ANALYSIS:

No additional financial impact is anticipated at this time inasmuch as the District will still
retain primary transport discretion.

SUMMARY:

Pursuant to the provisions of the agreement and Resolution 2019-02, Staff recommends
renewing the EOA agreement as submitted and recommends Chief Abbott be authorized
to execute the required documents on behalf of the District.

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page —-170



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
RESOLUTION 2019-02

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE NORTH COUNTY FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICT AUTHORIZATION TO PROVIDE PRE-HOSPITAL
EMERGENCY MEDICAL STANDBY SERVICES WITHIN THE EXCLUSIVE
OPERATING AREA OF THE NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

Whereas, California Health & Safety Code §1797.201 authorizes the local EMS agency
(County of San Diego, Department of Health Services, Division of Emergency Medical
Services - hereinafter referred to as “County EMS”) to “enter into a written agreement with

the city or fire district regarding the provision of pre-hospital emergency medical services
for that city or fire district;” and

Whereas, the North County Fire Protection District (hereinafter referred to as “the

District") provides emergency and non-emergency services as part of the operation of the
fire district; and

Whereas, the District has maintained provision of pre-hospital emergency medical
services to those areas located within the jurisdictional boundaries of the District as well
as its surrounding “sphere of influence” (as defined by LAFCO) prior to January 1, 1981,
in accordance with California Health & Safety Code § 1797.224; and

Whereas, the District maintains an exclusive operating area (herein after referred to as
“EQA") for the provision of pre-hospital emergency medical services within the
jurisdictional boundaries of the District, by which it retains exclusive right to designate the
means, type and extent of pre-hospital emergency medical services within this EQA; and

Whereas, it is in the mutual interest of the District and the Contractor to provide limited
medical standby services within the EQA of the District;

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the North County Fire Protection District

of Fallbrook, California does hereby authorize, find, resolve, order and determine as
follows:

Limited provision of Advanced Life Support (ALS) medical standby services at pre-
determined locations and/or venues (at full discretion of the District), to consist of a non-
transport type vehicle equipped with a full complement of ALS equipment (as defined by
S.D. Co. EMS Policy #P-806) and staffed by the Contractor (“Mercy Medical Transport,
Inc.”) with a competently trained ALS provider as licensed by the State of California and
accredited by the County of San Diego, in accordance with the attached Exclusive
Operating Agreement (EOA), Exhibits ‘A and B', included and incorporated as part of this
Resolution, to become effective January 22, 2019.

APPROVED, SIGNED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors, North County Fire

Protection District, County of San Diego, State of California, on this 22" day of January,
2019, by the following vote:

Resolution 2019-02
Emergency Medical Standby
Mercy Medical Transport, Inc.

January 22, 2019 - Reqular Board Meeting Page -171

Page 1 of 2



NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
RESOLUTION 2019-02

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE NORTH COUNTY FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICT AUTHORIZATION TO PROVIDE PRE-HOSPITAL
EMERGENCY MEDICAL STANDBY SERVICES WITHIN THE EXCLUSIVE
OPERATING AREA OF THE NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

RECUSED:

Fred Luevano, Board President

ATTEST:

| HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the Resolution duly and
regularly adopted by the Board of Directors of the North County Fire Protection District

thereof held on the 22" day of January, 2019, and that the same now appears on record
in my office.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, | hereunto set my hand and affixed by official seal this 22" day
of January, 2019.

Ftn. ﬂ./-itaﬁ&_

Loren A. Stephen-Porter
Board Secretary

M
Resolution 2019-02 Page 2 of 2

Emergency Medical Standby
Mercy Medical Transport, Inc.

January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meeting Page —-172



“Exhibit A"

AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE PRE-HOSPITAL EMERGENCY MEDICAL
STANDBY SERVICES WITHIN THE EXCLUSIVE OPERATING AREA OF THE
NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

SERVICE DESCRIPTION: Provision of limited Advanced Life Support medical standby
Services to support horse training and racing activities at the San Luis Rey Downs
Training Center, which resides within the jurisdictional boundaries of the North County
Fire Protection District.

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this January 22, 2019, by and between
the NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, hereinafter designated as
“DISTRICT" and MERCY MEDICAL TRANSPORT, INC., hereinafter designated as
"*CONTRACTOR.”

RECITALS

Whereas, California Health & Safety Code §1797.201 authorizes the local EMS agency
(County of San Diego, Department of Health Services, Division of Emergency Medical
Services — hereinafter referred to as “County EMS”) to “enter into a written agreement
(contract) with the city or fire district regarding the provision of pre-hospital emergency
medical services for that city or fire district;”

Whereas, the DISTRICT has maintained provision of pre-hospital emergency medical
services to those areas located within the jurisdictional boundaries of the DISTRICT as
well as its surrounding “sphere of influence” (as defined by LAFCO) prior to January 1,
1981 in accordance with California Health & Safety Code § 1797.224;

Whereas, the DISTRICT maintains an exclusive operating area (herein after referred to
as “EQA”) for the provision of pre-hospital emergency medical services within the
jurisdictional boundaries of the DISTRICT, by which it retains exclusive right to designate
the means, type and extent of pre-hospital emergency medical services within this EQA;

Whereas, the District has the need for backup medical standby services which can be
met by a qualified contractor, and

Whereas, itis in the mutual interest of the DISTRICT and the Contractor to provide limited
medical standby services within the EOA of the DISTRICT:;

NOW THEREFORE, THE PARTIES MUTUALLY AGREE AS FOLLOWS:
1.0 SCOPE OF WORK.

1.01 The Contractor is hereby authorized to provide the following service, which
is more particularly described as:

AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE PRE-HOSPITAL EMERGENCY MEDICAL STANDBY SERVICES WITHIN THE EXCLUSIVE OPERATING AREA OF THE
NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BY MERCY MEDICAL TRANSFORT, INC. EXHIBIT "A” ~ JANUARY 22,2019~
Page 10f 6

Contractor's Initials

January 22, 2019 - Reqular Board Meetina Paae -173



1.02 Advanced life support (ALS) medical standby services at the San Luis Rey
Downs Training Center, to consist of either a transport capable or non-
transport type vehicle equipped with a full complement of ALS equipment
(as defined by S.D. Co. EMS Policy #P-806) and staffed by the Contractor
with a competently trained ALS provider as licensed by the State of
California and accredited by the County of San Diego.

1.1. Services Provided by the CONTRACTOR.

1.2.

2.0.

2.1.

3.0.
3.1.

1.1.1. Cooperate fully with the DISTRICT in performing services in accordance
with this agreement, with established codes and standards and consistent
with DISTRICT policies.

1.1.2. Said services to be in accordance with the “Medical Operations Plan”
(Attachment ‘B’).

1.1.3. Maintain all necessary incident and patient documentation in accordance

with County EMS policies and procedures as well as Contractor policies and
procedures.

1.1.4. Respond within three working days, in writing or by telephone, to all
complaints and/or inquiries concerning issues of customer service and/or
appropriateness of and level of care.

1.1.5. The CONTRACTOR shall directly bill contracting entities for services
provided.

Services Provided by the DISTRICT.

1.2.1. Services to be provided in accordance with the “Medical Operations Pian”
(Attachment “B").

1.2.2. The DISTRICT shall be the primary transporting agency unless no
DISTRICT transport resources are available.

RELATIONSHIP WITH THE DISTRICT.

The CONTRACTOR shall have no formal relationship to the DISTRICT other than

having the ability to provide limited pre-hospital emergency medical standby
services as described under Section 1.0. The CONTRACTOR shall have no
authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of the DISTRICT as an agent, or to
bind the DISTRICT to any obligation whatsoever. The CONTRACTOR shall be
solely responsible for the liability and performance of any of its employees, agents
or subcontractors under this agreement.

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

Pursuant to Labor Code Section 1861, the CONTRACTOR hereby certifies that
the CONTRACTOR is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code,

AGREEMENT T0 PROVIDE PRE-HOSPITAL EMERGENCY MEDICAL STANDBY SERVICES WITHIN THE EXCLUSIVE OPERATING AREA OF THE
NoRrTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BY MERCY MEDICAL TRANSPORT, INC, EXHIBIT “A” ~ JANUARY 22,2019~

Page 2 of 6

Contractor's Inilials

January 22, 2019 - Requiar Board Meeting Page -174



4.0.

4.1.

4.2

43.

4.4,

4.5,

46.

4.7.

which requires every employer to be insured against liability for Workers’
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of
that code, and the CONTRACTOR will comply with such provisions, and provide
certification of such compliance prior to commencement of any work. The

certification shall be in accordance with Subsections 4.3 through 4.8 of this
agreement.

LIABILITY INSURANCE.

The CONTRACTOR shall, throughout the duration of this agreement, maintain
comprehensive general liability and property damage insurance, or commercial
general liability insurance covering all operations of the CONTRACTOR, its
agents and employees, performed in connection with this agreement, including,
but not limited to, premises and automobile.

The CONTRACTOR shall maintain the following minimum limits:
4.2.1. General Liability:

Combined single limit per occurrence $1,000,000

General aggregate $2,000,000
4.2.2. Automobile Liability:

Combined single limit per occurrence $1,000,000

All insurance companies affording coverage to the CONTRACTOR shall include
the DISTRICT as “"additional named insured” under their insurance policy, for all
work performed in accordance with this agreement.

All insurance companies affording coverage to the CONTRACTOR shall be
insurance organizations admitted by the insurance Commissioner of the State

Department of Insurance to transact business of insurance in the State of
California.

All insurance companies affording coverage shall provide a thirty (30) day written
notice to the DISTRICT before the cancellation or expiration. For the purpose of
this notice requirement, any material change in the policy prior to the expiration
shall be considered a cancellation.

The CONTRACTOR shall provide evidence of compliance with the insurance
requirements listed above by providing a Certificate of Insurance and an original
endorsement to the policy, in a form satisfactory to the DISTRICT'S legal counsel,
concurrently with the submittal of this agreement.

The CONTRACTOR shall provide a substitute Certificate of Insurance and an
endorsement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the policy expiration date.
Failure by the CONTRACTOR to provide such a substitution and extend the policy
expiration date shall be considered a default by the CONTRACTOR and may

subject the CONTRACTOR to suspension or termination of work under this
agreement.

AGREEMENT TQ PROVIDE PRE-HOSPITAL EMERGENGY MEDICAL STANDBY SERVICES WITHIN THE EXCLUSIVE OPERATING AREA OF THE
NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BY MERCY MEDICAL TRANSPORT, INC. EXHIBIT *A” ~ JANUARY 22, 2016 ~

Page 3 of 6

Contractor's Initials

January 22, 2019 —- Reqular Board Meeting Page —175



4.8.

5.0.

5.1.

6.0.
6.1.

7.0.

7.1.

8.0.
8.1.

8.0.

9.1.

Maintenance of insurance by the CONTRACTOR as specified in this agreement
shall in no way be interpreted as relieving the CONTRACTOR of any responsibility
whatever and the CONTRACTOR may carry, at its own expense, such additional
insurance as it deems necessary.

CONTRACTOR'’S INDEMNIFICATION OF THE DISTRICT.

The CONTRACTOR shall defend and hold harmless the DISTRICT and its officers,
agents and employees against all claims for damages to persons or property
arising out of the conduct of the CONTRACTOR or its employees, agents,
subcontractors or others in connection with the execution of work covered by this
agreement, except only for those claims arising from the sofe negligence or sole
willful misconduct of the DISTRICT, its officers, agents or employees. The
CONTRACTOR'S indemnification shall include any and ali costs, expenses,
attorneys’ fees and liability incurred by the DISTRICT, its officers, agents or
employees in defending against such claims, whether the same proceed to
judgment or not. The CONTRACTOR’S indemnification of the DISTRICT shall not
be limited by any prior or subsequent oral declaration by the CONTRACTOR.

COMPENSATION.

The CONTRACTOR shall receive NO compensation from the DISTRICT. The
CONTRACTOR shall directly bill contracting entities for services rendered.

TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT.

Either party may terminate this agreement upon written notice. Contract shall
become null and void sixty (60) days after delivery of said notice.

ASSIGNMENT AND DELEGATION.

This agreement and any portion thereof shall not be assigned or transferred, nor
shall any of the CONTRACTOR'S duties be delegated without the express written
agreement of the DISTRICT. This does not apply to CONTRACTOR'’S assignment
of receivables for financing purposes. Any attempt to assign or delegate any
provision of this agreement without the express written consent of the DISTRICT
shall be void and of no force and effect. The DISTRICT may delegate authority in
connection with this agreement, for the purposes directing the CONTRACTOR'S
performance, to any member of the DISTRICT.

INTERPRETATION OF THE AGREEMENT.

The interpretation, validity and enforcement of this agreement shall be governed
by and construed under the laws of the State of California. This agreement does
not limit any other rights or remedies available to the DISTRICT. The
CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for complying with all Local, State and
Federal laws, whether or not said laws are expressly stated or referred to herein.
Should any provision herein be found or deemed to be invalid, this agreement shall

AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE PRE-HOSPITAL EMERGENCY MEDICAL STANDEY SERVICES WITHIN THE EXCLUSIVE OPERATING AREA OF THE
NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 8Y MERCY MEDICAL TRANSPORT, INC. EXHIBIT "A” ~ JANUARY 22, 2019 ~

Page 4 of 6

Contractor's Initiats

January 22, 2019 - Reqular Board Meeting Page -176



be construed as not containing such provision and ali other provisions which are
otherwise lawfut shall remain in full force and effect, and to this end, the provisions
of this agreement are severable. The EMS Chief, under the authority of the
DISTRICT and the Fire Chief, shall be the DISTRICT authorized representative in
the interpretation and enforcement of all provisions of this agreement.

10.0. AGREEMENT MODIFICATION.

10.1. This agreement may not be modified orally or in any manner other than by an
agreement in writing, signed by the parties hereto.

11.0. DISPUTE RESOLUTION.

11.1. No suit shall be brought on this agreement unless all statutory claims filing
requirements have been met.

11.2. NOTICES.

11.3. All notices, demands, requests, consents or other communications which this
agreement contemplates or authorizes, or requires or permits either party to give
to the other, shall be in writing and shall be in writing and shall be personally
delivered or mailed to the respective party as follows:

TO CONTRACTOR: TO DISTRICT:

Mercy Medical Transpor, Inc. North County Fire Protection District
RICK ROESCH, President William Metcalf, Fire Chief/CEQ
2537 Old San Pasqual Rd. 330 S. Main Avenue

Escondido, CA 92027 Fallbrook, CA 92028-2938

(760) 739-8026 (760} 723-2005

11.4. Either party may change its address by notice to the other party as provided herein.
Communications shall be deemed to have been given and received on the first to
occur of (a) actual receipt at the offices of the party to whom the communication is
sent, as designated above, or (b) three (3) working days following the deposit in
the United States mail of registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return
receipt requested, addressed to the offices of the party to whom the
communication is to be sent, as designated above.

12.0. AGREEMENT PERIOD.

12.1. The term of this agreement shall be from the date of execution to

February 1, 2020. Unless otherwise terminated as provided herein, this
agreement maybe extended for one (1) year by mutual written agreement of both
parties, for up to five (5) one-year renewals.

13.0. SIGNATURES.

AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE PRE-HOSPITAL EMERGENCY MEDICAL STANDBY SERVICES WITHIN THE EXCLUSIVE OPERATING AREA OF THE
NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BY MERCY MEDICAL TRANSPORT, ING. EXHIBI "A" ~ JANUARY 22,2019~
Page 50f 6

Contractor's Initials

January 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting Page —-177



13.1. The individuals executing this agreement represent and warrant that they have the
right, power, legal capacity and authority to enter into and to execute this
agreement on behalf of the respective legal entities of the CONTRACTOR and the
DISTRICT.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto for themselves, their heirs, executors,
administrators, successors, and assigns do hereby agree to the full performance of the
covenants herein contained and have caused this Services Agreement to be executed by
setting hereunto their signatures January 22, 2019.

NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
CONTRACTOR DISTRICT

Rick Roesch, President "~ Stephen J. Abbott, Fire Chief/CEO

FEDERAL EMPLOYEE |0 NUMBER:

Approved as to Form

"Robert James, District Counsel

| HEREBY CERTIFY that foregoing is a true and correct copy of the Contract duly and regularly
adopted by the Board of Directors of the North County Fire Protection District at the meeting

thereof held on the 22" day of January, 2019, and that the same now appears on record in my
office.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, | hereunto set my hand and affixed by official seal this 22™ day of
January, 2019.

Loren A. Stephen-Porter, Board Secretary

AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE PRE-HOSPITAL EMERGENCY MEDICAL STANDBY SERVICES WITHIN THE EXCLUSIVE OPERATING AREA OF THE
NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BY MERCY MEDICAL TRANSPORT, INC, EXHIBIT "A” ~ JANUARY 22, 2019~
Page 6 of 6

Contractor's Initials

January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meeting Page —178



"Exhibit B"

Medical Operations Plan

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page Topic

2 Overview

4 On Course Incidents

4 Available Transport Systems
5 Mass Causality Incident

5 Reference A - Area Map

AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE PRE-HOSPITAL EMERGENCY MEDICAL STANDBY SERVICES WITHIN THE EXCLUSIVE OPERATING AREA OF THE NORTH Page 10f5
COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BY MERCY MEDICAL TRANSPORT, INC. *EXHIBIT B* ~ JANUARY 22, 2019

January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meeting Page —179



"Exhibit B"

Medical Operations Plan

OVERVIEW

Located in Southern California, San Luis Rey Downs (SLRD) is the only auxiliary training
track continuously approved by the California Horse Racing Board since 1984. Unlike the
tracks in the California racing circuit, San Luis Rey Downs is open for training every day,
365 days a year, enabling trainers to develop a permanent home.

The SLRD Track

The San Luis Rey Downs facility has a well-maintained one-mile track and a smaller
training track. There is 24-hour security with no unlicensed people allowed on the grounds.
During training hours, there are outriders, official clockers and an official gate crew.

The SLRD Facilities

There are currently 500 stalls at the San Luis Rey Downs, leased by trainers wishing to
have a permanent base for their training and racing operations.

Amenities at San Luis Rey Downs include a large regulation-sized equine pool, arena,
rounds pens, stationary training gate, "All Weather Trails," tack shop/feed store, Equicise
(free run) machines, saddling paddock, track kitchen, mechanical hot walkers, and equine
scale, Farrier Shop, pens and outside paddocks.

The SLRD Clients

Many of the breeders in Central and Southern California use San Luis Rey Downs for the

transition between the baby training done on the farms and the high-powered racing of
Southern California.

The SLRD Location

San Luis Rey Downs, in the affluent bedroom community of Bonsall, in northern San Diego
County.

Should a Medical Incident of Any Nature Occur for Transportation:

Involving an official or participant.
Involving a spectator, course worker or non-participant.

Contractor's |nitials

AGREEMENT 70 PROVIDE PRE-HOSPITAL EMERGENCY MEDICAL STANDBY SERVICES WITHIN THE EXCLUSIVE OPERATING AREA OF THE NORTH Page 2of §
COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 8Y MERCY MEDICAL TRANSPORT, INC. "EXHIBIT B ~ JANUARY 22, 2019

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page —180



"Exhibit B"

Medical Operations Plan

The chain-of-command and Medical Authority for any and all incidents involving treatment
shali be/is North County Fire Protection District (NCFPD), or most appropriate Advanced
Life Support (ALS) unit from the North Zone catchment.

Mercy Medical
Transport, Inc.

Personnel

—  Aeromedical

North County Fire
Protection District

EMS/Fire

Accordingly, for this daily six (6) days-a-week stand-by event, Mercy Medical Transportation
is establishing an on-site ALS ambulance that is utilized to take care of minor medical
problems, basic patient evaluations, etc. If a patient of sufficient severity, where ALS care is
required or meets local protocols for transportation by ambulance, the patient treated would
be transferred from Mercy Medical Transportation, Inc., Paramedics to NCFPD, or another
ALS transporting agency should NCFPD resources not be reasonably available.

Moreover, Mercy Medical Transport, Inc., shall have two (2} ALS local licensed paramedics
at stand-by Monday through Saturdays, six (6) days a week, from 0500-1100 hours. Mercy
Medical Transportation, Inc., shall provide ALS equipment including and not limited to, C-
spine equipment, basic bandaging and splinting, ALS and Basic Life Support (BLS) supplies,
according to San Diego County ambulance equipment ordinance Policy. ALS equipment

shall be in the standard of what is commonly accepted in the industry and carried by local
San Diego protocol and policy.

All contact(s) for rescue and/or transport of the ill or injured will be either via Monte Vista
Dispatch, North County Dispatch JPA, or routed through the 911 communication system
and handled via standard local protocols.

Contractor's Iniials
ON COURSE INCIDENTS

AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE PRE-HOSPITAL EMERGENCY MEDICAL STANDBY SERVICES WITHIN THE EXCLUSIVE OPERATING AREA OF THE NORTH  Page 3 of 5
Counry FIRe PROTECTION DISTRICT 8Y MERCY MEDICAL TRANSPORT, INC. “EXHIBIT B* ~ JaNuary 22, 2019

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page —181



“Exhibit B"

Medical Operations Plan
Mercy Medical Transportation, Inc., personnel shali be the primary/patient care
providers for any incident on course. Mercy Medical Transportation, Inc. personnel will
be the first responders and shall start extrication, patient care. Once on scene, NCFPD
will provide direction and coordination at the scene with any additional resources needed
as per the chain-of-command.

The primary Trauma Center will be Palomar Medical Center, in Escondido California.
Palomar Medical Center is a Level Il Trauma Center. Should the need arise it becomes
the transporting agency's discretion as to where the patient is taken, within San Diego
County's policies and protocols.

All radio transmissions shall be in plain English and to the point. This makes for a

professional flow and understanding of what is exactly needed, where and how many
injured.

Any patient transported shall fall under standard San Diego County Treatment Protocols,
and treatment will be rendered as directed by the base hospital having jurisdiction. The
method and destination of transport shall be according to San Diego County Policies and
Protocols and shall be at the discretion of the primary medical responder at scene, in
coordination with the transporting unit.

AVAILABLE TRANSPORT SYSTEMS

If a patient needs to be transported, including from the water, accessing the local EMS
system (North County Fire) for an ALS/BLS unit will be the responsibility of on-scene
NCFPD personnel. Mercy Medical Transportation, Inc. will contact all pertinent agencies
and coordinate all responses.

An Aeromedical crew may be used as a resource should the need arise. NCFPD will
contact and coordinate this response with North County Fire as required by local protocol,
policies and procedures.

Should the injury sustained by an individual be determined by Mercy Medical Transportation,
Inc. personnel to be of the non-emergent type and with agreement of all parties, this
individual may transport themselves by personal vehicle to the appropriate medical facility
of their choice, upon comptetion of the appropriate paper work. Accordingly, any injury of the
aforementioned, the Mercy Medical Transportation, Inc., personnel shall complete an
Against Medical Advice (AMA) Patient Care Report (PCR) with accompanying patient

signature of documentation EKG strip, and memorialized via Base Hospital taped radio
report.

Contractor's Initials

AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE PRE-HOSPITAL EMERGENCY MEDICAL STANDBY SERVICES WITHIN THE EXCLUSIVE OPERATING AREA OF THE NORTH Page 4of 5
CounTty FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BY MERCY MEDICAL TRANSPORT, INC. "EXHIBIT B* ~ JANUARY 22, 2019

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -182



"Exhibit B"

Medical Operations Plan
MASS CASUALTY INCIDENTS

Triage is needed when the number of patients out numbers the number of resources
available to provide treatment and/or transport.

To help minimize confusion and to utilize resources efficiently Mercy Medicat

Transportation, Inc. will contact North County Fire Protection District and until their arrival
at scene will utilize:

¢ The Incident Command System (ICS)
e Mass casualty Incident Command System (MCI-ICS)

All disaster patients shall be sorted utilizing the S.T.A.R.T. triage system. (Attached)

NCFPD or closest fire agency will have the responsibility for Mass Causality Incidents,
and they will ultimately fire will be in command. Until arrival, Mercy Medical Transportation,
Inc. Triage officer will start triage and treatment by on site medical personnel until the
arrival of NCFPD or appropriate fire agency. All rescue personnel shall respond to the

incident, and assist in patient triage, setting of treatment areas (Casualty Collection Areas
"CCP"), etc.

The remainder of the Mercy Medical Transportation, Inc. if appropriate, crew shall work
on any participants involved and/or assist in spectator patient care as appropriate.

REFERENCE "A" AREA MAP

Contractor's Initials

AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE PRE-HOSPITAL EMERGENCY MEDICAL STANDBY SERVICES WITHIN THE EXCLUSVE OPERATING AREA OF THE NORTH Page 50f 5
County FIRe PROTECTION DISTRICT BY MERCY MEDICAL TRANSPORT, INC. “EXHIBIT B" ~ JANUARY 22, 2019

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -183



o

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSUR~NCE

LT

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER,

THIS CERTIFICATE I8 IS8UED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION OKLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER({8}, AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT: I the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy{ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provislons or be endorsed,
if SUBROGATION (3 WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certaln policies may requlre an endorsement. A statemsnt on
this certificate does not confor rights to the certificate holder In lisu of such endorsement{s).

T

PRODUCER ;
Cindy Elbert Insurance Services inc PHONE — B4Z- [T BU2-942000 |
15182 Nerth 75th Ave, Ste 100
Peoria, AZ 86381 ATCREL:
INBURER{S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NANG#®

WNsUReR & : Arch Insurance Co. 11150
(NSURED NSURER B : aity Insurance 21758
Mercy Medical Transportation, Inc. | msyrenc;

L NSURER D :
27350 Valley Center Rd. INSURER B :
Valley Center, CA 92082
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER: .

THIS IS5 TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT T0 WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUGED BY PAID CLAIMS.

LIR T¥RE OF MSURANCE e POLIGYNUMDER | | mm L i1
A X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY MAPKDE373705 10/01/2018 | 10/01/2019 | EACH OCCURRENCE [} 1,000,000
) camsnoe [ ocowm | PREMISES (Ee cccurence) | 4 100,000
N Ratro: 1/1/08 MED EXP (Any one person) _ | 5,000
] PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | § 1,000,000
GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER; GENERAL AGGREGATE ) 2,000,000
POLICY I:’ ?cq'r LoC PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGS | § 2.000.000
[AuTouoRRS LiABLITY MAPKUE373705 10/01/2018 [ 10/01/2019] ZoRGIRED SNALE LT 1y 1,000,000
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Por person) | §
A [ ] ﬁmﬁm o JEnuLe0 BODILY INJURY (Por accident} | $
X | A5¥os omy P | Pogocident) ’
3
x_|umsrecatas [ x | oceyr MAUMO8502105 10/01/2018 | 10/01/2019 | EACHOCCURRENGE |8 4,000,000
A e d CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE s 4.000.000
pEp | | ReTENTIONS s
WORKERS COMPENBATION l PER I | g;n.
AND EMPL OYERS' LLABILITY YiN
ANY PROPRIETOR REXECUTIVE NiA EL BACH ACGIDENT [
(Mandatory in E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEY 9
Hyss, describe
i F EL méaae - POLICY LIMIT I 3
8 Professional Liability MAPL20001500 10/01/2018 [10/01/2019 | $1,000,000 Each lnde-n
Claims Made 1/1/08 $2,000,000 Aggregate

Certlficate hokder is named as additional Insured

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONA / LOCATIONS ! VEHICLES {ACCRD 10, Additional Remarke Scheduls, may be sttached i mors space i required}

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

North County Fire Protection District

330 S. Main Ave.
Fallbrook, CA 92028

CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BSFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THMEREOF, NOTICE WiLL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

£

ACORD 28 (2016/03)

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting

© 1983-2044 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights resarved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

Page —-184



A
OATE (M
ACoOR o’ CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE "R
THIB CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AB A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFOROED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE iBSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT: If the certificats holder s an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the poficy(les} must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be ondorsed,
If SUBROGATION I8 WAIVED, subject to the terma snd conditians of the policy, certaln policies may require an endorsement. A statament on
thie certificate doos not confer rights to the certificate holder In tieu of such endorsement(s
PRODUCER by
Cindy Efbert Insurance Services Inc
15162 North 75th Ave, Ste 100 :&“
Peoria, AZ 85381 =
e INBURER(S) AFPORDING COVERAD .
SSURER A ; Cypress Insurance Company = 108._':5
WRURED . | maunsne;
Mercy Medical Transportation, | msunenc:
Inc Bsunsnp: ‘ )
2537 Qld San Pasqual Rd. mI_ i
Escondido, CA 82027 f—
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: » REVIS ; i
THIS 18 TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFIGATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN (8 SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLIGIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS, _ S
TYPE OF DISURANCE L | POLICY NUMBER LTS
|| commencaL omNERaL LABLITY .
mj CLANMB-MADE EI OCCUR 3
B3 Ll N
]
BENL AGBREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER; 3 :
ooy %8 [ Jwe | PRDDUCTS - cowProPAGG |3
SIHER, LI
AUTOMOBILE LLARNLITY | o |$
| amvauto ' BOCILY INJURY (Par person) | §
| gumen ECHE BOOILY INJUAY (Per ncciden) | 8
[ AUTO8 ONLY s ; e :
|| AuUTCS oMLY P 1 o
1 : ¢
|| umsneuawa ‘ OCCUR | | EAGH OGCURRENCE § S
’_rqluun i M““E'i | AGGREGATE $
—TJ 2 | asreion s ! 1 '.r 3
WORKERS COMPENSATION | MEWG022354 |
et e AT vin | 0223 | 1012019 10012020 o
o‘ﬁngm 3 D NIA | W
(Mandatory i1 i) t E.L DISGAGE . EA EWPL 1,000,000
i 4 LL CISEARE-POUCYLMT (3 4 000000
|
DESCRIFTION OF OPERATIOND {LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 191, Additiona! Ramarke Schatuts, may b 6B thed I mors spees 18 Foquired]
Verification of Insurance
~CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
North County Fire Protection District SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREQF, NOTICE WL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH YHE POLICY PROVISIONS,
330 5. Main Ave.
Fallbrook, CA 92028 AUTHORGED REPRESENTATIE
2&%%
© 1988-20 D CORPORATION. Ail rights reserved.

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page —185



Januar y 22,2019 — Regular Board Meeting

Page -186



NORTH COUNTY FIRE

PROTECTION DISTRICT

OPERATIONS DIVISION STAFF REPORT

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FROM: DiviSiON CHIEF MAHR AND CHIEF ABBOTT
DATE: JANUARY 22, 2019

SUBJECT: EMERGENCY RESPONSE TIME STANDARDS

ACTION AGENDA
RECOMMENDATION:

The Board approve the following realistic and attainable emergency response time
standard based upon updated Urban, Suburban and Outlying population densities. The
recommended Emergency Response Times measured at 90% are as follows:

098:00 for Urban
13.00 for Suburban
18:00 for Outlying

BACKGROUND:

When considering emergency repose time measurements, it is important to understand
how response times are comprised. There are 3 measurements that make up a Total
Response Time and each have a recognized standard at the 90! percentile. The first, is
the Call Processing Time. This is the time it takes the communication center to process
the call and get the initial notification out to the first responding units. The standard on
this is 1 minute. The second, is the Turnout Time. This is the time it takes for personnel
to acknowledge the call and go responding. The NCFPD standard for this is 2 minutes
all time. The third, is the Travel Time. This is the time it takes to drive to the incident

location. This time varies based upon population density and a community’s
expectations.

in 2008, the District had City Gate Associates conduct a Standards of Cover assessment
and report. This report recommended that the agency adopt an emergency incident
response time measurement based on population density per square mile. Emergency
incidents are identified as those that would typically be associated with a code 3 response.
These response standards do not include those incidents that are coded as non-
emergency. This report identified that the District could meet an emergency response
time of 8 minutes 90% of the time within the Urban areas, 13 minutes 90% of the time
within our Suburban areas, and 18 minutes 90% of the time within our Outlying area
based on a 2008 population density perimeter. The District opted to measure response
criteria according to the following chart, which is was also the District's best intent to meet
NFPA 1710 response standards of a 5-minute travel time.
Page 1 of 3

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page —187



Emergency Response Time Standards
January 22, 2019
Page 2 of 3

The chart below shows what the District is currently utilizing as our emergency response
time measurement.

POPULATION DENSITY FIRST ARRIVING UNIT AZE’;;E;J:;;D
Greater than 1000 8 minutes - 90%
- 500-1000 8 minutes | 80%
Less than 500 8 minutes | 70%

DiSCUSSION:

As a San Diego County EMS agency that provides Advanced Life Support (ALS) services
under an Exclusive Operating Area (EOA) contract we are bound to a response time
measurement that states we must respond to emergency incidents in < 10 minutes within
the urban population zones and < 15 minutes within the Rural/Suburban population

zones. This contract does not stipulate a response measurement for the Outlying
population zones.

Aside from the EOA contracted response times, the County is also in the process of
redefining the response measurement for the newly formed Unified Response Area. This
response area encompasses all areas of the county that are not currently under any
Exclusive Operating Area contracts and that are unincorporated. The response
measurement for this area is zoned according to the County General Plan and the
unincorporated service area (USA) plan as noted in the chart below.

RESPONSE POPULATION PER RESIDENTIAL DESCRIPTION TOTAL RESPONSE TIME @
CATEGORY SQUARE MILE PROPERTIES 90%
3-20+ Residential, Commercial .
URBAN >500 -t ! 10 Minutes
DUAC Industrial

2 Acre Residential, Light . -
RuraL/SusureaN| 100-500 | 1-2 DUAC Commercial, Agriculture, 16* Minutes

OUTLYING <100 1 DUAC 10 Acr(_e Lots, Open Space, 25 Minutes
Agriculture, Tourism

e * EOA contract supersedes USA Plan standard of 16 minutes for rural areas

Utilizing the most recent data, the District is currently meeting the following total response
times @ 90% of the time by response density zones.

POPULATION DENSITY ToTAL RESPONSE TIME @ 90% (FIRST ARRIVING UNIT)
Urban >500 8:48
Suburban 100-500 10:41
Outlying <100 16:20

January 22, 2019 - Reqular Board Meeting Page -188



Emergency Response Time Standards
January 22, 2019
Page 3 of 3

FISCAL ANALYSIS:

No fiscal impact.

SUMMARY:

It is the intent of the District to respond as quickly as possible to all emergency incidents.
That's said, due to the size, rural nature and number of fire stations that make up the
North County Fire Protection District, we need to measure response time performance in
a realistic manner. The recommended emergency response time standard utilizes an
updated population density perimeter that is in accordance with the San Diego County
General Plan, the USA Plan and is also more in line with what our 2008 Standard of Cover
report suggested. Additionally, the recommended Emergency Response Time Standard

well exceeds the proposed San Diego County USA response time requirements as
identified above.

January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meetina Page —-189



January 22,2019 — Reqular Board Meetinag

Page

-190



NORTH COUNTY FIRE

PROTECTION DISTRICT

FIRE CHIEF/CEO

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FROM: DEPUTY CHIEF MAROVICH AND CHIEF ABBOTT
DATE: JANUARY 22, 2019

SUBJECT: CALPERS UAL FRESH START

ACTION AGENDA

BACKGROUND:

As a component of recent contract negotiations with each of the bargaining units, it was
agreed to accelerate the pay down of the CalPERS Miscellaneous or “Non-Safety”
retirement plan unfunded actuarial liabilities (UAL). This is accomplished by reducing the
amortization period from the original 30 years down to 10 years. According to the 2017
CalPERS Miscellaneous Plan Actuarial Valuation, in so doing the District would realize
approximately $1,000,000 in interest savings over the course of 30 years.

DiSCUSSION:

The District received a request from CalPERS to enter into a “fresh start” UAL pay down
agreement for Fiscal Year 19/20. As the Board has not yet had the opportunity to take
formal action on this agreement, this would now be the opportunity to do so. As noted in
this agreement, this arrangement is irrevocable.

FiSCAL IMPACT:

As noted in the attached agreement, the accelerated paydown will increase the annual
payment to CalPERS by approximately $70,000. in alignment with the “formula” in each
of the labor agreements, this increase in the CalPERS contribution rate would simply be
included as part of our normal annual PERS contributions and would come off the top of
the formula. This means there would be no fiscal impact to the District unless new
expenditures exceeded new revenue, which this formula now has language to address.

RECOMMENDATION:

Authorize staff to enter into a new 10-year Fresh Start agreement with CalPERS.

January 22, 2019 i eé‘c?”lar Board Meeting Page —191



California Publ®® Employees’ Retirement System
Actuarial Office
P.O. Box 942709
Sacramento, CA 94228-2709
/. TIY:(916) 795-3240
= (888)225-7377 phone - (916) 795-2744 fax

CalPE www.calpers.ca.gov

October 19, 2018

Business Partner Name; NORTH COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT OF SAN DIEGO COUNTY
CalPERS ID: 3891469960

Rate Plan: MISCELLANEOUS PLAN

Rate Plan ID: 777

Re: Proposal to Fresh Start Unfunded Liability Over 10 Years
Dear Business Partner:

This letter Is in response to your reguest to reduce the amortization period on your unfunded accrued liability to a
ten-year period. This request would result In a “Fresh Start”, wherein all liabllity bases from your 6/30/17 valuation
would be merged into a single “Fresh Start” base that would then be amortized over & period of ten years.

If you are aware of others interested in this information (i.e, payroll staff, county court employees,
port districts, etc.), please inform them.

A comparison of the changes to your unfunded liabllity payment resulting from this action is displayed on the next
page. The information displayed in this letter is based on the unfunded liability shewn an page 9 of your June 30,
2017 valuation report. It also reflects the overpayment of your 2018-19 lump sum UAL payment in the amount of
$30.

The information contained in the June 30, 2017 annual valuation report reflects the benefit provisions and member
data as of June 30, 2017. The valuation report is appropriate for reporting and disclosure purposes.

The choice to enact a Fresh Start is irrevocable. Once enacted, the Fresh Start cannot be undone for any
reason. There are no exceptions.

Instead of a Fresh Start, many agencies choose to paydown the liability in the form of Additional Unfunded Liabllity
Contributions instead. Because the Fresh Start is irrevocable, we advise this alternative option,

If your agency wishes to proceed with the 10-year Fresh Start, we require that this document be signed by a
qualified individual and that a copy be returned to us.

Request to Enact a 10-year Fresh Start:

By signing this document and returning it to CalPERS, I agres to enact a 10-year Fresh Start of the unfunded liabllity
for the North County Fire Protection District of San Diego County's Miscellaneous plan, Rate Plan 777, 1 attest that 1
have informed all relevant parties. I understand that this action cannot be undone under any circumstance, [

understand that our agency can make additional unfunded liability contributions in Heu of a fresh start, but still wish
to enact the Fresh Start.

Name: Position/Title:

Signature:

January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meeting Page -192



Shown below Is a comparison of changes to your plan’s unfurded fiability assuming enactment of a 10-year fresh
start. This includes a comparison of the changes to your required employer contribution for 2619-20. This action will
not change your 2018-19 or 2019-20 Norma! Cost contribution,

Please note that there will be no changes to your 2018-19 unfunded lability contribution,

Valuation as of June 30, 2017 Before Fresh Start After Fresh Start
Frojacteq Ual BAIRNCS 88 0 &7 3¢ D19
otal Unfunded Liabllity Balance $ 2,846,176 $ 2,846,176
UAG-AU 1 EMBIOYETD CONIRNUGONS
Base Total Normal Cost for Formuta 20.458% 20.468%
Surcharge for Class 1 Benefits
a) FAC1 0.668% 0.658%
b) PRSA 0.763% 0.763%
Phase ottt of Normal Cost Difference 0.000% 0.000%
Plan's Total Normat Cost 21.899% 21.899%
Formula’s Expected Employee Contrib. Rate 7.954% 7.954%
Employer Normal Cost Rate 13.945% 13.945%
2018-2019 Employer Unfunded Liability payment $ 280,037 $ 350,933

INewly calculzted amounts were based on a discount rate of 7.00%, which will be used in the June 30, 2018
valuation, rather than the 7.25% used in the june 30, 2017 valuation.

Fiscal Year
Required Employer Contribution 2019-20
Employer Normal Cost Rate 13.945%
Plus Either
1) Monthly Employer Dollar UAL Payment $ 29,244
or
2) Annual Lump Sum Prepayment Option $ 338,864

The total minimum required employer contribution is the sum of the Flan’s Employer Normal Cost Rate (expressed
}!S’ a paz:jamge of payroll) plus the Employer Unfunded Accrued Liabifity (UAL) Contribution Amount (Sifled monthly
In doliars).

Only the UAL portion of the employer contribution can be prepaid (which must be received in full no later than
July 31). Plan Normal Cost contributions will be made as part of the payrofl reporting process, If there is contractual
cost sharing or other change, this amount will change.

In accordance with Sections 20537 and 20572 of the Public Employees’ Retirement Law, If a contracting agency fails
to remit the required contributions when due, interest and penalties may apply.

If you have questions, please call (888) CalPERS {225-7377).

M?&T(Jl

NANCY E. CAMPBELL, ASA, MAAA
Enrolled Actuary
Supervising Pension Actuary, CalPERS

January 22, 2019 - Reqular Board Meeting Paage -193



January 22,2019 — Reqular Board Meeting

Page

-194



TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FROM: STEPHEN ABBOTT, FIRE CHIEF/CEQ
DATE: JANUARY 22, 2019

SUBJECT: DISCUSSION AGENDA

There are no Discussion Agenda Items for the January 22, 2019, Board Meeting.

January 22, 2019 —=Regular Board Meeting Page —195



-196

22,2019 — Reqular Board Meeting

January




ROBERT H. JAMES

ATTORNEY AT LAW
ROBERT H, JAMES, Esq. 3448 KATIE LENDRE DRIVE TELEPHONE
roberthjomeslaw@gmail.com FALLBROOK, CALIFORNIA 92028 (760) 723-9018

December 31, 2018

Board of Directors
North County Fire Protection District

Re: General Counsel Board Report for January 1, 2019
Strategies to Manage Increasing Pension Costs

In California, increasing pension costs are already starting to crowd out any
discretionary spending for many public agencies. Recent news from the California
Public Employees’ Retirement System (“CalPERS”) offers little hope for relief for
CalPERS agencies. In the last few years, actuarial changes at CalPERS will lead to
even higher employer rates over the next few years. One significant change is reduction
in CalPERS’ “discount rate” (i.e., assumed investment rate of return) from 7.5% to 7%,

meaning that in order to pay for a defined benefit, employers must contribute more to
the fund.

For public agencies, managing these cost increases is a daunting task. CalPERS
agencies are bound by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law (“PERL") and Public
Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013, (“PEPRA"), which place limits on an
employer's options for reducing costs. CalPERS contracting agencies are also bound by
the constitutional principles related to vested rights. On top of that, public agencies must
further be cognizant of the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act (‘MMBA”) and their obligations to

notify and/or bargain with employee associations regarding changes to pension
benefits.

With this backdrop, it is no wonder that public agencies have grown frustrated in trying
to manage their increasing pension costs. However, while juggling all these obstacles is
difficult, it is not impossible. It will require a iot of creativity and strong leadership.

To some extent, PEPRA was a legislative attempt at this by eliminating employer-paid
member contributions (“EPMC") for new members (i.e., most of those who became
CalPERS members on or after January 1, 2013) and requiring that these employees
pay at least 50% of the “normal costs.” For classic members, agencies can start to
reduce EPMC and have employees pay more of the employee contributions required by
statute. This is usually one of the first things agencies do when trying to reduce costs,
as it can be imposed upon represented employees after exhausting the meet and
confer process. For both classic and new members, employers and employees can
agree that employees will pay some of the employer's portion as well (i.e., cost sharing
under Government Code Section 20516). Government Code Section 20516.5, which
was part of PEPRA, became effective on January 1, 2018. For the first time, it allows

January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meeting Page -197



ROBERT H. JAMES

ATTORNEY AT LAW
ROBERT H. JAMES, Esq. 3668 KATIE LENDRE DRIVE TELEPHONE
roberthjameslaw@gmail.com FALLBROOK, CALIFORNIA 92028 {760} 7239018

employers to impose, in limited amounts, the equivalent to cost sharing after meet and
confer. it applies only to classic members.

Employers can negotiate modifications to compensation and benefits with employees to
reduce the amount that qualifies as “PERSable” compensation. For example, instead of
more PERSable salary, employers could provide for more paid time off or heaith
benefits. Another creative strategy is to purposely structure specialty pays so that they
do not comply with CalPERS' regulation on special compensation, making them non-
reportable.

Public agencies could also attempt to lower their current and future retiree health
benefit costs. Moving retirees into more affordable plans will reduce our costs.
Reducing the amount contributed by the agency is also being considered by many
public agencies. However, employers must approach either of these strategies with
caution. A vested rights analysis should be done to determine whether these benefits
are constitutionally protected in their current form.

ROBERT H. JAMES, Atiorney at Law

Rob#rt H. James, General Counsel for the
North County Fire Protection District

RHJ/Kkm
cc. Chief Steve Abbott

January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meeting Page —198



TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FROM: STEPHEN ABBOTT, FIRE CHIEF/CEO
DATE: JANUARY 22,2019
SUBJECT: WRITTEN CORRESPONDENCE

¢ WRITTEN COMMUNICATION:
* January 11, 2019 Letter from ISO re: Pending District Survey

e BOARD RECOGNITION PROGRAM - None.

Page 1 of 1

January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meeting Page —199



%BO INSURANCE SERVICES OFFICE, INC.

\—g 1000 Bishops Gate Blvd, Suite 300, P.O. Box 5404, Mt. Laurel, New Jersey 08054
Phone: (856) 787-0412 or (800) 444-4554 FAX 1-800-777-3929

January 11, 2019

Stephen Abbott, Fire Chief

North County Fire Protection District
330 S Main Avenue

Fallbrook, CA 92028-2938

RE: Public Fire Protection
North County FD, San Diego County, California

Drear Chief AbLutt:

As a continuing program to keep insurance classifications up-to-date, Insurance Services Office, Inc.
periodically evaluates all communities and areas which have public fire protection to assure that existing
public fire protection is available to individual property owners. This insurance classification number is one of
several elements used in developing property insurance premium calculations for many individual properties in
your community. The last survey for North County FD was in 2014. We wouid like to visit your district
sometime during the week of March 4, 2019 to verify that the current insurance Class 3/3X is correct.

Our survey will collect data about many items and features which will make up the overall evaluation. A study
of” the water supply and distribution system will be made. For the fire department, the data will include

manning, equipment and training. The means for receiving and handling fire alarms will also be studied. The
field visit itself will likely be completed in a single day.

The purpose of the survey is to gather information needed to determine a fire insurance classification which
may be used in the calculation of property insurance premiums. It is not for property loss prevention or life
safety purposes and no life safety or property loss prevention recommendations will be made.

We will contact you in the next several days so that an appointment date for the field visit can be confirmed
and the needed data and pre-survey forms can be discussed. Please contact me if you have any questions about
our work. Your cooperation and assistance in helping us collect this data is greatly appreciated.

Very truly yours,

John 8. Gorman

Field Representative
Phone: (858) 212-5644
Email: jgorman{2iso.com

Cc: Ken Munson, Board President

SR VR oyt v T e R e W v L e K |

January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting Page -200



CalPERS Investment Returns Are in Negative Territory | C... https://www.ai-cio.com/news/calpers-investment-returns-..

1 of 2

CalPERS Investment Returns Are in Negative
Territory | Chief Investment Officer

By Randy Diamond

The investment returns for the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS)
are in the red so far for the 12-month fiscal year that began on July 1, as slumping returns are
occurring across asset classes, says acting Chief Investment Officer Eric Baggesen.

The results for the $345.6 billion pension plan, the largest in the United States by assets, are
considered a bellwether for other public plans, almost all of which work on a July 1 to June
30 fiscal year. With many plans unfunded, if the investment returns don’t reverse, the
2018-2019 fiscal year could be the worst for pubic pension plans since the great financial
crisis, adding to unfunded liabilities that total almost $2 trillion.

Baggesen didn’t given exact investment returns in detailing the low investment numbers to
the CalPERS Investment Committee on Dec. 17, but CalPERS data from July 1 through Nov.
30 shows that the system lost overall a 1.9% during the five-month period.

The data does not include major price drops that have hit equities particularly hard since

mid-November. The S&P 500 dropped 2.8% on Monday and declined more than 5% in the
last 30 days.

Among CalPERS’s major asset classes seeing drops during the first five months of the fiscal
year, the $165.8 billion global equity portfolio lost 2.6%, the $91 billion fixed-income
portfolic lost 2.2%, and the $11.4 billion inflation-sensitive asset class, which is made up of
inflation-linked bonds and commodities, lost 3%.

“Around the globe, economic activity has been softening a bit,” Baggesen said. “When you
couple that with rates increases in the United States, you create a bit of fear that perhaps we
are headed to the next recession. We have absolutely no ability to predict when that may
happen, but the markets being a discounting mechanism, are already anticipating that, and
that’s showing up obviously in the weakness that we’re seeing in the financial marketplace.”

Not all CalPERS asset classes had negative returns in the five-month period. CalPERS'’s $27.8
billion private equity asset class saw returns of 5.8% while the $39.5 billion real assets
portfolio, which incudes real estate, saw returns of 0.9%.

Baggesen, however, told the investment committee that the private equity and real estate
asset classes lag by several months the returns of the rest of the CalPERS portfolio, so the
returns being reported are likely inflated, and could be affected like the other asset classes.

“We would not be surprised to see those assets marked down in value, or maybe not in the

negative territory, but certainly the valuations would probably weaken as time goes along,”
he said.

This fiscal year’s market volatility is a switch from 2017-2018 fiscal year.

January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meeting 17Re@e rod &



CalPERS Investment Returns Are in Negative Territory | C... hitps://www.ai-cic.com/news/calpers-investment-returns-. .

CalPERS reported an 8.6% net return in the 12-month fiscal year ending June 30, 2017,
which was helped by global equity returns of 11.5%.

“That’s a sobering shift, if you will, from the status at the end of the last fiscal year, virtually
all segments of the public markets have declined,” Baggesen said.

CalPERS Investment Committee member Richard Costigan said at the Dec. 17 meeting the
only “bright spot” looking ahead for CalPERS was real estate returns. However, if the feds
raise rates on Wednesday as expected, it could result in marketplaces like “Los Angeles,
Seattle, Miami, Las Vegas, Fresno, beginning to cool.”

Baggesen agreed that a rate hike could have a negative effect on the real estate portfolio’s
investment returns.

CalPERS only has a funded ratio of 71% and hundreds of towns, cities, and special districts
that are part of the pension plan are already facing contribution increases of up to 20%
because of long-term subpar investment returns. This is combined with the fact that the
number of CalPERS retirees is increasing compared to the number of active members
making payments, creating cash shortfalls for the plan.

CalPERS returned 8.1% for the five-year period ending June 30, but 5.6% for the 10-year
period, and 6.1% for the 20-year period.

CalPERS is in the process of lowering its return expectations from 7.5% to 7%. Baggesen said
the market may turn around before CalPERS ends its fiscal year next June 30.

“We just have absolutely no way to predict that,” he said, “but we do think that people need
to understand that as we stand right now, the fund return is negative, and if that were to
flatline from now to the end of the fiscal year, that would be quite a shortfall against our
assumed rate of return, with all of the impacts that that would bring with it.”

Tags: CalPERS, investment returns, pension, Volatility

2 0f 2 January 22, 2019 - Reqular Board Meeting 17 P@ e olfid



New California gov proposes paying extra $3B to CalPER... https:/iwww benefitspro.com/2019/01/11/mew-california-go. ..

bG"BfItSéPRD NOT FOR REPRINT

& Click to print or Select 'Print’ in your browser menu to print this document.

Page printed from: htips:/Awww. benefitspro.com/2019/2019/01/11/new-california-gov-proposes-paying-exira-3b-to-calpers-pension-fund/

New California gov proposes paying
extra $3B to CalPERS pension fund

By trying to pay off as much of the unfunded pension liabilities up front, the state could
collectively save about $14.6 billion over 30 years.

By Romy Varghese | January 11, 2019

{https:/limages.benefits pro.com/contrib/content/uploads/sites/412/2019
{01/bloomberg-newsom-california-1-11-19.ipg) In addition, Newsom
would give an extra $2.9 billion over four years to the California State
Teachers’ Retirement System, on top of the $3.3 billion payment
required for next year. (Photo: Bloomberg)

(Bloomberg) -California Governor Gavin Newsom didn't campaign on bolstering public pensions, but they
figure prominently in his first budget.

In the spending plan for the fiscal year beginning in July, he proposed making an extra $3 billion payment to
the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) to pay down what the state owes to the fund
— a debt that grows each year.

That's on top of the $6.8 billion contribution California is required to make to the nation’s largest public
pension, according to the budget plan released Thursday.

10f3 January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meeting 14P0@8 =2 3



New California gov proposes paying extra $3B to CalPER... https://www.benefitspro.com/2019/01/11/new-california-go...

In addition, Newsom would give an extra $2.9 billion over four years to the California State Teachers'
Retirement System, on top of the $3.3 billion payment required for next year.

By trying to pay off as much of the unfunded liabilities up front, the state could collectively save about $14.6
billion over 30 years. That's because unfunded liabilities grow at the same rate as the pensions’ expected

investment returns, which compensates the funds for gains they would have received if the money had been
used to buy stocks and other assets.

Newsom, in a Sacramento briefing four days after assuming office, called the additional funding an historic
step. His predecessor, Jerry Brown, was the first in 2017 to propose an extra CalPERS payment, though his
$6 billion infusion relied on a loan from an internal investment account, not on general-fund budget dollars.

Golden State
Yield penalty shrinks as California's finances strengthen

{https:/iimages.benefitspro.com/contrib/content/uploads/sites/412/2019

{01/bloomberg-newsom-california-funds-1-11-19.jpg) Yield penalty shrinks
for California. (Chart: Bloomberg)

California’s finances are prone to booms and busts because of its reliance on taxing the wealthy, and the

“key” to dealing with the volatility is to “stack away as much money as you can and pay off as much debt as
you can,” Newsom told reporters. “That's about building resiliency.”

The moves continue the work under Brown to curb the growth in California’s prodigious pension and retiree
health liabilities, which tally $256 billion, budget documents show.

Even as California enjoys rising revenue and surpluses amid an economic boom, pressures to meet

promises made years ago continue to mount. The required CalPERS payment for the next fiscal year is more
than double the amount a decade ago.

The Democrat would also give school districts relief from their pension payments- $3 billion. This would
provide “immediate relief” and reduce their contribution rates by half a percentage point, according to

budget documents. California school districts face significant financial obstacles partly because of rising
retirement costs, Moody's Investors Service said.

Copyright 2019 Bloomberg. All rights reserved. This material may not be published, broadcast, rewritten, or
redistributed.

20f3 January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting 114753@€ =2 O



Trump threatens to cut off FEMA funding for California https:/fabc?.com/politics/trump-threatens-to-cut-off-fema-f. ..

Trump threatens to cut off FEMA funding for California
KGO

Wednesday, January 09, 2019 08:194M
WASHINGTON --

President Donald Trump is threatening to withhold Federal Emergency Management Agency money to help California cope with
wildfires if the state doesn’t improve its forest management practices.

"Billions of dollars are sent to the State of California for Forrest fires that, with proper Forrest Management, would never happen,”
Trump initially tweeted. "Unless they get their act together, which is unlikely, [ have ordered FEMA to send no more money. Itis a
disgraceful sitvation in lives & money!"

Critics were quick to pounce on the conspicuous misspelling in the tweet, and "Forrest” soon became a trending topic on Twitter. The
president later published a new tweet with the correct spelling.

This isn't the first time the president has criticized California for its handling of wildfires.

Back in November, he blamed wildfires across the state on quote gross mismanagement, sparking backlash from firefighters and state
leaders.

(Copyright ©2019 KGO-TV. All Rights Reserved.)

1 of 1 January 22, 2019 - Reqular Board Meeting 1/08ae 260



Special Election Called Over Dissolution of Fire Dept. https:/iwww.nbcsandiego.com/news/local/Julian-Cuyamac. ..

Up Next

The Biggest Killer of Firefighters is Not Fire
NBC 5 Chicago

CAL Fire Determines What Caused 12 North Bay Fires
NBC Bay Area

What to Know

¢ The Julian-Cuyamaca Fire Protection District adopted a resolution on April 10 to apply
for dissolution.

» The Registrar of Voters validated protests from 26% of the registered voters in the
district's area.

¢ In December, the Local Agency Formation Commission asked the San Diego County
Board of Supervisors to call an election.

Julian residents will have a chance to vote to stop the dissolution of their all-volunteer fire department in a
special election called for March 19, the San Diego County Board of Supervisors decided Tuesday.

Residents in the unincorporated Julian and the Cuyamaca Rancho State Park regions lost their volunteer fire
department when the Julian-Cuyamaca Fire Protection District (JCFPD) was dissolved earlier this year due to
financial struggles and aging facilities.

The plan was to transfer all fire protection and emergency medical services to the San Diego County Fire
Authority.

However, the San Diego County Registrar of Voters said 26 percent of the 2,410 registered voters in the
district sent in written protests to the proposed transfer.

Some community members told NBC 7 they feel they will be overlooked by a fire authority that is hundreds of

miles away and that their volunteer fire department knows their community's needs better than an outside
department.

Cal Fire Chief Tony Mecham said the ability of anyone to continue an all-volunteer fire department with
minimal funding is questionable.

“The fact that the county is bringing $1.6 million to provide services in Julian is a sign of what it costs to run a
modern fire department,” Mecham said.

The special election will be by mail-in ballots and will be held on March 19, 2019.

6 of 6 January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meeting 121 PRRE r0d BB



Cal Fire chief. State must consider ban on homes in fire-p... https:/iwww.mercurynews.corm/2018/12/11/cal-fire-chief-st...

Cal Fire chief: State must consider ban on homes in
fire-prone areas

By DON THOMPSON | Associated Press

SACRAMENTO - California’s increasingly deadly and destructive wildfires have become so
unpredictable that government officials should consider banning home construction in
vulnerable areas, the state’s top firefighter says.

Department of Forestry and Fire Protection Director Ken Pimlott will leave his job Friday after
30 years with the agency. In an interview with The Associated Press, he said government and
citizens must act differently to protect lives and property from fires that now routinely threaten
large populations.

That may mean rethinking subdivisions in thickly forested mountainous areas or homes along
Southern California canyons lined with tinder-dry chaparral.

Yet Los Angeles County supervisors stung by California’s housing shortage approved a massive
rural housing development Tuesday despite the fire danger.

Developers said the 19,000-home community in rugged mountains 65 miles north of downtown
Los Angeles would be built to minimize fire hazards with anti-ember construction and buffers
around homes. It would include four new fire stations and roads wide enough to help people
evacuate from an area the state has designated as a “high” and “very high” fire hazard zone.

Faced with such dangers, California residents should train themselves to respond more quickly

to warnings and make preparations to shelter in place if they can’t outrun the flames, Pimlott
said.

Communities in fire zones need to harden key buildings with fireproof construction similar to
the way cities prepare for earthquakes, hurricanes or tornadoes, and should prepare
commercial or public buildings to withstand fires with the expectation hundreds may shelter
there as they did in makeshift fashion when flames last month largely destroyed the Sierra
Nevada foothills city of Paradise in Northern California.

California already has the nation’s most robust building requirement programs for new homes
in fire-prone areas, but recent fire seasons underscore more is needed. Officials must consider
prohibiting construction in particularly vulnerable areas, said Pimlott, who has led the agency
through the last eight years under termed-out Gov. Jerry Brown.

He said it’s uncertain if those decisions should be made by local land managers or at the state
level as legislative leaders have suggested. But Pimlott said “we owe it” to homeowners,

firefighters and communities “so that they don’t have to keep going through what we’re going
through.”

“We've got to continue to raise the bar on what we’re doing and local land-use planning
decisions have to be part of that discussion,” he said.

California’s population has doubled since 1970 to nearly 40 million, pushing urban sprawl into
mountain subdivisions, areas home to fast-burning grasslands and along scenic canyons and
ridgetops that are susceptible to fires. After a crippling drought, the last two years have seen the
worst fires in state history. November’s fire in the northern California town of Paradise was the

deadliest U.S. wildfire in a century, killing at least 85 people and destroying nearly 14,000
homes,

A year eatlier, a fire that ripped through the San Francisco Bay Area city of Santa Rosa killed 22
people and destroyed more than 5,000 homes and other structures.

10f2 January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting 1212R8Q e rs2fM



Cal Fire chief: State must consider ban on homes in fire-p... https:/fwww.mercurynews.com/2018/12/11/cal-fire-chief-st...

Every year since at least 2013, firefighters did not anticipate California’s wildfires could get
worse, Pimlott said. But each year the fires have increased in intensity — driven by dry fuels, an
estimated 129 million drought- and bark beetle-killed trees, and climate change.

In response, the state is doing more planned burning to eliminate brush and dead trees that
serve as fuels for wildfires. The state will also add seven large firefighting aircraft, replace a
dozen aging helicopters, provide firefighter counseling and ensure that firefighters have enough

time off for medical checkups to help them manage the mental and physical stress from a fire
season that now never ends.

He said California leads the nation in clearing away dead trees and thinning forested areas that
are crowded with trees that can fuel fires, contrary to criticism by President Donald Trump who
has blamed forest mismanagement for the fires.

“No other state, or even the federal government, are putting the amount of investment into this
space as California,” Pimlott said.

The department’s philosophy for many years has been to stamp out fires quickly to protect
people and property. Prescribed burns were previously used sparingly out of concern they could
get out of control, but he said the department is making “a sea change” by recognizing that
starting fires under optimum conditions is a good way to reduce dangerous fuels.

Recent fires that have burned into cities have made clear that those protections need to be
centered around vulnerable communities, he said. Paradise, for example, was built on a ridge
atop steep canyons that helped channel the wind-driven fire, while wildfires have repeatedly
blown into Northern and Southern California subdivisions from neighboring wildlands thick
with tinder-dry fuel.

Pimlott rose through the ranks from seasonal firefighter to deputy director of fire protection
before his appointment as chief of the agency. In that role he doubles as the state’s chief

forester and oversees a department that includes nearly 8,000 firefighters, forest managers and
support staff.

He said he has seen fire conditions worsen each passing year during his three decades with the
agency, taking its toll on residents and firefighters alike.

“Folks can say what they want to say, but firefighters are living climate change. It's staring them
in the face every day,” he said.

To adapt, he advocates wildfire warning systems that not only use new technology like
automated phone calling systems, but maybe restoring civil defense-style emergency sirens in
some areas. City planners must prepare communities “unlike we ever have before” with easy
evacuation routes and new evacuation centers.

And he said Californians must treat “red flag” extreme fire danger warnings the way
Midwesterners treat tornado warnings — as imminent threats.
“The reality of it is, California has a fire-prone climate and it will continue to burn,” he said.

“Fire is a way of life in California and we have to learn how to live with it, we have to learn how
to have more resilient communities.”

Start your weekday with all the news you need, from the Bay Area and beyond.

Get the Morning Report newsletter

2 of 2 January 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting 12112Page =208



10of3

hitp://iwww.governing.com/templates/gov_print_article?id...

A 2016 California Law Meant to Prevent Wildfires. Utility
Regulators Delayed Enforcing It.

BY: Tribune News Service | December 11, 2018
By Jeff McDonald

Long before the Camp Fire raced through Northern California, claiming at least 85 lives and all but erasing the Gold
Rush town of Paradise, state law required the three big power monopolies to file detailed strategies to prevent wildfires.

Under Senate Bill 1028, San Diego Gas & Electric, Southern California Edison and Pacific Gas & Electric were

supposed to prepare annual wildfire mitigation plans for reducing fire threats and identify who specifically would be
responsible for implementing them.

The bill, signed into faw by Gov. Jerry Brown in September 2016, also called on the California Public Wilities

Commission to review the filings every year, comment on the material and audit the companies to make sure they were
being followed.

More than two years after the legislation was enacted, state regulators have yet to direct issue directives for the utilities

to write the plans, let alone discuss or examine them for compliance -- although SDG&E says its own fire plans comply
with the new law.

While the commission delayed enforcing the new law, wildfires suspected of being caused by overhead powerlines and

other utility equipment killed at least 125 people. They also destroyed 18,000 buildings and charred hundreds of square
miles of the California landscape.

"They have done absolutely nothing in those two years,” state Sen. Jerry Hill, the San Mateo Democrat who introduced
SB 1028, said of utility regulators.

"The unfortunate thing is we gave them that authority but we did not put a timeline on it," Hill said. "We assumed it would
be prioritized, but sadly it takes a tragedy to realign priorities - and that's what we've seen - tragedy and devastation."

Utilities commission spokeswoman Terrie Prosper did not respond to questions about why the agency has not required
the plans.

In a response to a California Public Records Act request, commission lawyer Frederick Harris said regulators were "in

the process of developing procedures fo implement Senate Bill 1028" when Brown signed a different wildfire-related bill
this past September.

"As a result, the commission had not yet directed the utilities to submit wildfire mitigation plans in compliance with SB
1028," Harris wrote.

The new timetable was developed under Senate Bill 901, the wildfire legislation signed early this fall. The schedule has

PG&E, Edison and SDGAE filing annual mitigation plans by February. Regulators have little faith that the paperwork will
make any immediate impact.

"The commission does not expect to achieve perfection in the short time that will be available for initial review and
implementation of the first wildfire mitigation plans, but will work with the parties to make the best use of that time to
develop useful wildfire mitigation plans,” an October report states.

For decades, state regulations have required power companies to maintain their equipment in ways that ensure safe
and reliable electricity. They also are required to take corrective action when accidents happen.

As monopolies, they are permitted to collect as much money from ratepayers as they need to meet their obligations, with
commission approval.

The mitigation plans required under SB 1028 are intended reduce the threat of wildfires and to help determine whether
utilities will be able to shift liability for future wildfires from company shareholders to utility customers.

Part of Senate Bill 901 allows power companies {0 issue bonds to pay for future wildfire-related expenses. If regulators

determine that ulilities met the prevention standards in the mitigation plans and other rules, they will be allowed to pass
the bond costs on to their customers.

PG&E, whose equipment is suspected of igniting the Camp Fire and at least a dozen others since 2017, did not respond
to questions about why it has not produced the mandated wildfire mitigation plans.

January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meeting 121Pege o2 0f



hitp://www.governing.comitemplates/gov_print_article?id...

The other major utilities said they fully complied with state laws, including fire prevention plans required under previous
legislation.

"SDG&E's fire prevention plans are filed with the commission on October 31 gach year and are compliant with the
requirement to submit a wildfire mitigation plan for the past two years," spokeswoman Christy Ihrig wrote by email.

"Because we were required to submit both a fire prevention plan and a wildfire mitigation plan, we filed one plan that met
both sets of requirements.”

Edison, which operates the powerline suspected of starting the Thomas Fire that roared through Ventura and Santa
Barbara counties last December, said it has several plans in place to prepare for and to mitigate the impact of potential
wildfires.

It blamed regulators for not having the plan required by SB 1028.

"Af the time SB 901 was enacted, no CPUC rulemaking on prior legislation had been established,” an Edison
spokesman said by email.

San Diego firestorm

In October 2007, amid a crush of high winds and even higher temperatures, a transmission line owned by SDG&E
sparked a brush fire just east of Ramona.

Within minutes the blaze grew out of control, driven by powerful gusts known as the Santa Anas and fueled by acre after
acre of thick, drought-stricken vegetation that had not burned for years.

The Witch Fire was the first in a cavalcade of wildfires to strike San Diego County that week, the second deadly
firestorm in the region in just four years. Some 500,000 people would flee their homes before it was over. Two people
lost their lives; 40 firefighters were injured..

Two other fires that erupted that week also were caused by SDG&E powerlines, according to investigations completed in
the aftermath.

In Fallbrook, hundreds of homes were lost to the Rice Fire. A smalter blaze dubbed the Guejito Fire broke out and

quickly merged with the Witch Fire, which eventually burned down more than 1,100 homes on a relentless march to the
coast.

SDG&E pegged damages at more than $2 billion, exceeding its $1 billion insurance policy.
The utility later recovered hundreds of millions from a telecommunications firm whose cable had come in contact with

the transmission line suspected of igniting the Rice Fire and a tree-trimming company that was supposed to have
removed dry vegetation.

Then in 2009, SDG&E sought permission to charge customers almost $400 million in leftover costs from the 2007 fires.
Edison and PG&E joined SDG&E in asking to open special accounts to hold ratepayer funds to pay for fulure wildfire
damages.

The utilities commission rejected the idea, and the monopolies persisted in working to curb their liabilities.

SDG&E appealed the commission ruling in court and lost. Just last month, utility executives announced they would
appeal to the decision to the California Supreme Court.

Hil's 2016 legislation was introduced in response to the powerline-caused fires in San Diego County - and SDG&E's
years-long effort to charge ratepayers for the damages.

"We were a little ahead of the curve, obviously,” the senator said.

Meanwhile, citing climate change and the intensifying nature of wildland fires, lobbyists for the monopolies began
meeting with lawmakers to propose legislation that would insulate sharehotders from billions of dollars in losses.

Their efforts were rewarded in Senate Bill 901. One provision sets aside $1 billion over five years to fund programs
aimed at thinning California forests and other fire-prevention measures.

More important, the law granted PG&E special permission to borrow billions of dollars to pay for damages from a dozen
or more 2017 wildfires that ravaged Sonoma and Napa counties -- and to repay the loans with ratepayer funds.

"I was the only person in the Senate to speak against 901, and it was clearly a bailout of PG&E for their liability before
any alternatives,” said Hill, the San Mateo senator. "Or even before the extent of the liability was determined.”

20f3 January 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting 121Page «s2 A0



http:/mww.governing.com/templates/gov_print_article?id. ..

Diane Conklin is a co-founder of the Mussey Grade Road Alliance, an East San Diego County community group that
was organized after the 2003 Cedar fire to help prevent powerline-caused wildfires.

The alliance opposed Senate Bill 901, arguing that protecting utilities from liability for equipment failure or negligence
would raise the likelihood of future wildfires because companies would no longer be concerned about paying the costs.

"Utility-caused wildfires are not ‘natural’ disasters, even if climate change contributes to their severity,” she said. "Such

fires do not start without a source, and if utility equipment is old, poorly inspected or poorly maintained it is more likely to
be a source of ignition.”

'‘They're doing nothing’

Over the two-plus years since lawmakers passed Senate Bill 1028, California wildfires have grown increasingly common
and deadly.

In June, state fire investigators announced that 12 fires from the October 2017 siege in Northern California were caused
by PG&E's equipment. State officials took the unusual step of sending their findings to local prosecutors.

“"Cal Fire's investigations have been referred to the appropriate county District Attorney's offices for review in eight of the
12 fires ... due to evidence of alleged violations of state law," the agency said.

Utility regulators say they are investigating the recent fires but have yet to issue penalties due to violations cited by Cal
Fire.

Some consumer advocates see the delays in civil enforcement by the commission -- or a lack of citations in general -- as
a factor that has contributed to recurring utility-caused wildfires.

"The problem is they're doing nothing to stop the fires, and they are stoppable,” said lawyer Michael Aguirre, who has
been investigating the commission's response to wildfires and other accidents since he served as the San Diego city
attorney more than a decade ago. "What the CPUC is focused on is funding the fires. We are trying to stop the fires.”

While regulators have begun considering how to implement that latest law aimed at reducing the threat of wildfires, utility
lobbyists have been meeting with commissioners and their staffs privately.

According to state-required disclosures, Edison lobbyists requested and received five separate meetings with three
different commissioners in November.

Meanwhile, commission President Michael Picker reported four meetings with PG&E and Wall Street investors, some of
which attracted dozens of hedge funds and asset managers.

"To ensure public safety in this time of increased wildfire occurrence, the commission is addressing wildfires in many
settings and proceedings,” Picker explained in his disclosure.

(c)2018 The San Diego Union-Tribune

This article was printed from: http://www.governing.comftopics/transportation-infrastructure/tns-california-
wildfire-power-2016-prevention-camp-fire-paradise.htmi

30f3 January 22, 2019 - Reqular Board Meeting 121 Page o2 M



Pension Politics: Should States Be Investing in Controversi... http:/fiwww.governing.com/topics/finance/gov-pension-div...

Pension Politics: Should States Be Investing in
Controversial Companies?

by Liz Farmer | December 2018

It’s an increasingly divisive question. If the goal is to affect change -- from gun control to climate
change - some argue that to divest is the best, while others believe pensions would have more
power keeping their financial stake.

Earlier this year, even before a gunman killed 12 patrons at a bar in Thousand Oaks, there was a
groundswell of calls for California’s two largest pension funds to sell off their investments in
gun retailers. But Jason Perez, a Southern California cop, balked. As a protest against
“politically correct” investing, he decided to run for a seat on the California Public Employee
Retirement System’s board of directors. And it wasn’t just any seat; it was the one held by
CalPERS Board President Priya Mathur.

Mathur had been on the board for 15 years. She is a globally recognized leader in the
sustainable investment community and holds a seat on the board of the United Nations-
supported Principles for Responsible Investment, a network of international investors working
to create and promote standards for sustainable investing. She’s worked to apply those
standards to CalPERS.

Perez and his union, the Corona Police Officers Association, have routinely criticized the board
for spending too much time on environmental and social investment programs, Association
members regularly attended CalPERS meetings 430 miles away in Sacramento to urge pension
officials to focus instead on making money for the $360 billion pension fund. During his
campaign, Perez painted a picture of an investment strategy overrun by politics and emotion,
particularly proposals before the board to divest the portfolio of gun manufacturers and
retailers and to drop the controversial Dakota Access Pipeline.

Even though the board ultimately rejected both ideas, Perez’s campaign was successful. In
October, Mathur was easily unseated when Perez won 57 percent of the vote. While it’s by no
means a total repudiation of the board -- fewer than 17,000 votes were cast by the more than
400,000 eligible voting beneficiaries of the fund -- it was the second time in a year a divestment
critic ousted a CalPERS board member. The first came last December, when Margaret Brown,
an Orange County school district administrator, unseated incumbent Michael Bilbrey.

At issue in California and elsewhere is what’s called ESG investing, a strategy based on an
asset’s environmental, social and governance factors. Environmental factors might include a
firm’s carbon footprint or its contributions to deforestation. Social considerations would look at
working conditions or impact on local communities. Governance covers things like corruption
or how a corporate board behaves. The idea is that firms with sustainable environmental
practices, who are good social stewards and have strong governance practices, are more likely
to produce stronger returns over the long run. While the notion of ESG investing has been
around for decades under one name or another, its current form has taken off in popularity as

more sustainably minded millennial and Generation X investors have entered the stock and
bond markets.

Many governments have positioned themselves as good ESG investments in order to attract
these investors. They've even generated new vehicles for investments, such as green bonds and
pay for success bonds, But as a result, they’re finding themselves awash in controversy, accused
of playing politics. As our nation has grown more politicaily divided, it’s become more tempting
for politicians to use pension funds as a political club in the name of responsible investing.

Of course, social divestment isn’t new. It began in earnest in the 1980s as a reaction to
apartheid. In protest, pension funds sold off their stakes in companies that were doing business

10f4 January 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting 12112Pange0:02A2



Pension Politics: Should States Be Investing in Controversi... http://www.governing.com/topics/finance/gov-pension-div. .

in South Africa. Since then, funds have dumped tobacco stocks and holdings in companies
doing business in Darfur because of ongoing human rights violations. More recently, there’s
been increasing pressure on state and local pension funds to sell off equity in gun retailers,
fossil fuel companies and private prisons. The American Federation of Teachers, for instance,
lobbied teacher pension funds this year to cut their exposure to investment firms that funneled
money into private prisons used to house migrants whose children had been separated from
them at the border. The Chicago teachers fund obliged.

What is new is the extent to which public funds have embraced ESG investing. In fact, it's a
booming business: Assets under management in such portfolios have grown to an estimated
$23 trillion globally, an increase of more than 600 percent over the past decade, according to
mutual fund researcher Morningstar. Technology has helped increase the overall profile of ESG

investing by making it easier for any investor -- institutional or not -- to adopt the approach and
filter out unwanted assets.

What's more, of the seven U.S. pension funds that are signatories to the U.N.-supported
Principles for Responsible Investment, three signed on in just the past three years. The
overriding point of the principles is that certain factors such as climate change and human
rights can affect a company’s performance and should therefore be considered alongside more
traditional financial factors. Proponents of the investing strategy say it’s about buying, not
selling, bonds. That is, rather than socially divesting, pension funds would dabble in social
activism, buying into companies to encourage and maintain sustainable practices.

For many, the crucial question isn’t whether a pension investment does good, but whether it

does well: Does it ultimately fulfill a government’s fiduciary duty to earn a healthy rate of
return?

The research on whether pension funds are leaving money on the table with ESG investing is
mixed. A 2016 paper by the Boston College Center for Retirement Research found that the
returns of mutual funds that screen for such investments generally underperformed when
compared to unrestricted funds. But that wasn’t always because the investments themselves
were underperforming. The center notes that the fees in the ESG funds are roughly 100 basis

points higher than their counterparts, which may reflect the additional costs to screen
investments.

More recently, Trillium Asset Management, which is one of the major ESG investment firms in
the U.S,, found that Massachusetts’ pension trust lost an estimated $79 million on its $1.6
billion fossil fuel holdings over a five-year period ending in 2017. If the fund had instead
invested $1.6 billion in an anti-fossil fuel index fund, Trillium said it would have paid off $1
billion over the same period.

There’s another way to look at ESG profitability. Ohio State University law professor Paul Rose
thinks that evaluating return on investment is a limited view of a pension fund’s fiduciary duty.
Rose, who studies sovereign wealth funds, says pensions also have a duty to consider wealth
maximization for taxpayers and the broader impact of their investments. While an industry
may appear to be a sound investment on paper, it may also be contributing to higher costs for
governments in areas like water quality, health care or welfare. While private investors can
ignore such negative effects, a pension fund should consider whether it’s aiding something that
ultimately costs taxpayers more money.

It's not uncommon for other investors to consider these impacts, says Rose. He points to
revolving loan funds for minority businesses. These may be considered riskier, but such funds
can help create long-term wealth and stability for taxpayers. “You could create a colorful

argument that {certain types of] ESG investing does help taxpayers over the long term,” he
says.

Still, Rose notes, those pushing for or against certain types of investments can’t just say they

think the move is good for the long term. “You need to be able to demonstrate that you've run
the numbers.”

Meanwhile, critics of ESG investing by pension systems contend that fund managers have a

C L January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting 12112Pageoe243



Pension Politics: Should States Be Investing in Controversi... http:/iwww.governing.com/topics/finance/gov-pension-div...

fiduciary duty to get the highest returns possible for their beneficiaries at a reasonable level of
risk. If investing in a certain fund will add performance, then “do it,” says former Connecticut
Treasurer Chris Burnham, who has decried socially responsible investing. But too often, he
continues, decisions are based on the desires of “politicians playing politics with the fund’s
money‘”

Take Illinois. In 2015, state lawmakers voted to require the state’s pension systems to divest
from companies that boycott Israel. In a recent paper, the Institute for Pension Fund Integrity
noted that the American public is deeply divided over the many issues surrounding the Israeli-
Palestinian conflict, making it “all but certain there are members of the Illinois pension systems
who lie on both sides of this issue and do not want their funds being used to make this political
statement.”

In California, Beth Richtman, managing investment director of CalPERS’ Sustainable
Investment Program, couldn’t agree more with taking the emotion out of investment decisions.
This year, CalPERS revamped its investment division, created a new one to monitor ESG
investing across its entire portfolio and named Richtman to run it. Her philosophy is “not in
any way focused on exclusions based on ethical grounds,” she says. Rather, it’s about assessing
the fund’s exposure to environmental, social or governance dangers down the road. She is
pushing for improving the fund’s research while prioritizing sustainable investment
opportunities and using CalPERS’ reputation as a responsible investor to affect what it views as
positive change through its investments. “We have long-term liabilities stretching out over
decades, so we need to make sure our risks align with that,”

Richtman points to climate change as a classic example. Some investments such as coal might
look very attractive in the near term. But decades out, they could be long-term losers. “It’s
important we get this right,” she says. “Otherwise, we might end up mispricing investments.”

This approach gets murkier around social issues. While there’s plenty of data to show the
benefits of environmental investments or that certain governance practices such as a diverse
corporate board are linked with better performance, social issues are steeped in emotion and

politics. Richtman says her division is in the process of mapping social issues to determine
where CalPERS is at risk.

The most recent anti-gun movement is a clear illustration of the way the ESG strategy of
working with companies can achieve results -- better results than a straight-up divestment
approach. After the mass shooting last February at Marjory Stoneman Douglas High School in
Parkland, Fla., student-led activism put pressure on Wall Street and investors to reevaluate
their gun-related holdings. Amid the outcry, California Treasurer John Chiang went before his
fellow CalPERS board members to request they divest from national retailers selling guns that
are illegal in California. To help make his case, Chiang, who was running for governor at the
time, brought families who had lost loved ones in mass shootings to a board meeting to plead
with the board to pull its money from gun-related retailers.

Given CalPERS’ divestment history, the idea wasn’t out of line. As recently as 2013, the board
opted to sell off the fund’s stakes in two manufacturers of guns and high-capacity ammunition

clips. In his argument, Chiang pointed out that gun stocks had plummeted following the
Parkland shooting.

Chiang's original request to divest came in 2017, following a mass shooting in Las Vegas that
claimed 58 lives and injured 851 others. In response, CalPERS began pressuring companies
such as Walmart and Dick’s Sporting Goods to change their firearms sales. Following the
Parkland shooting, more investors did the same. Those companies and others eventually agreed
to discontinue the sale of assault-style weapons, cease selling high-capacity magazines as well
as bump stocks, and sell firearms only to people who are 21 years of age or older. “I don’t think
that would have happened had we just divested,” says board member Theresa Taylor.

In March, the board rejected Chiang’s request to divest, tabling the discussion until 2019. But
the discussion was still enough to compel Perez to shake up the CalPERS board by running for a
seat. Meanwhile, gun stocks have generally recovered. And most board members believe they
took the moral high ground in working with the retail companies to affect firearms sales. “Yes,

3of4 January 22, 2019 — Regular Board Meeting 12112Bageoe2Ad



Pension Politics: Should States Be Investing in Controversi... http://fwww.governing.com/topics/finance/gov-pension-div...

this conversation involves politics,” says Chiang. “But politics reflects values, and values are
important.”

40f4 January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting 12112Paige 002 4%



One year later, Fallbrook community devastated by Lilac fir... https:/finsurancenewsnet.com/oarticle/one-year-later-fallb...

One year later, Fallbrook community devastated by
Lilac fire is moving forward - InsuranceNewsNet

San Diego Union-Tribune (CA)

Dec. 09--A year ago, after the Lilac fire roared through the Rancho Monserate Country Club in
Fallbrook, destroying 75 homes, residents put up a sign near the front entrance.

"Rancho Strong,” it read.
The words turned out to be more than wishful thinking,.

Most of the houses that burned down have been replaced, or soon will be. People are returning
to the place they call home, to a close-knit senior community of about 400 residents that's
tucked up against a mountain in the San Luis Rey River valley.

"It was hard, we had to learn a lot, but we got through it," said Jim Jones, who with his wife,
Sandy, was among the first to run the gauntlet of insurance claims and construction plans, of
government permits and utility hook-ups, of furniture-buying and new landscaping.

They moved back in mid-July, just seven months after the fire. Their street was particularly
hard-hit, losing all two dozen of its manufactured houses, and now Jim Jones jokes that they
might need to change the name to Hollywood Boulevard because everything is new and shiny.

Up and down the street, crews are busy -- finishing the cement work on new curbs, erecting
metal carports, installing mailboxes. Whenever one of the new pre-built homes is trucked in,
the owners sit nearby in lawn chairs, sipping champagne.

"It's fun to see people happy again,” Sandy Jones said.

Not everyone's recovery has gone smoothly. Some residents have been delayed by financial

problems or construction backlogs. Others decided not to come back and have sold their empty
lots to investors or developers.

But there's no mistaking the air of normalcy that's settling in, and the experience there may
offer some lessons -- and some hope -- for the thousands of other people in California just now
beginning the journey back from ruinous wildfires.

At Rancho Monserate, the holiday decorations are up again outside the clubhouse. The annual
Christrnas dinner -- $12 for Honey Baked Ham, scalloped potatoes, glazed carrots, salad, rolls,
apple pie -- drew a capacity crowd.

And the December newsletter is filled with items about daily life -- how one resident set an 18-

hole record on the golf course, how donations are being collected again for the Fallbrook Food

Pantry, how the Supper Club went to a Thai restaurant in November and had sweet rice with
mango.

A year ago, after the community lost one-third of its houses to the fire, almost none of that
seemed possible.

Starting over
Rancho Monserate sits off Old Highway 395, west of Interstate 15 and south of state Route 76.

The property dates back to a Mexican land grant in 1846, when Governor Pio Pico gave his
brother-in-law 13,323 acres in what would become the Bonsall and Fallbrook townships.

10f 3 January 22, 2019 - Regular Board Meeting 121 Page 242 46



One year later, Fallbrook community devastated by Lilac fir... https:/linsurancenewsnet.com/oarticle/one-year-later-fallb. ..

Once home t0 13,000 sheep, 3,000 head of cattle and 300 horses, it was turned into a mobile-
home park in the early 1970s, and a decade later was one of the first in the state to convert from
rental spaces to private ownership. At least one resident of each unit has to be age 55 or older.

There were 232 homes there when the fire hit on Dec. 7, 2017. It started next to Interstate 15 -
the cause may never be known, although sparks from a chain-dragging truck is considered a
strong possibility -- and got into a brush-filled gully that separates the freeway from Old
Highway 395.

Then it jumped into Rancho Monserate, moving so quickly residents in some cases had only
minutes to escape. Steffani Smith's Subaru was spattered with red retardant from a firefighting
plane as she fled, the flames so close and hot they melted the car's windshield wipers,

The 62-year-old disabled widow got out with her dog, Donut, some of her paintings, a few
important documents, and little else. When her house was destroyed, so were the medals her
late husband earned fighting in the Vietnam War, and the American flag that draped his casket.
Their wedding photos. Things her mother had made for her.

She's spent the last year living nearby in a rented house in an orchard. Her replacement home
was trucked to her lot on Halloween, but it will take a few months to do the finish work:
drywall, floors, utility hook-ups. She hopes to be in by mid-January.

"The old house was built in 1974 so everything about this is an upgrade,” she said on a recent
weekday as she walked around the perimeter of her place. "And I've never had a house that's
brand new. I'm excited."

Her house is the same size as the old one. Same exterior color, too -- blue. But other residents
have used the devastation as an opportunity to enlarge their homes, or change the layout.

When the Joneses rebuilt, Jim wanted room out back for barbecues and fruit trees. Sandy
wanted decorative pillars on the back porch and a farmhouse sink in the kitchen. They got all of

that, along with siding and decking built out of composite material that's less likely to burn than
wood.

The couple lost everything in the fire because when it started they were shopping at Costco in
San Marcos. He misses his Point Loma High School letterman’s jacket and his "cherry" 2005
Ford Ranger. She's most upset about the family heirlooms: photos, her wedding dress, letters
her dad sent to her mom during World War II, recipes.

"People tell you it's just stuff, but it's more than that," she said.
One day a few months ago, a box arrived unexpectedly in the mail. A relative who had been in

their wedding party sent them copies of the photos from the ceremony to replace those
destroyed in the fire.

The photos are framed now and hanging in the hallway. Next September will be the couple’s
50th anniversary.

Feeling lucky

Dan and Pat Damon had no homeowners insurance. The policy had expired and the insurance
company declined to renew it. They were looking for new coverage when the fire hit.

They'd paid cash for the house six years ago and were on a glide path into retirement. A
professional musician for 40 years, he was cutting back on his performances and looking

forward to playing more golf. She was taking it easier, too; she has bad knees and can't get
around the way she used to.

Now, at age 70, he's working full-time again, with shows five nights in a row this week. But he's
not complaining. “I'm happy for the work," he said.

They took out a loan to pay for their replacement house and moved in five months ago. It's

20f3 January 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meeting 1211 Prage 242



One year later, Fallbrook community devastated by Lilac fir... https./insurancenewsnet.com/oarticle/one-year-later-fallb. ..

three bedrooms now instead of two, so he can have his music room -- formerly in a shed --
indoors. He was able to decorate its walls with photos and other mementos from his career
because his sister in New York had saved copies.

"I'm lucky she had them," he said.
Luck comes up a lot when they talk about what they've been through.

They were at an estate sale one day a few months ago when they ran into someone who
remembered seeing Dan perform in Hemet. The Damons picked out some furniture -- almost
everything in the house now is second-hand -- and were headed to the bank to withdraw the
necessary cash when their cellphone rang.

The acquaintance from Hemet had paid for the furniture.

"Sometimes people ask you the 'Why me?' question,” Pat said. "For me, the 'why' is so I could
have my eyes opened to what people really are, and what they are is good. People have been so
kind and generous to us."

Their Christmas tree is a hand-me-down, too, picked up at a "Christmas in September" event at

the Rancho Monserate clubhouse. Residents donated holiday decorations for those who lost
theirs in the fire.

That sense of community is one reason most of those left homeless a year ago have decided to
come back. “It's peaceful here, and quiet, and people take care of each other,” Smith said.

Financially, many of them didn't have a choice. The houses in Rancho Monserate, most of them
two-bedrooms and about 1,500 square feet, generally cost less than $350,000. Where else are
you going to find that in San Diego County?

But that doesn't mean some of them didn't explore other options. They're still spooked by fire,
anxious any time they see smoke in the sky.

“I didn't want to come back,” Sandy Jones admitted. She figures the flames will return some
day. She wanted to live somewhere that feels safer. But where, her husband asked, would that
be?

"You can't get away from fires any more," he said.

The Damons feel the same way. They've adopted a new motto, one that seems to fit the vibe of
the whole community, one year after disaster.

"Always forward,” Dan said. "Never backward.”

iohn.wilkens@sduniontril

(¢)2018 The San Diego Union-Tribune
Visit The San Diego Union-Tribune at www.sandiegouniontribune.com

Distributed by Tribune Content Agency, LLC.

3 of3 January 22, 2019 - Reqular Board Meeting 1211Page 24218



TO:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FROM: STEPHEN ABBOTT, FIRE CHIEF/CEO
DATE: JANUARY 22, 2019
SUBJECT: COMMENTS, REPORTS AND UPDATES

L]

STAFF COMMENTS/REPORTS/UPDATES:

STEPHEN ABBOTT, FiRE CHIEF/CEOQ:

CHIEF OFFICERS & STAFF:

BOARD:

BARGAINING GROUPS:

PUBLIC COMMENT:

January 22, 2019 E¥\glilar Board Meeting

Page —-219



Januar y 22,2019 — Reqular Board Meeting

Page —-220



TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FROM: STEPHEN ABBOTT, FIRE CHIEF/CEQ
DATE: JANUARY 22, 2019

SUBJECT: CLOSED SESSION

CS-1. ANNOUNCEMENT - PRESIDENT LUEVANQ:

> An announcement regarding the items to be discussed in Closed Session will be made prior to the
commencement of Closed Session.

CS-2 CONFERENCE  WITH REAL _ PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR  — GOVERNMENT CoDE

) § 54956.8 — CHIEF ABBOTT:

PROPERTY LOCATION: 4157 Qlive Hill Road — Station 3
PARTIES: Fallbrook, CA 92028;

> North County Fire Protection District {Seller;
UNDER NEGOTIATION: Terms of Sale;
DISTRICT NEGOTIATORS: Chief Abbott, District Counsel James

CSs-3. REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION ~ PRESIDENT LUEVANO

Page 1 of 1
January 22, 2019 - Reqular Board Meeting Page —-221



Januar v 22, 2019 — Reqular Board Meeting Page —222



